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SUNRISE.

SENIOR LIVING

Dear Fellow Stockholdess:

A combination of factors made 2007 very difficult for Sunrise Senior Living. Operating losses, accounting review
costs, costs of our concluded internal inquiry, impairments, and charges from acquisitions and devclopments
combined to make 2007 unprofitable. While we did see strengths in our core business, including several metrics
such as continued occupancy levels in excess of 90%, we are determined to restore profitability.

As a result, we have taken several steps toward restoring investor confidence and setting us on a path toward future
profitability:

¢ We conducted a sweeping review of accounting policies and personnel, which led to our earnings
restatement and a new financial management team.

»  Our board of dicectors, through its special independent committee, conducted a comprehensive review of
company policizs, leading to strenger corporate governance procedures and the addition of a chief
compliance officer.

¢  Our board added four independent directors with strong expertise in financial management, real estate and
operations: Stephen Harlan (June 2007), Lynn Krominga {August 2007}, Glyn Aeppel (August 2008) and
David Fuente (August 2008).

e  We have made many senior management changes. Highlighting these were the hiring of Rick Nadeau as
chief financial officer and, after splitting the roles of chairman of the board and CEO, we recently
announced that [ will become non-executive chairman and Mark Ordan will succeed me as CEQ.

Mark, Rick and Tiffany Tomasso, our chief operating officer, comprise a very strong team with deep operating and
financial experience and a demonstrated track record of success. Together, we have announced a cost-reduction
program and a renewed focus on driving the results of our core business to greater levels, We are confident the
steps we are taking will jposition us for future profitability while maintaining our excellent service to seniors.

Since we opened our first community 27 years ago, we have built one of the world’s largest and finest senior living
companies. We have introduced new innovative models, set high standards for service and care, and changed the
way seniors are served in hundreds of communities in the US, Canada, the UK and Germany. As I transition to my
new role, I will continue to be an active, dedicated supporter of Sunrise’s next phase of growth and success. We are
determined to restore ou profitability, have smart core growth, and strengthen our sector-leading levels of service
and care for our residents. Our 45,000 team members are devoted to our mission each day, and we thank them for
all they do - and we thank you, our stockholders, for your understanding and support.

Sincerely,

Y

Paul J. Klaassen
Founder and Chief Executive Officer

October 20, 2008
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This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Although we believe
the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, there can be no
assurance that our expectations will be realized. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in
these forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including, but not limited to:

*  the outcome of the Securities and Exchange Commission’s (“SEC"} investigation;

*  the outcomes of pending putative class action and derivative litigation;

*  the outcome of the Trinity OIG investigation and qui tam proceeding;

*  the outcome of the IRS audit of our tax return for the tax year ended December 31, 2006 and employment 1ax
returns for 2004, 2005 and 2006;

*  the status of strategic alternatives;

* our ability to comply with the terms of the amendments to our bank credit facility or to obtain any necessary
Surther extension of the period for providing the lenders with required financial information and for
complying with certain financial covenants;

= our ability to continue to recognize income from refinancings and sales of communities by ventures;

*  risk of changes in our critical accounting estimates;

*  risk of further write-downs or impairments of our assets;

*  risk of future fundings of guarantees and other support arrangements to some of our ventures, lenders to the
ventures or third party owners;

*  risk of declining vccupancies in existing communities or slower than expected leasing of new communities;

*  risk resulting from any international expansion;

*  risk associated with any new service offerings;

* development and construction risks;

»  risks associated with past or any future acquisitions;

* compliance with government regulations;

*  risk of new legislation or regulatory developments;

« business conditions;

* competition;

* changes in interest rates;

*  unanticipated expenses;

*  market factors that could affect the value of our properties,

*  the risks of downturns in general economic conditions;

* availability of financing for development; and

= other risk factors contained in our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 filed with the SEC on
July 31, 2008, as amended.

Information provided in this Annual Report for 2008 is preliminary and remains subject to review by Ernst &
Young LLP. As such, this information is not final or complete, and remains subject to change, possibly materially.

We assume no obligation to update or supplement forward-looking statements that become untrue because of

subsequent events. Unless the context suggests otherwise, references herein to “Sunrise,” the “Company,” “we,
“us” and “our"” mean Sunrise Senior Living, Inc. and our consolidated subsidiaries.



BUSINESS

Overview

We are a Delaware ccrporation and a provider of senior living services in the United States, Canada, the
United Kingdom and Germany. Founded in 1981, we began with a simple but innovative vision — to create an
alternative senior living option that would emphasize quality of life and quality of care. We offer a full range of
personalized senior living services, including independent living, assisted living, care for individuals with
Alzheimer’s and other forms of memory loss, nursing, rehabilitative and hospice care. We also develop senior living
communities for ourselves, for ventures in which we retain an ownership interest and for third parties.

Our long-range strategic objective is to grow our senior living business through a management services business
model that is built on long-term management contracts. Our four primary growth drivers consist of: (1) generating
revenue growth from ou: existing operating portfolio of owned and managed communities; (2) adding additional
communities through new construction, primarily with venture partners; (3) generating profitable growth through
the delivery of hospice and other ancillary services; and (4) maximizing our return on our equity investment in
unconsolidated ventures and other invested capital.

We generate income primarily from:
- management fees for operating communities, which can also include incentive management fees;
+ resident fees for communities that are owned by us;
+ development and pre-opening fees related to the development of new Sunrise communities;
»  our share of income and losses for those communities in which we have an ownership interest,
* recapitalizations and sales of communities by ventures in which we own an equity interest; and
« fees for hospice services.

At December 31, 2007, we operated 439 communities, including 402 communities in the United States,
12 communities in Canada, 17 communities in the United Kingdom and eight communities in Germany, with a total
resident capacity of approximately 54,000. We owned or had an ownership interest in 261 of these communitics and
178 were managed for third parties. In addition, at December 31, 2007, we provided pre-opening management and
professional services to 44 communities under construction, of which 32 communities are in the United States,
three communities are in Canada, eight communities are in the United Kingdom, and one community is in Germany,
with a combined capacity for approximately 5,600 residents. During 2007, we opened 22 new communities, with a
combined resident capacity of approximately 2,600 residents, which were developed by us.

Beginning in 2008, we have changed our methodology for determining the number of communities we operate.
There are certain communities that operate under multiple licenses and have multiple buildings on the same grounds,
some of which we acquired in our acquisition of Marriott Senior Living Services in 2003. These communities were
previously counted as more than one community in our community count. We have now determined that we will
count all communities with more than one licensed building as one community resuiting in a reduction in the
community count by 18 communities for 2007 in order to better reflect the way the communities are managed. There
is no change in resident apacity counts and no impact on financial reporting related to the change. All references in
this Annual Report to thz number of communities, regardless of period, reflect this change.

We have four operating segments for which operating results are separately and regularly reviewed by key decision
makers: domestic operations, international operations (including Canada), Greystone and Trinity. See Note 22 to our
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.




Significant 2007 Developments
Ventures

In January 2007, we entered into a venture to develop assisted living communities in the United Kingdom (the
“UJK") over the next four years with us serving as the developer and then as the manager of the communities. Fhis is
our second venture in the UK. We own 20% of the venture. Property development will be funded through
contributions of up to approximately $200.0 million by the partners, based upon their pro rata percentage, withéthe
balance funded by loans provided by third-party lenders, giving the venture a total potential investment capacify of
approximately $1.0 billion.

During 2007, we entered into two development ventures to develop and build senior living communities in ¢he
United States during 2007 and 2008 with us serving as the developer and then as the manager of the communities.
We own 20% of the ventures. Property development will be funded through contributions of up to approximatély
$208.0 million by the partners, based upon their pro rata percentage, with the balance funded by loans provided by
third party lenders, giving the ventures a total potential investment capacity of approximately $788.0 million. We
will develop and manage the communities.

During 2007, our first UK venture in which we have a 20% equity interest sold seven communities to a venture in
which we have a 10% interest. Primarily as a result of the gains on these asset sales recorded in the ventures, we
recorded equity in earnings in 2007 of approximately $75.5 million. When our UK and Germany ventures weré
formed, we established a bonus pool in respect of each venture for the benefit of employees and others respongible
for the success of these ventures. At that time, we agreed with our partner that after certain return thresholds were
met, we would each reduce our percentage interests in venture distributions with such excess to be used to fund
these bonus pools. During 2007, we recorded bonus expense of $27.8 million in respect to the bonus pool relating to
the UK venture. These bonus amounts are funded from capital events and the cash is retained by us in restrictefl cash
accounts. As of December 31, 2007, approximately $18.0 million of this amount was included in restricted cash.
Under this bonus arrangement, no bonuses are payable until we receive distributions at feast equal to certain capital
contributions and loans made by us to the UK and Germany ventures. We currently expect this bonus distributien
limitation will be satisfied in late 2008, at which time bonus payments would become payable.

Change in Ownership of Sunrise Communities

In April 2007, Ventas, Inc. (“Ventas™), a large publicly-held healthcare REIT, acquired Sunrise Senior Liviag
Real Estate Investment Trust (“Sunrise REIT"), an independent Canadian real estate investment trust establishéd by
us in December 2004, At the time of the acquisition, we managed 77 communities for Sunrise REIT and held a
minority interest in 59 of those communities. As of December 31, 2007, we managed 79 communities owned by
Ventas and held a minority interest in 61 of those communities. In addition, we have various arrangements with
Ventas as successor to Sunrise REIT regarding future development in Canada.

Real Estate Gains

During 2007, we recognized pre-tax gains of approximately $85.2 million related to previous sales of real estate
in 2003 and 2004 where sale accounting was not initially achieved due to guarantees and other forms of continuiing
involvement. Those guarantees and other forms of continuing involvernent were released in 2007, We received cash
of approximately $25.8 million in 2007 as a result of these transactions.

Bank Credit Facility
During 2007, as a result of the delay in completing our then pending restatement, we entered into several

amendments to our Bank Credit Facility extending the time period for furnishing required quarterly and audit
financial information to the lenders. In connection with these amendments, the interest rate applicable to the

outstanding balance under the Bank Credit Facility was also increased effective July 1, 2007 from LIBOR plus

225 basis points to LIBOR plus 250 basis points. We also paid the lenders aggregate fees of approximately
$0.9 million for entering into these amendments. Our Bank Credit Facitity was further amended in January 2008,
February 2008, March 2008 and July 2008. See “Significant 2008 Developments — Bank Credit Facility™ belaw.



Trinity Hospice

On September 14, 2006, we acquired Trinity Hospice, Inc. (“Trinity™) for $75.0 million with the objective of
entering the hospice care industry and integrating such services into our core product offering. On January 3, 2007,
Trinity received a subpoena from the Phoenix field office of the Office of the Inspector General of the Department
of Health and Human Services (“O1G”) requesting certain information regarding Trinity's operations in three
locations for the period between January 1, 2000 through June 306, 2006, a period that is prior to our acquisition of
Trinity. On September 11, 2007, Trinity and we were served with a gui fam complaint filed on September 5, 2007 in
the United States District Court for the District of Arizona. That filing amended a complaint filed under seal on
November 21, 2005 by four former employees of Trinity under the gui tam provision of the Federal False Claims
Act. On February 13, 2008, Trinity received a subpoena from the Los Angeles regional office of the OIG requesting
information regarding Trinity’s operations in 19 locations for the period between December 1, 1998 and February 12,
2008. This subpoena relates o the ongoing investigation being conducted by the Commercial Litigation Branch of
the U.S. Department of Justice and the civil division of the U.S, Attorney’s Office in Arizona. Trinity is in the
process of complying with the subpoena. See Note 18 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
information. During 2006, we recorded a loss of $5.0 million for possible fines, penalties and damages related to
the Trinity OIG investigation. As of Decernber 31, 2007, we had incurred approximately $2.0 million in legal fees
and other costs in connection with the investigation and related gui tam action and remediation activities. We expect
to incur additional costs, which may be substantial, until this matter is resolved.

Our hospice revenue of $67.1 million in 2007 was reduced by approximately $5.6 million as a resuit of our
hospice programs exceeding the Medicare cap. Our ability to comply with this limitation depends on a number of
factors relating to a given hospice program, including the number of admissions, average length of stay, mix in level
of care and Medicare patients that transfer into and out of our hospice programs.

As of December 31, 2007, Trinity’s average daily census was approximately 1,300 compared to 1,500 at
December 31, 2006. The average daily census was approximately 985 at June 30, 2008, This decline in census was
partially the result of the closing of certain operating locations in non-core Sunrise markets and Trinity’s focus on
remediation efforts.

As a result of a review of the goodwill and intangible assets related to Trinity, we recorded an impairment loss of
approximately $56.7 million in 2007. In addition, in 2007, we also increased the loss for probable fines, penalties
and damages relating to he Trinity OIG investigation by $1.0 million.

Germany Venture

At December 31, 2007 and June 30, 2008, we provided pre-opening and management services to eight and nine
communities, respectively, in Germany. In connection with the development of these communities, we provided
operating deficit guarantzes to cover cash shortfalls until the communities reach stabilization. These communities
have not performed as well as originally expected. In 2006, we recorded a pre-tax charge of $50.0 million as we did
not expect full repayment of the loans from the funding. In 2007, we recorded an additional $16.0 million pre-tax
charge based on changes in expected future cash flows. Our estimates underlying the pre-tax charge include certain
assumptions as to lease-up of the communities. To the extent that such lease-up is slower than our projections, we
could incur significant additional pre-tax charges in subsequent periods as we would be required to fund additional
amounts under the operating deficit guarantees. Through June 30, 2008, we have funded $37.0 million under these
guarantees and other loans. We expect to fund an additional $62.0 million through 2012, the date at which we
estimate no further funding will be required.

Senipr Living Condominium Developments

‘We began to develop sentor living condominium projects in 2004. In 2006, we sold a majority interest in one
condominium and assisted living venture to third parties. [n conjunction with the development agreement for this
project, we agreed to be responsible for actual project costs in excess of budgeted project costs of more than
$10.0 million (subject to certain limited exceptions). Project overruns to be paid by us are projected to be
approximately $48.0 million. Of this amount, $10.0 million is recoverable as a loan from the venture and



$14.7 million relates to proceeds from the sale of real estate, development fees and pre-opening fees. During 2006,
we recorded a loss of approximately $17.2 million due to this commitment. During 2007, we recorded an addiional
loss of approximately $6.0 million due to increases in the budgeted projected costs. Through June 30, 2008, we have
paid approximately $47.0 miilion in cost overruns.

In 2007, we decided to discontinue development of four senior living condominium projects due to adverse:
economic conditions and as a result, we recorded pre-tax charges totaling approximately $21.0 million in 200%to
write-off capitalized development costs for these projects. In the first quarter of 2008, we suspended the
development of the remaining three condominium projects and as a result, we expect to record pre-tax charges
totaling approximately $22.0 million in the first quarter of 2008.

Aston Gardens

In September 2006, a venture acquired six senior living communities with a capacity for approximately 2,000
residents in Florida, operated under the Aston Gardens brand name. In 2007 and into 2008, the operating resulis of
the Aston Garden communities suffered due to adverse economic conditions in Florida for independent living -
communities, including a decline in the real estate market. These operating results are insufficient to achieve :
compliance with the debt covenants for the mortgage debt for the properties. In July 2008, the venture received
notice of default from the lender of $170.0 million of debt obtained by the venture at the time of the acquisition in
September 2006. Later in July 2008, we received notice from our equity partner alleging a default under our
management agreement as a result of receiving the notice from the lender. This debt is non-recourse to us. Based on
our assessment, we have determined that our investment is impaired and as a result, we recorded a pre-tax
impairment charge of approximately $21.6 million in the fourth quarter of 2007.

Legal and Accounting Fees Related to Accounting Review, Special Independent Committee Inquiry and Related
Matters

During 2007 and the six months ended June 30, 2008, we incurred or expect to incur legal and accounting fees of
approximately $51.7 million and $22.6 million, respectively, related to the Accounting Review, the Special
Independent Committee inquiry, the SEC investigation and responding to various shareholder actions. As indigated
above, we also incurred approximately $2.0 million in legal fees and other costs in connection with the ;l'nmty OIG
investigation and the related qu/ tam action and remediation activities. -

Strategic Alternatives

In July 2007, we announced that our Board of Directors had decided to explore strategic alternatives intended to
enhance shareholder value, including a possible sale of the Company. A committee of non-management directérs,
originally established in April 2007 to explore strategic aliernatives, engaged Citigroup Global Markets Inc. to.act as
its financial advisor. Meanwhile, this committee has determined that the most important factor in enhancing
sharehelder value at this time is for us to regain our status as a current filer of our public financial statements.
Accordingly, shareholder value remains the focus of the committee, but there can be no assurance that the
exploration of strategic alternatives will result in any sale transaction.

Significant 2008 Developments
Bank Credit Facility

There were $100.0 miilion of outstanding borrowings and $71.7 million of letters of credit outstanding undér our
Bank Credit Facility at December 31, 2007. On January 31, February 19, March 13, and July 23, 2008, we entéred
into further amendments to the Bank Credit Facility. These amendments, among other things:

» modified to August 20, 2008 the delivery date for the unaudited financial statements for the quarter ended
March 31, 2008;

« modified to September 10, 2008 the delivery date for the unaudited financial statements for the quartrr
ending June 30, 2008;




« temporarily (in February 2008) and then permanently (in July 2008) reduced the maximum principal
amount available under the Bank Credit Facility to $160.0 million; and

» waived compliance with financial covenants in the Bank Credit Facility for the year ended December 31,
2007 and for the fiscal quarters ended March 31, 2008 and June 30, 2008, and waived compliance with the
leverage ratio and fixed charge coverage ratio covenants for the fiscal quarter ending September 30, 2008,

In addition, pursuant to the July 2008 amendment, until such time as we have delivered evidence satisfactory to
the administrative agent that we have timely filed our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2008 and
that we are in compliance with all financial covenants in the Bank Credit Facility, including the leverage ratio and
fixed charge coverage retio, for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2008, and provided we are not then otherwise
in default under the Bank Credit Facility:

» we maust mainain liquidity of not less than $50.0 million, composed of availability under the Bank Credit
Facility plus up to not more than $50.0 million in unrestricted cash and cash equivalents {tested as of the
end of each calendar month), and any unrestricted cash and cash equivalents in excess of $50.0 million
must be used to pay down the outstanding borrowings under the Bank Credit Facility;

+ we are generally prohibited from declaring or making directly or indirectly any payment in the form of a
stock repurchzse or payment of a cash dividend or from incurring any obligation to do so; and

+ the borrowing rate in US dollars, which was increased effective as of February 1, 2008, will remain
LIBOR plus 2.75% or the Base Rate (the higher of the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.50% and Prime) plus
1.25% (through the end of the then-current interest period).

From and afier the July 2008 amendment, we will continue to owe and pay fees on the unused amount available
under the Bank Credit Facility as if the maximum outstanding amount was $160.0 million. Prior to the July 2008
-amendment, fees on the unused amount were based on a $250.0 million outstanding maximum amount. We paid the
lenders an aggregate fee of approximately $1.9 million for entering into these 2008 amendments.

As of June 30, 2008, we had outstanding borrowings of $75.0 million, outstanding letters of credit of
$26.3 million and borrowing availability of approximately $58.7 million under the Bank Credit Facility. Taking into
account the new liquidity covenants included in the July 2008 amendment to the Bank Credit Facility described
above, we believe this availability and unrestricted cash balances of approximately $75.0 million at June 30, 2008
will be sufficient to support our operations over the next twelve months.

Mortgage Financing

On May 7, 2008, 16 of our wholly-owned subsidiaries (the “Borrowers™) incurred mortgage indebtedness in the
aggregate principal amount of approximately $106.7 million from Capmark Bank (“Lender”) as lender and servicer
pursuant to 16 separate cross-collateralized, cross-defaulted mortgage loans (collectively, the “morigage loans™).
Shortly after the closing, the Lender assigned the mortgage loans to Fannie Mae. The mortgage loans bear interest at
a variable rate equal to tae “Discount” (which is the difference between the loan amount and the price at which
Fannie Mae is able to sell its three-month rolling discount mortgage backed securities) plus 2.27% per annum,
require monthly principal payments based on a 30-year amortization schedule {using an interest rate of 5.92%) and
mature on June 1, 2013,

In connection with thi: mortgage loans, we entered into interest rate protection agreements that provide for
payments to us in the evant the LIBOR rate exceeds 5.6145%, pursuant to an interest rate cap purchased on May 7,
2008, by each Borrower from SMBC Derivative Products Limited. The LIBOR rate approximates, but is not exactly ;
equal to the “Discount” sate that is used in determining the interest rate on the mortgage loans; consequently, in the .
event the “Discount” ratz exceeds the LIBOR rate, payments under the interest rate cap may not afford the
Borrowers complete interest rate protection. The Borrowers purchased the rate cap for an initial period of three years

for a cost of $0.3 million (including fees) and have placed in escrow the amount of $0.7 million to purchase
N -




additional interest rate caps to cover years four and five of the mortgage loans, which amount will be returned to us
in the event the mortgage loans are prepaid prior to the end of the third loan year.

Each mortgage loan is secured by a senior housing facility owned by the applicable Borrower (which facility also
secures the other 15 mortgage loans), as well as the interest rate cap described above. In addition, our management
agreement with respect to each of the facilities is subordinate to the mortgage loan encumbering such facility. In
connection with the mortgage loans, we received net proceeds of approximately $103.1 million (after payment of
lender fees, third party costs, escrows and other amounts), $53.0 million of which was used to pay down amounts
outstanding under our Bank Credit Facility. See Note 14 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
information.

STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Sunrise Senior Living, Inc., The S&P Smalicap 600 Index,
A New Peer Group And An Old Peer Group

$700

$500 1

—®— Sunrise Senlor Living, Inc. — A — S&P Smallcap 600

- - ©Q - -New Peer Group —5— 0id Peer Group

* 5100 invested on 12/31/02 1n stock or index-including reinvestment of dividends. Fiscal year ended December 31.

The New Peer Gfoup consists of Assisted Living Concepts Inc., Brookdale Senior Living Inc., Capital Senior
Living Corp., Emeritus Corp. and Five Star Quality Care Inc.

The Old Peer Group consisted of Capital Senior Living Corp. and three former public companies, American
Retirement Corporation, Beverly Enterprises, Inc. and Manor Care, Inc., which were no longer public companies at
the end of the measurement period. Consequently, the Old Peer Group excludes these companies for all periods
presented. :

12/02 12/03 12/04 12/05 12/06 12/07

- Sunrise Senior Living, Inc. 100,00 155.64 186.26 270.87 246.85 246.52
S&P Smallcap 600 100.00  138.79 17022 18330 211.01 21038
New Peer Group 100,00 20271 26944 42203 64030 ~431.09

Old Peer Group ' : ' 100.00  230.59 22196 40549 41725 38941



SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected consolidated financial data set forth below should be read in conjunction with “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ and our consolidated financial statements

and notes thereto appearing elsewhere herein.

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

STATEMENTS OF INCOMIZ DATA:

Operating revenues{2) .....ooeereerrercreneerrrerem e e e eenrens

Opcrating expenses(2)...

{Loss) income from operatlons .

Gain on the sale and dcvclopmmt of rcal estatc and
equity interests

Sunrise’s share of eamnings, retarn on investment in
unconsolidated communities and gain (loss) from
investments accounted for under profit-sharing
method ...

Net (loss) income

Net (loss) income per cormmon share(3)(5):

Basic

Diluted

BALANCE SHEET DATA:

Total CUITENE @SSELS ....oceevreeiiesveisrecreresrsrrersenensreeerrresmsassrrans
Total current Habilities......cvversveveuvreenrsinerererrreseeeeesrreseeens

Property and equipment, net.... ...ococvereeerveereneenecnes I

Property and equipment subjec: to a sales contract, net

Property and equipment subjec: to financing, net...............

Goodwill
Total assets
Total debt

Deposits related to properties subject to a sale contract .....

Liabilities related to properties accounted for under the
financing method ...

Deferred income tax hablhtles ............................................

Total liabilities

Stockholders’ equity ...

OPERATING AND OTHER DATA:

Cash dividends per common share........c..ccoeerenvnnnenns
Communities (at end of period):

Consolidated COMMUNILES............cocoveeiienvinriesresisrnsessaese.
Communities in unconsolidated ventures..........ccoeeveeenee,
Communities managed for third party owners...................

Total
Resident capacity:

Consclidated coOmmUNItES. ......ccoiveee e eeeeeeeemee e
Communities in unconsolidated ventures...........corevevvvenens
Communities managed for third party owners........cce.ece.

Total

10

December 31
2006 2005 2003
2007 (M(2X¥3) {4){(5) 2004 {(6)
(Restated) (Restated)  (Restated) (Restated)

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

$ 1,652,550 § 1,651,081 § 1,511,022 § 1,268,361 $§ 998,148

1,947,762 1,724,162 1476351 1285525 1,008,400
(295,212) (73,081) 34,671 (17,164) (10,252)
105,081 51,347 81,723 14,025 51,276
108,969 42,845 12,615 (70) 962
(70,275) 15,284 83,064 (3,467) 11,793

$ (141) 8 031 § 200 $ (0.08) $ 0.28
(141) 0.30 1.74 (0.08) 0.23

$ 529964 § 361998 $ 326888 § 282,524 $§ 204,726
646,311 451,982 280,684 203,998 137,526
656,211 609,385 494,069 359,070 - 509,833

— 193,158 255,231 473,485 459,187

58,871 62,520 64,174 28,988 —
169,736 218,015 153,328 121,825 104,475
1,798,597  1,848301 1,587,785 1,506,453 1,501,608
253,388 190,605 248,396 191,666 270,332

— 240,367 324,782 599,071 540,382

54,317 66,283 64,208 24,247 —
82,605 78,632 70,638 60,692 63,155
1,214,826  1201,078  1,094209 1,139,750 1,086,236
573,563 630,708 480,864 365,122 386,278

$ — 3 — 3 — 3 — § —
63 62 59 57 63

198 180 153 122 118

178 180 186 183 175

439 422 398 362 356

8,683 8,646 7,980 7,943 8,539
22,245 20,433 16,485 10,929 10,561
22,989 23,091 26,208 24237 23 651
53917 52,170 50,673 43,109 42,751




(1}

2

3

4

&)

(6

In September 2006, we acquired 100% of the equity interests in Trinity, a large provider of bospice services
in the United States. The operating results of Trinity are included in our consolidated statements of income

beginning September 13, 2006.

In 2006, Five Star bought out 18 management contracts and we received $134.7 million related to
their buyout. We also wrote off $25.4 in unamortized management contract intangible assets, In 2005,
Five Star bought cut 12 management contracts and we received $83.0 million related to their buyout.
We also wrote off $14.6 million in unamertized management contract intangible assets.

In February 2006, we completed the redemption of our remaining 5.25% convertible subordinated
notes due February 1, 2009 through the issuance of common stock. Prior to the redemption date,
substantially all of the approximately $120.0 million principal amount of the notes outstanding at the
time the redemption was announced had been converted into approximately 6.7 million shares of
commeon stock. The conversion price was $17.92 per share in accordance with the terms of the
indenture governing the notes.

In May 20035, we acquired 100% of the equity interests in Greystone, a developer and manager of
CCRCs. The operating results of Greystone are included in our restated consolidated statement of
income beginning May 10, 2005.

In October 2005, we completed a two-for-one stock split in the form of a 100% stock dividend. As a
result of the stock split, each stockholder received one additional share of common stock for each
share on that date. All per share amounts have been adjusted to reflect the stock split for all periads
presented.

In March 2003, we completed the acquisition of all of the outstanding stock of Marriott Internatipnal,
Inc.’s wholly owned subsidiary, MSLS, which owns and operates senior independent full-service and
assisted living communities. The operating results of MSLS are included in our restated consolidated
statement of income beginning March 28, 2003.
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MANGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read together with the information contained in our consolidated financial
staternents, including the related notes, and other financial information appearing elsewhere herein.

Overview

Our long-range strategic objective is to grow our senior living business through a management services business
model that is built on long-term management contracts. Our four primary growth drivers consist of: (1)} generating
revenue growth from our existing operating portfolio of owned and managed communities; (2) adding additional
communities through new construction, primarily with venture partners; (3) generating profitable growth through
the delivery of hospice and other ancillary services; and (4) maximizing our return on our equity investment in
unconsolidated ventures and other invested capital.

We earn income prirnarily in the following wﬁys:
» management fees for operating communities, which can also include incentive management fees;
+ resident fees for communities that we own,
+ development and pre-opening fees related to the development of new Sunrise communities;
«  our share of income and losses for those communities in which we have an ownership interest;
+ recapitalizations and sales of communities by ventures in which we have an equity interest; and
= fees for hospice services.

At December 31, 2007, we operated 439 communities, including 402 communities in the United States,
12 communities in Canada, 17 communities in the United Kingdom and eight communities in Germany, with a total
resident capacity of approximately 54,000. We owned or had an ownership interest in 261 of these communities and
178 are managed for third parties. In addition, at December 31, 2007, we provided pre-opening management and
professional services to 44 communities under construction, of which 32 communities are in the United States, three
communities are in Canada, eight communities are in the United Kingdom, and one community is in Germany, with
a combined capacity for approximately 5,600 residents. During 2007, we opened 22 new communities with a
combined resident capacity of approximately 2,600 residents, which were developed by us.

Management of Communities

We manage and operate communities that are wholly owned by us, communities that are owned by
unconsolidated ventures in which we have a minority ownership interest and communities that are wholly owned by
third parties. For the coramunities that we manage for unconsolidated ventures and third parties, we typically are
paid a base managemen fee of approximately five to eight percent of the community’s revenue. In addition, in
certain management contracts, we have the opportunity to earn incentive management fees based on monthly or
yearly operating or cash flow results. See “Liguidity and Capital Resources” for a description of debt guarantecs,
operating deficit guaranvees and credit support arrangements provided to certain of our unconsolidated ventures or
third-party owners. For the communities that we operate that are wholly owned, we receive resident and ancillary
fees.

Development of Communities
In order to grow the operating portfolio that we manage, we also develop senior living communities. We typically

develop senior living communities in partmership with others. We also develop wholly owned senior living
communities for ourselves, which we expect to sell to ventures or third-party owners before construction is
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completed: We believe we have maintained a disciplined approach to site selection and refinement of our opersting
model, first introduced more than 20 years ago, and are constantly searching for ways to improve our commungies.

We enter into development ventures in order to reduce our initial capital requirements, while enabling us to enter
into long-term management agreements that are intended to provide us with a continuing stream of revenue. When
development is undertaken in partmership with others, our venture partners provide significant cash equity
investments, and we take a minority interest in such ventures. Additionally, non-recourse third-party construction
debt is obtained to provide the majority of funds necessary to complete development. In addition to third-party debt,
we may provide financing necessary to complete the construction for these development ventures. At Decembar 31,
2007 and June 30, 2008, there were 30 and 25 communities, respectively, under construction held in unconsoliflated
ventures. See “Liquidity and Capital Resources™ for a description of guarantees provided to certain of our
development ventures.

We receive fees from our development ventures for services related to site selection, zoning, design and -
construction oversight. These fees are recognized in “Gain on the sale and development of real estate and equity
interests” in our consolidated statements of income for communities where we owned the land prior to sale to 8
venture or third party, and in “Professional fees from development, marketing and other” when we do not initially
own the land. Services provided for employee selection, licensing, training and marketing efforts are recognized as
operating revenue and are included in “Professional fees from development, marketing and other” in the
consolidated statements of income. See “Liquidity and Capital Resources” for a description of development
completion guarantees provided to certain of our development ventures. We also receive fees from our ventures
and/or venture partners as compensation for either brokering the sale of venture assets or the sale of the majorify
partner’s equity interest in a venture.

From time to time we also develop wholly owned senior living communities. At December 31, 2007, we had
seven wholly owned communities under construction with a resident capacity of approximately 690 residents. At
June 30, 2008, we had six wholly owned communities under construction with a resident capacity of approximately
571 residents. We expect most of these communities to be sold to a venture or third party before construction i§
completed or, in some cases, upon receipt of a certificate of occupancy. We provide funding for the constructicn, not
otherwise financed by construction loans, and capitalize the development costs associated with construction prtor to
the contribution of the development community to a venture or third-party owner. For communities that remain
wholly owned, we often recognize operating losses during the initial one to two years prior to the community
achieving stabilization.

Senior Living Condominium Developments

‘We began to develop senior living condominium projects in 2004. By the first quarter of 2008, we had
discontinued or suspended the development of alt but one of our condominium development projects. See
“Business — Significant 2007 Developments — Senior Living Condominium Developments”.

Special Independent Committee Inquiry and Accounting Review

The following is a summary of the results of the Special Independent Committee inquiry. For a full descnption of
the adjustments made to restate the 2005 and prior financial statements, refer to our 2006 Form 10-K.

In December 2006, our Board of Directors established a Special Independent Committee to review certain
allegations made by the Service Employees International Union (“SEIU™) that questioned the timing of certain stock
option grants to our directors and officers over a period of time, and stock sales by certain directors in the monghs
prior to the May 2006 announcement of our Accounting Review. In March 2007, our Board of Directors exparided
the scope of the Special Independent Committee’s mandate to include the review of facts and circumstances refating
to the historical accounting treatment of certain categories of transactions in the restatement, and to develop
recommendations regarding any remedial measures, including those pertaining to internal controls and processes
over financial reporting, that it may determine to be warranted. The Special Independent Committee deemed it
necessary to understand the underlying causes for the pending restatement in order to evaluate the SEIU’s
allegations related to stock sales by certain directors in the months prior to our announcement of the Accounting
Review.
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On September 28, 2007, we disclosed that the Special Independent Committee had concluded the fact-finding
portion of its inquiry with respect to three issues. The first involved the timing of certain stock option grants. The
second involved the facts and circumstances with respect to two significant categories of errors in the pending
restatement relating to real estate accounting for the effect of preferences provided to the buyer in a partial sale,
certain of our guarantees: and commitments on the timing of sale accounting and recognition of income upon sale of
real estate, and accounting for allocation of profits and losses in those ventures in which our partners received a
preference on cash flow. The third involved whether directors and executive officers traded in our commen stock
when in possession of non-public knowledge of possible accounting errors related to these real estate transactions
" prior to our May 2006 announcement of our Accounting Review. With respect to these three issues, the Special
Independent Committee found;

+ no evidence of backdating or other intentional misconduct with respect to the grants on the 38 grant dates
examined, including those specifically questioned by the SEIU, or the possible errors identified by the
Special Independent Committee in the accounting for stock optiens;

* o evidence of ar intention to reach an inappropriate accounting result with respect to the two categories of
real estate accounting errors reviewed, no knowledge that these accounting errors were incorrect at the time
they were made, and no evidence that information was concealed from review by the external auditors at the
time the accounting judgments were made; and

+ no evidence that any director or officer who traded in the months prior to the announcement of the
Accounting Revizw had material non-public information relating to either of these two categories of real
estate accounting errors.

The Special Independent Committee identified a number of accounting issues under GAAP in connection with
certain of the option grants reviewed, As a result of the Special Independent Committee’s findings, we concluded
that upintentional errors were made in connection with the accounting for a September 1998 repricing and certain
other stock option grants. These errors were corrected as part of the restatement of our historical consolidated
financial statements.

In September 28, 2007, we also disclosed that the investigation of the Special Independent Committee was
continuing with respect io certain other categories of restatement itemns and issues, primarily related to certain
accruals and reserves. In the course of reviewing the accounting that led to the restatement, the Special Independent
Committee identified instances of potential inappropriate accounting with respect to certain provisions into and/or
releases from certain judgmental accruals and reserves. Management was also made aware through questions from
an employee of possible instances of inappropriate accounting with respect to one judgmental reserve. Management
reviewed this information with the Special Independent Committee which then reviewed the judgmental reserve in
question as part of its inquiry. Both of these events led to the Special Independent Committee’s decision to
investigate the other categories of restatement items and issues, which was not complete on September 28, 2007.
However, in order to provide information to the marketplace on the Special Independent Committee’s findings as
promptly as possible, the Special Independent Committee made the decision to complete the fact finding related to
the SEIU’s allegations and make the September 28, 2007 disclosure to report the results of that fact finding while
continuing its inquiry with respect to certain judgmental accruals and reserves.

On December 20, 2007, we announced the completion of the fact-finding portion of the Special Independent
Committee inquiry with respect to the last issue being reviewed by it. The Special Independent Committee identified
instances of inappropriate accounting with respect to certain provisions into and/or releases from the following three
judgmental accruals and reserves in certain quarters during the period of time from the third quarter of 2003 through
the fourth quarter of 2005: (1) the reserve for health and dental insurance claims associated with our self-insurance
program (“health and deatal reserve™); (2) the corporate bonus accrual; and (3) the reserve for abandoned projects.
The accounting for these reserves involves judgments and estimates. The Special Committee determined that in
some instances the judgments were not supportable under GAAP and the provisions into and releases from the
reserves were not made on a censistent basis, and therefore, involved inappropriate accounting. The Special
Independent Committee did not reach any conclusions with respect to the underlying reason or reasons for any
specific instance of inappropriate accounting. The Special Independent Committee also did not specifically quantify
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each instance of inappropriate accounting that it had identified. As disclosed in Item 9A of our 2006 Form 10-K, our
management identified several material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting that our
management believed centributed to the accounting errors, including those related to accruals and reserves, that
were corrected as part of the restatement. These included, among others: a lack of sufficient personnel with an
appropriate level of accounting knowledge, experience and training to support the size and complexity of our
organizational structure and financial reporting requirements; a failure to set the appropriate tone around accounting
and control consciousness; a lack of appropriate oversight of accounting, financial reporting and internal contrel
matters; insufficient analysis and documentation of the application of GAAP to real estate and other transactions; a
lack of written procedures for identifying and appropriately applying GAAP to the various categories of items éhat
were corrected in the restatement; a lack of written procedures for monitoring and adjusting balances related ta
certain accruals and reserves; a lack of effective accounting reviews for routine and non-routine transactions atd
accounts; and an inability to close our books in a timely and accurate manner.

Before the Special Independent Committee completed its fact-finding, we had determined to restate two of the
accruals and reserves — the health and dental reserve and the reserve for abandoned projects — due to accounting
errors unrelated to the inappropriate accounting subsequently identified by the Special Independent Committee,
Once the Special Independent Committee had identified certain instances of inappropriate accounting, and had
completed its investigation, it reviewed its findings with our new financial management teamn. Our new financial
management team was then charged with reviewing, in detail, all of the affected accounts and with quantifying and
recording all the necessary adjustments to properly restate the accounts. During this process, our new financial
management team did not specifically identify or categorize the adjustments between “inappropriate accounting”
and other required adjustments within the identified categories. As a result of our Accounting Review, we recorded
“total adjustments™ (in which there was no distinct accounting impact from any instances of “inappropriate
accounting” because any such impact was already subsumed within the previously required adjustments (for
example, required changes in methodology)) to the health and dental reserve, the corporate bonus accrual and the
reserve for abandoned projects, which are reflected in the restated financial statements. The total adjustment to the
health and dentat reserve and the corporate bonus accrual are reflected in the “Other Adjustments” restatement
category in our 2006 Form 10-K. The total adjustments for the reserve for abandoned project costs, which was’
eliminated in its entirety in the restatement, is included in the “Accounting for Costs of Real Estate Projects”
restatement category in our 2006 Form 10-K.

For information regarding remedial issues recommended by the Special Independent Committee and adopted by
the Board of Directors, please refer to Item 9A in our 2007 Form 10-K. '

Significant Developments
See “Business™ for a discussion of significant developments in 2007 and 2008,

Restatement Related to Statement of Cash Flows Classifications and Accounting for Lease Payments and
Non-Refundable Entrance Fees for Twe Continuing Care Retirement Communities

As described in Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements, the 2007 consolidated statement of cash flows
has been restated primarily to reflect the proper classification of transactions with unconsolidated communities,
assumption of debt related to sales transactions and the classification of gain resulting from sales transactions. The
effect of the restatement on the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows was to decrease net cash provided by
operating activities from $235.0 million to $128.5 million, to increase net cash used in investing activities from
$235.5 million to $248.5 million and to increase net cash provided by financing activities from $56.7 million te
$176.3 million. We also bave in our 2007 financial statements corrected how we account for lease payments and
non-refundable entrance fees for two continuing care retirement communities. The effect of the restatement was to
decrease retained earnings at January 1, 2005 by approximately $7.5 million: and to reduce 2005 and 2006 net
income by approximately $4.0 million and $5.1 million, respectively. We have restated our financial statements to
correct these errors in accordance with SFAS No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections.
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Results of Operations
We currently classify our consolidated operating revenues as follows:

« management fees related to services provided to operating and pre-opened communities for unconsolidated
ventures and third-party owners;

« professional fees from development, marketing and other services;

» resident fees for consolidated communities;

« hospice and other ancillary fees; and

- reimbursed contract service revenue related to unconsolidated ventures and third party owners,
Operating expenses are classified into the following categories:

« development and venture expense for site selection, zoning, community design, construction management
and financing incurred for development communities;

+ community expense for our consolidated communities, which includes labor, foed, marketing and other
direct community expense;

* hospice and other ancillary expense;
* lease expense for certain consolidated communities;

+ general and administrative expense related to headquarters and regional staff expenses and other
administrative costs; : :

+ loss on financial guarantees and other contracts;
+ provision for doubtful accounts;
+ impairment of communities;
= impairment of goodwill and intangible assets;
» depreciation and arnortization;
+ write-off of abandoned projects;
+ write-off of unamortized contract costs; and
» reimbursed contract service expense related to unconsolidated ventures and third-party owners.
Since 1997, we have entered into various real estate transactions, the most significant of which involved either
(i) the sale of a partial interest in a development venture in which we retained an interest and entered into a
management contract or (ii) the sale of mature senior living properties or a partial interest in such properties to a
third party where we simultaneously entered into a management contract. In most cases, we retained some form of !
‘continuing involvernent, including providing preferences to the buyer of the real estate, an obligation to complete .
the development, operating deficit funding obligations, support obligations or, in some instances, options or |
|
|

obligations to reacquire :he property or the buyer’s interest in the property. We account for these transactions in
accordance with FASB Statement No. 66, Accounting for Sales of Real Estate (“SFAS 66”).
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Qur results of operations for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 were as follows:

Percent Change

Year Ended December 31, 2007 vs. 2006 vs.
(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2007 2006 2005 2006 2005
: {Restated) (Restated)
Operating revenue: _
Management fees.......ccovvinviiiiniiinsieenee e 127,830 § 117,228 § 104,823 9.0% 1i.8%
Buyout fees 1,626 134,730 83,036 (98.8)% 62.3%
Professional fees from development,
marketing and other..........ccveerverineeiseressennnnes 38,855 - 28,553 24920 36.1% 14.6%
Resident fees for consolidated communities........ 402,396 381,709 341,610 5.4% 11.7%
Hospice and other ancillary services..........cc.ce... 125,796 76,882 44641 63.6% 72.2%
Reimbursed contract Services ........coveevcirenenne 956,047 911,979 911,992 4.8% —_
Total operating revenue .........cc.coeeveveeseeeesecrernees 1,652,550 1,651,081 1,511,022 0.1% 9.3%
Operating expenses:
Development and venture expense ...........occeeeeee 79,203 69,145 41,064 14.5% 68.4%
Community expense for consolidated :
communities 290,203 276,833 251,058 4.8% 16.3%
Hospice and other ancillary services expense...... 134,634 74,767 45051 80.1% 66.0%
Community lease exXpense ............cverrereeaerrrasienn 68,994 61,991 57,946 11.3% 1.0%
General and administrative... 187,325 131,473 106,601 42.5% 23.3%
Accounting Restatement and Spcc1al
Independent Committee inquiry, SEC
investigation and pending stockholder
litigation 51,707 2,600 -— 1888.7% N/A
Loss on financial guarantees and other
contracts 22.005 89,676 — (155% NA
Provision for doubtful accounts.. 9,564 14,632 1,675 (34.6)% 773.6%
Impairment of owned commumtles S 7,641 15,730 2,472 (51.4)% 536.3%
Impairment of goodwill and lnta.nglblc asscts ..... 56,729 — — NA N/A
Write-off of abandoned development projects..... 28,430 1,329 902 2039.2% 47.3%
Depreciation and amortization...........ccceeeneceennes 55,280 48,648 42981 13.6% 13.2%
Write-off of unamortized confract costs .............. — 25,359 14,609 (100.0)%  73.6%
Reimbursed contract SETVICES ......oovevivnceivnreenns 956,047 911,979 911,992 4.8% 0.0%
Total operating eXpenses .....covocceeerercererreenevnesraes 1,947,762 1,724,162 1,476,351 13.0% 16.8%
(Loss) income from operations .........cooccevueeeeenens (295,212) (73,081) . 34,671 304.0% (310.8)%
Other non-operating income (expense):
Interest income 9,894 9,577 6,231 3.3% 53.7%
Interest expense {6,647 (6,204) (11,882 7.1%  (47.8)%
{Loss) gain on investments ... - (5,610) 2,036 (100.0)% (375.5)%
Other (expense) income.. (6,089 6706 3,105 (190.8)% 116.0%
Total other non—operatmg income (cxpensc) (2,842) 4,469 {510 (163.6)% (97%.3)%
Gain on the sale and development of real estate
and eqUILY INTErEStS .o.vuuvrrremrererererereearesrsesererenene 105,081 51,347 81,723 104.6% (37.2)%
Sunrise’s share of earnings and retum on
investment in unconsolidated communities........ 108,947 43,702 13,472 1493% 2244%
Gain (loss) from investments accounted for
under the profit sharing method............coecoreecnn 22 (857) (837 (102.6)% 0.0%
Minority interests 4,470 6916 6721 (354)% 2.9%
{Loss) income before provision for income
taxes (79,534) 32,496 135220 (344.8)% (76.0)%
Benefit from (provision for) income taxes... 9,259 (17.212) (52,156 (153.8)% (6¢.0)%
Net (1088) iCOME cuvvierenreevreiecrcne e reeneneene by 15284 § 83,064 (559.8)% (84.6)%
Basic net (loss) income per share ......cccoccevieenene (141) § 031 § 200 (554.8% (84.5)%
Diluted net (loss) income per share .................... (1.41) 0.30 1.74 (570.0)% (82.8)%
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The following table s.ummarizes our portfolio of operating communities at December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

Percent Change
As of December 31, 2007 vs. 2006 vs.
2007 2006 2005 2006 2005

Total COMITIUDILIES ..ocvvevivicirirsreersiesrnresssntessasnerssresassaessransassses

Consolidated ........cccvvvieeerierer e e s 63 62 59 1.6% 5.1%
Unconsolidated .........ccovvevvecreneceimeniier et eeesieinsines 168 180 153 10.0% 17.6%
MANAZEd .......ccoevecieici e eieme e e s en et 178 180 186 (1.1)% (3.2)%
TOAL. iveiiicrenecrirrrvierens s s s st s s arae st sanrsnesssaerrnen ot sanarens 439 __ 422 398 4.0% 6.0%
Resident Capacity .......covveecreermrnrenrncsesesenesrmnemesesererenerenes. 33,017 32,170 50,073 3.3% 3.0%

In 2007, we continued to capitalize on our brand and management services experience by entering into new
management and professional services contracts internationally and domestically. The number of communities
managed for unconsolidated ventures and third-party owners increased from 360 at December 31, 2006 to 376 at
December 31, 2007, or £%. In 2007, we increased the number of consolidated communities from 62 to 63.

The number of communities managed for unconsolidated ventures and third-party owners increased from 339 in
2005 to 360 in 2006, or 5%. In 2006, we increased the number of consolidated communities from 59 to 62 due to the
acquisition of three CCE.Cs, the opening of one community that was later sold to a venture, the disposition of two
acquired communities and the acquisition of our non-operating community in New Orleans, Louisiana, that was
damaged during Hurricane Katrina, which was previously owned by an unconsolidated venture. Additionally, 24
managerment contracts were terminated. In September 2006, we acquired Trinity as the first step in our strategy to
offer hospice services to our residents and their families.

We had a net loss of $(70.3) million in 2007, or $(1.41) per share (diluted). Net income was $15.3 million in 2006,
or $0.30 per share (diluted) and $83.1 million, or $1.74 per share (diluted) in 2005. Large and unusual items
included in net (loss)/income for the three years included the following:

(In millions) 2007 2006 _2008
Buyout of Five Star maragement contracts... e — 3135 5 83
Write-off of intangible assets associated w1th buyout of Fwe-Star management

contracts — (25) (15)
Loss on guarantees relatzd to our Germany VEDUIE. .. ..ovvrvvee e et (16} (50) —
Loss on guarantees relatzd to The Fountains venture.......mveneiniininenennc e, — (22) -
Impairment of Trinity goodwill and intangible assels . ..ovvioeeccreeecceceiinreenne (57 —_ —
Accounting Restatement, Special Independent Committee inquiry, SEC

investigation and pending stockholder litigation ..o veiisiveeninnisimirnin e (52) (3) —
Loss on guarantees relatzd to the condominium Project.. ... cercsseesinersnarinenns (6) (17 —
Write-off of other condeminium Projects ..o s e ) — —
Write-down of Aston Gardens and other equity INVESIMENIS ..covvervvereerecrencneeinmccennens ____(23) — ——
Net impact on (loss) income from operations............. SESURTROTORORRR § W ir ) 18 68
Real estate gains from p"lOI’ years recognized in  the current penod ............................ BS 35 81
Venture recapitalization: .. . 57 48

Net impact on (loss) income before beneﬁt from (provns:on for) income taxcs .......... 3_(35 § 101 ng
Operating Revenue
Management fees

2007 Compared to 2006

Management fees revznue was $127.8 million in 2007 compared to $117.2 million in 2006, an increase of
$10.6 million, or 9.0%. This increase was primarily comprised of:

»  $7.2 million from fees associated with existing North American communities primarily due to increases in
rates;
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$3.1 million of incremental revenues from existing international communities;

$3.8 million of incremental revenues from 31 new communities managed in 2007 for unconsolidated
ventures and third parties; -

$5.1 million in incremental incentive management fees; and

$6.6 million decrease due to contract terminations.

2006 Compared to 2005

Management fees revenue was $117.2 million in 2006 compared to $104.8 million in 2005, an increase of
. $12.4 million, or 11.8%. This increase was primarily comprised of:

$6.9 million of incremental revenues in 2006 from 31 management contracts obtained in 2005 from the
Greystone and The Fountains acquisitions that were included for a full year in 2006;

$7.7 million from increased fees associated with existing communities due to increases in rates and
occupancy;

$4.8 million of incremental revenues from 36 new communities managed in 2006 for unconsolidated
ventures and third parties that were included for a full year in 2006;

$5.1 million of incremental revenues from international communities;
$2.3 million decrease in guarantee amortization due to the expirations of guarantees in 2006; and

$9.7 million decrease due to contract terminations in 2005.

Buyout fees

In 2007, two management contracts were bought out for a fee of $1.6 million. In 2006, Five Star Quality Care,
Inc. (“Five Star™) bought out 18 contracts for a total buyout fee of $134.7 million. In 2005, Five Star bought out
12 contracts for a total buyout fee of $83.0 million.

Professional fees from development, marketing and other

Professional fees from development, marketing and other were as follows:

{In millions) o ) 2007 2006 2005

INOTE AINETICA ..vvvevveeerereereciseieecs s entesesses e s tessesmsmsassesesmentsesentenssesaesesensenneresnsen § 82 $ 45 S 29
INEEIMAtIONAL....ccvviiiii vt rse e s sssas s s e e s ssesreeseessesssnssensrssesenerses 18,9 12.5 4.8
GIEYSIONE. ceveeecerceecrerresrsreresessrsssnsesesssstressnvasrssassrassssnssrensassarssrassrsesorerscassssssvers __LL8 11.6 .2

§380  §286 S 249

2007 Compared to 2006

Professional fees from development, marketing and other revenue was $38.9 million in 2007 compared to
$28.6 million in 2006, an increase of $10.3 million, or 36.1% due primarily to the following:

$5.2 million in fees paid to us by our ventures or venture partners as compensation for either brokering the
sale of venture assets or the sale of the majority partner’s equity interest in a venture;

$3.2 million in North American and international development fees from 23 communities under development
in 2007 compared to 17 communities under development in 2006; and
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«  $2.6 million of fees generated by a Greystone seed capital venture. These fees are earned when the initial
development services are successful and permanent financing for the project is obtained.

2006 Compared to 2005

Professional fees from development, marketing and other revenue was $28.6 million in 2006 compared to
$24.9 million in 2005, an increase of $3.7 million, or 14.6% primarily due to $2.8 million of fees paid to us by our
ventures or venture partriers as compensation for either brokering the sale of venture assets or the sale of the
majority partner’s equity interest in a venture.

Resicfent Jees for consolidated communities
2007 Compared to 2006

Resident fees for consolidated communities were $402.4 million in 2007 compared to $381.7 miltion in 2006, an
increase of $20.7 millior, or 5.4%. This increase was primarily comprised of:

« $17.3 million from existing communities due to an increase in the average daily rate and fees for other
services; and

*  $3.4 million from. the acquisition of one community.
2006 Compared to 2005

Resident fees for consolidated communities were $381.7 million in 2006 compared to $341.6 million in 2003, an
increase of $40.1 millior, or 11.7%. This increase was primarily comprised of:

= $37.6 million from existing consolidated communities of which $34.2 million is due to increases in rate and
$4.3 million is due to increases in occupancy;

* 34.1 million from the acquisition of three consolidated communities; and
*  $1.3 million decr:ase from the disposition of two consolidated communities in 2006.
Hospice and other ancillary services

In the UK and Germanuy, our wholly-owned subsidiaries provide resident care services to residenis of
communities owned by joint ventures. Revenues were $13.6 million, $4.8 million and $0.6 million in 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively. In 2007, there was an average of 12 care companies operating the first half of the year and
an average of 16 care companies operating the second half of the year. In 2006, there was an average of eight care
companies operating during the year and in 2005 there were three care companies operating during the year.

North American operations include revenues for hospice care from our Trinity acquisition; private duty home
health services provided by our At Home venture, and providing resident care services to residents of communities
owned by joint ventures or third party owners managed by Sunrise. We provide care services in states we operate in
where the care services providers are licensed separately from the room and board provider. Revenues were
$112.2 million, $72.1 millicn and $44.0 million in 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively. In 2007, the $40.1 million
increase was primarily driven by the full year of operation for Trinity, partially offset by the June 2007 disposition
of Sunrise At Home. In 2006, the $28.1 million increase was primarily due to Trinity acquired in September 2006
and the full vear results of resident care revenues from care providers acquired with the Fountains acquisition in
2005. The majority of hespice services are paid for through Medicare, with payments subject to specific limitations.

20




Reimbursed contract services
Reimbursed contract services were $956.0 million in 2007 and $912.0 million in both 2006 and 2005. The
increase of 4.8% in 2007 was due primarily to a 4.4% increase in the number of communities managed, from 360 to

376. There was no change in 2006 to 2005 primarily due to the fact that, while the number of managed communities
declined due to the Five Star contract buyouts; this decline was offset by acquisitions and new community opepings.

Operating Expenses
Development and venture expense

2007 Compared to 2006

Development and venture expense was $79.2 million in 2007 as compared to $69.1 million in 2006. The increase
in development and venture expense of $10.1 million, or 14.5%, was primarily comprised of $8.9 million in salaries
and benefits due primarily to an increase in the number of communities under development from 39 at December 31,
2006 10 44 at December 31, 2007 and an increase in the number of employees in the North American developmaent
organization, from 162 at December 31, 2006 to 221 at December 31, 2007.

2006 Compared to 2005

Development and venture expense was $69.1 million in 2006 as compared to $41.1 million in 2005. The increase
in development and venture expense of $28.1 million, or 68.4%, was primarily comprised of:

»  $13.0 million from activity of Greystone that was included for a full year in 2006;

» $10.0 million from North American development There were 29 North American communities under
development in 2006 compared to 28 in 2005; and

»  $3.0 million from European development. The increase was primarily due to continuing development in the
United Kingdom and the weakening of the U.S. dollar against the British pound and Euro from 2005 to 2006.

Community expense for consolidated communities
2007 Compared to 2006

Community expense for consolidated communities was $290.2 million in 2007 as compared to $276.8 million in
2006. The increase in community and ancillary expense of $13.4 million, or 4.8%, was primarily comprised of;

» $11.4 million increase from existing communities resulting primarily from increased labor costs; and
*  $2.0 million increase from the acquisition of one community.
2006 Cotnpared to 2005

Community expense for consolidated communities was $276.8 million in 2006 as compared to $251.1 millign in
2005. The increase in community and ancillary expense of $25.7 million, or 10.3%, was primarily compnsed oft

» $22.8 miilion from existing communities resulting primarily from increased labor costs;
*  $4.0 million from the acquisition of three comimunities;

*  $1.0 million decrease from the closing of two communities in 2005,
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Hospice and other ancillary services

In the UK and Germany, our wholly-owned subsidiaries provide resident care services to residents of
communities owned by joint ventures. Expenses (primarily labor and related costs) were $15.3 million, $6.0 million
and $1.1 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. In 2007, there was an average of 12 care companies
operating the first half of the year and an average of 16 care companies operating the second half of the year. In
2006, there was an average of eight care companies operating during the year and in 2005 there were three care
companies operating during the year,

North American costs include iabor, variable patient costs, and administrative costs to provide these services for
hospice, private duty home health services and assistance with activities of daily living. Expenses were
$119.3 million, $68.8 million and $44.0 millicn in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The increase in 2007 was
driven by the full year results of Trinity and higher care services costs due to increased volume, partially offset by
the reduction in Sunrise At Home due to the disposition. The increase in costs in 2006 was driven by the Trinity
acquisition in September and higher care service costs due to increased volume.

Community lease expense
2007 Compared to 2006

Community lease expense was $69.0 million in 2007 as compared to $62.0 million in 2006. The increase in
community lease expense of $7.0 million, or 11.3%, was primarily a result of new international communities and
increases in contingent rznt. Contingent rent was $8.2 million in 2007 as compared to $6.5 million in 2006.

2006 Compared to 2005

Comimunity lease expense was $62.0 million in 2006 as compared to $57.9 million in 2005. The increase in
community lease expense of $4.1 million, or 7.0%, was primarily a result of increases in contingent rent. Contingent
" rent was $6.5 million in 2006 as compared to $4.8 million in 2005,

General and administrative
2007 Compared to 2006

General and administrative expense was $187.3 million in 2007 as compared to $131.5 million in 2006. The
increase in general and administrative expense of $55.8 million, or 42.5%, was primarily comprised oft

*  $29.2 million increase in bonus expense primarily relating to gains at one of our ventures. During 2007, our
first UK venture in which we have a 20% equity interest sold seven communities to a venture in which we
have a 10% interest. Primarily as a result of the gains on these asset sales recorded in the ventures, we
recorded equity in earnings in 2007 of approximately $75.5 million. When our UK and Germany ventures
were formed, we established a bonus pool in respect to each venture for the benefit of employees and others
responsible for the success of these ventures. At that time, we agreed with our partner that after certain return
thresholds were met, we would each reduce our percentage interests in venture distributions with such excess
to be used to fund these bonus pools. During 2007, we recorded bonus expense of $27.8 million in respect of
the bonus pool relating to the UK venture. These bonus amounts are funded from capital events and the cash
is retained by us in restricted cash accounts. As of December 31, 2007, approximately $18.0 million of this
amount was included in restricted cash. Under this bonus arrangement, no bonuses are payable until we
receive distributions at least equal to certain capital contributions and loans made by us to the UK and
Germany ventures. We currently expect this bonus distribution limitation will be satisfied in late 2008, at
which time bonus payrments would become payable. See “Business — Significant 2007 Developments —
Ventures”.

*  38.9 million increase in legal expense related to the Trinity OIG investigation, our exploration of strategic
alternatives and the settlement of litigation;
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» $2.6 miilion increase related to costs associated with potential acquisitions that we decided not to pursué;

= $9.0 million increase related to the implementation of outsourcing of our payroll processing function to
ADP; and

= $5.7 million increase in salaries, employee benefits and travel costs as the result of additional employees to
support 17 additional communities in 2007.

2006 Compared to 2005

General and administrative expense was $131.5 million in 2006 as compared to $106.6 million in 2005. The increase in

general and administrative expense of $24.9 million, or 23.3%, was primarily comprised of:

* $9.0 million in salaries, employee benefits, travel and related costs associated with additional employees to support

the increased number of communities we manage;
+  $5.0 million loss for possible damages related to the Trinity OIG investigation and gui tam action;
- %51 million‘ of expense to support new communities in Canada, the UK and Germany; and

» $1.8 million in transition costs for the terminated Five Star contracts.

Accounting Restatement, Special Independent Committee Inquiry, SEC investigation and pending stockholder litigation

During 2007, we incurred legal and accounting fees of approximately $51.7 million refated to the Accounting
Review, the Special Independent Committee inquiry, the SEC investigation and responding to various sharehokler
actions compared to approximately $2.6 million in 2006.

Loss on financial guarantees and other contracts

Loss on financial guarantees and other contracts was $22.0 million in 2007. We recorded an additional
$16.0 million loss related to operating deficit shortfalls in Germany discussed below due to changes in expected
cash flows due to slower than projected lease up and an additional $6.0 million loss related to construction cosk
overrun guarantees on a condominium project discussed below.

Loss on financial guarantees and other contracts in 2006 includes a $50.0 million loss related to funding of
operating deficit shortfalls in Germany and $22.4 million related to income support guarantees. Also in 2006, we
recorded a $17.2 million loss related to construction cost overrun guarantees on a condominium project. There were
no losses on financial guarantees in 2005. See “Business — Significant 2007 Developments”.

Provision for doubtful accounts
2007 Compared to 2006

Provision for doubtfil accounts was $9.6 miltion in 2007 as compared to $14.6 million in 2006. The decreage of
$5.0 million is primarily due to the write-off of $8.0 million of a receivable in 2006 resulting from prior fundings
under a guarantee which were deemed to be uncollectible partially offset by 2007 write-offs of operating advances
to four ventures.

2006 Compared to 2005
Provision for doubtful accounts was $14.6 million in 2006 as compared to $1.7 million in 2005. The increase of

$12.9 million is primarily due to $8.0 million write-off of a receivable in 2006 resulting from prior fundings under a
guarantee which were previously deemed to be collectible.
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Impairment of owned communities
Impairment losses of owned communities were $7.6 million in 2007, $15.7 million in 2006 and $2.5 million in
2005 related to communities whose carrying amounts are not fully recoverable. These owned communities were
primarily small sentor living communities acquired between 1996 and 2006.

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets was $56.7 million in 2007 related to the write-down of Trinity
goodwill and other Trinity intangibles. See “Business — Significant 2007 Developments — Trinity Hospice”.

Write-off of abandoned projects

The write-off of abandoned projects was $28.4 million in 2007 and $1.3 million in 2006. The increase primarily
relates to the $21.0 million write-off of capitalized development costs for four senior living condominium projects
due to adverse economic conditions.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense by segment was as follows:

(In thousands) 2007 2006 2005
NOTEH ATTIEEICA .o oo retrss s reeereenseesm e sesmeeensensnmsnmsnssmsansnnneeneneeers 3 47,843 8 44,115 § 40,751
Greystone............. 4,068 3,462 1,992
Internatlonal (mcludmgl anada) 886 240 198
Hospice... O OO PPOUOOO OOV PP .. £ X 831

MM&M&

Depreciation expense was $33.9 million, $27.1 million and $20.4 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively,
excluding depreciation expense related to properties subject to the deposit method, financing methed and profit-
sharing method of accounting. See note 7 to consolidated financial statements.

2007 Compared to 2006

Depreciation and amortization expense was $55.3 million in 2007 as compared to $48.6 million in 2006, The
increase in depreciation and amortization expense of $6.7 million, or 13.6%, was primarily comprised of
$5.8 million from fixed assets placed in service and the acceleration of certain asset lives, $4.0 million increase in
amortization due to an acceleration of certain management contract lives and $1.3 million from a full year of
amortization expense as the result of the Trinity acquisition in 2006. The increases were partially offset by a
$4.5 million decrease related to the sales of communities.

2006 Compared to 2005

Depreciation and amortization expense was $48.6 million in 2006 as compared to $43.0 million in 2005. The
increase in depreciation and amortization expense of $5.6 million, or 13.2%, was primarily comprised of
$6.7 million from fixed assets and software placed in service.

Write-off of unamortized contract costs

Write-off of unamortized contract costs was $25.4 million in 2006 and $14.6 million in 2005. These costs relate
to the buyout of Five Star management contracts.
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Other Non-operating Income (Expense)
2007 Compared to 2006

Interest income remained consistent between years as average cash balances remained relatively unchanged from
2006 to 2007, Included in interest income is $3.5 million and $2.1 million in 2007 and 2006, respectively, from our
insurance captive. Interest income from the insurance captive does not affect our net income but rather reduces
premiums paid by our communities, and therefore, is offset by reductions in commumty expense for consolidated
communities and reimbursed contract services. Interest expense increased $0.4 million in 2007 as compared 102006
due to an increase of $4.1 million related to mortgages and other debt and $0.3 million increase in loan amortization
partially offset by an increase of $4.0 million in capitalized interest due to increased development activity. Other
income (expense) decreased from income of $6.7 miltion in 2006 to a loss of $6.1 million in 2007 due primarily to a
$1.5 million performance termination cure payment made in 2007 and $1.7 million in foreign exchange losses as a
result of the weakening U.S. dollar against the British pound and the Euro in 2007, 2006 had income of $5.0 million
related to the settlement of the MSLS acquisition and $1.9 million of income camed from collection of a fully-
reserved receivable.

2006 Compared to 2005

Interest income increased $3.3 million in 2006 as compared to 2005, Interest expense decreased $5.7 million in
2006 compared to 2005 as a result of lower outstanding debt resulting from the redemption of our 5.25% convértible
subordinated notes in 2006 and decreased borrowings from Sunrise REIT, which was partlally offset by increaged
borrowings under our Bank Credit Facility and higher mortgages and notes payable.

During 2006, we had a $5.6 million loss on investments as compared to a gain on investments of $2.0 millioh in
2005, Tn 2006, we wrote down a $5.6 million note receivable due to non-collectability. In 2005, we realized a gam
of $2.0 million on the sale of our investment in Sunrise REIT debentures.

Other income increased approximately $3.6 million in 2006 from 2005 primarily as a result of $5.0 million ¢f
other income recorded in conjunction with our purchase of MSLS, which was partially offset by foreign exchagge
losses.

Gain on the Sale and Development of Real Estate and Equity Interests .
Gain on the sale and development of real estate and equity interests fluctuates depending on the timing of

dispositions of communities and the satisfaction of certain operating contingencies and guarantees. Gains in 2007,
2006 and 2005 are as follows (in millions}):

December 31,

2007 _2006 2005
Properties accounted for under basis of performance of services......ccocoerceeree.3 3.6 $ 1.8 8 06
Properties accounted for previously under financing method..........ccoocvnsinicinens. 32,8
Properties accounted for previously under deposit method...........cooeveniivniinene. 524 353 81.3
Land sales... 5.7 54 (02)
Sales of eqmty mterests and other sales ..................................................................... 10.6 88 -—
Total gains On Sale ..o $ 1051 $£.513 § 817

During 2007, 2006 and 2005, we recognized pre-tax gains of approximately $85.2 million, $35.3 million and
$81.3 million, respectively, related to previous sales of real estate from 2002 through 2004 where sale accountipg
was not initially achieved due to guarantees and other forms of continuing involvement. The gain was recognized in
the year those guarantees were released.
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Sunrise’s Share of Earnings and Return on Investment in Unconsolidated Communities

December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(In millions)
Sunrise’s share of earnings (losses) in unconsolidated communities .............. $ 607 $ (12.0) $(13.D
Return on investment in unconsolidated cOmmMunities ........coveicieneiaienans 72.7 557 26.5
Impairment of eqUItY IIVESHTIENLS .covvureereeecee et (24.5) =

§$ 1089 § 437 § 134

During 2007, our share of earnings in unconsolidated communities increased significantly primarily related to one
venture in the UK. During 2007, our UK venture in which we have a 20% equity interest sold seven communities to
a different UK venture in which we have a 10% interest. As a result of the gains on these asset sales recorded in the
ventures, we recorded eamings in unconsolidated communities of approximately $75.5 million.

Excluding this gain, Sunrise’s share of losses in unconsolidated communities, which is primarily the result of pre-
opening expenses and operating losses during the initial lease-up period, remained consistent between years,

Sunrise’s return on investment in unconsolidated communities primarily represents cash distributions from
ventures arising from a rzfinancing of debt within ventures. We first record all equity distributions, which are not
refundable either by agreement or by law, as a reduction of our investment. Next, we record a liability if there is a
contractual obligation or implied obligation to support the venture including in our role as general partner. Any
remaining distribution is recorded in income.

In 2007, our return on investment in unconsolidated communities was primarily the result of three venture
recapitalizations. In one transaction, the majority owner of a venture sold their majority interest to a new third party,
the debt was refinanced, and the total cash we received and the gain recognized was $53.0 million. In another
transaction, in conjunction with a sale by us of a 15% equity interest which gain is recorded in “Gain on the sale and
development of real estate and equity interests” and the sale of the majority equity owner’s interest to a new third .
party, the debt was refinanced, and we received total proceeds of $4.1 million relating to our retained 20% equity
interest in the venture, which we recorded as a return on investment in unconsolidated communities.

In 2006, our return on investment in unconsclidated communities was primarily the result of three venture
recapitalizations. In one transaction, the majority owner of two ventures sold their majority interests to a new third
party, the debt was refinanced, and the total recorded return on investment to us from this combined transaction was
approximatety $21.6 million. In another transaction, the majority owner of a venture sold its majority interest to a
new third party, the debt was refinanced, and the total return on investment to us was $26.1 million.

In 2005, we recorded $22.4 million of return on investment from the recapitalization of four ventures for 18
communities.

In 2007, we wrote-off equity investments in four unconsolidated ventures. The majority of the charge related to
our investment in Aston Gardens, a venture which acquired six senior living communities in Florida in September
2006. In 2007 and into 2008, the operating results of the Aston Garden communities suffered due to adverse
economic conditions in Florida for independent living communities including a decline in the real estate market.
These operating results are insufficient to achieve compliance with the debt covenants for the mortgage debt for the
properties. In July 2008, the venture received notice of default from the lender of $170.0 million of debt obtained by
the venture at the time o the acquisition in September 2006. Later in July 2008, we received notice from our equity
partner alleging a defaul: under our management agreement as a result of receiving the notice from the lender. This
debt is non-recourse to us. Based on our assessment, we have determined that our investment is impaired and as a
result, we recorded a pre-tax impairment charge of approximately $21.6 million in the fourth quarter of 2007. See . -
“Business — Significant 2007 Developments — Aston Gardens”,
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Benefit from (Provision for) Income Taxes

Our effective tax rate was (11.6)%%5, 53.0% and 38.6% in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The effective rate in
2007 was impacted by the write-off of goodwill related to Trinity for which there was.no tax basis and revisioas to
the valuation allowance for federal tax assets. See note 15 to the consolidated financial statements for detailed
reconciliations of the statutory tax rate to the effective tax rate.

Realization of net deferred tax assets of $137.3 million and $124.5 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively, is primarily dependent on our ability to generate sufficient taxable income in future periods.

Liquidity and Cﬁpitnl Resources
Overview

We had $138.2 million and $82.0 million of unrestricted cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2007 agd
2006, respectively.

To date, we have financed our operations primarily with cash generated from operations and both short-termg and
long-term borrowings. At June 30, 2008, we had 31 communities under construction in North America and Europe
and seven communities which we were developing through our Greystone subsidiary on behalf of third parties, We
estimate that it will cost approximately $0.7 billion to complete the 31 communities we had in North America and
Europe under construction as of June 30, 2008. 28 of these communities are either in ventures or committed to
ventures and it is expected that the remaining three communities will be put into ventures before the end of 2088,
Sunrise’s remaining equity commitments for these projects as of June 30, 2008 is estimated to be as much as
$7.0 million. We estimate that existing construction loan financing commitments and existing credit facilities,
together with cash generated from operations, will be sufficient to fund communities under construction as of
June 30, 2008.

As of June 30, 2008, we had entered into contracts to purchase or lease 86 additional development sites, fora
total contracted purchase price of approximately $410 million. Generally, our land purchase commitments are
terminable by Sunrise and a substantial portion of our $18.0 million in land deposits is refundable.

Qur previously disclosed development plan for 2008 included a development pipeline of 3,200 to 3,400 units.
Based on the current capital market conditions and our focus on our strategic plan, this number will decrease by up
to 50 percent with many starts deferred until 2009.

We do not have firm commitments to cover our full 2008 development plan, and no assurance can be made that
we will be able to obtain this financing. We do not intend to begin construction on new projects without a capital
partner and without committed debt financing. We are regularly in negotiations with lenders and venture partners to
secure the financing required to fund development activities.

Additional financing resources will be required to complete the development and construction of these
communities and to refinance existing indebtedness. Based on current market conditions related to construction debt
financing we may be constrained in our ability to begin construction on all units in our revised 2008 plan and,
accordingly, we may be required to defer some projects from 2008 to 2009. We are regularly in negotiations with
lenders and venture partners to secure the financing required to fund development activities. We do not have fism
commitrents to cover our full 2008 development plan, and no assurance can be made that we will be able to obtain
this financing. We do not intend to begin construction on new projects without a capital partner and without
committed debt financing.

Long-Term Debt and Bank Credit Facility
At December 31, 2007, we had $253.9 million of outstanding debt with a weighted average interest rate of §.75%.
Of the outstanding debt we had $9.1 million of fixed-rate debt with a weighted average interest rate of 7.28% and

$244.8 million of variable rate debt with a weighted average interest rate of 6.73%. At December 31, 2007, werhad
$222.5 million of debt that was classified as a current liability, aithough only $3.5 million of that debt is due in 2008.
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We consider borrowings under the Bank Credit Facility (see below) to be short-term as we intend to repay all
borrowings within one year. In addition we are obligated to provide annual audited financial statements and
quarterly unaudited finarcial statements to various financial institutions that have made construction loans or
provided permanent finaacing to entities directly or indirectly owned by us. In all such instances, the construction
loans or permanent financing provided by financial institutions is secured by a mortgage or deed of trust on the
financed community. The failure to provide our annual audited and quarterly unaudited financial statements in
accordance with the obligations of the relevant credit facilities or ancillary documents could be an event of default
under such documents, aad could allow the financial institutions who have extended credit pursuant to such
documents to seek remedies including possible repayment of the loan. $117.6 million of these loans have been
classified as current liabilities as of December 31, 2007.

On December 2, 2005, we entered into a $250.0 miilion secured Bank Credit Facility, which has since been
reduced to $160.0 million as described below (the “Bank Credit Facility™), with a syndicate of banks. The Bank
Credit Facility replaced our former credit facility. The Bank Credit Facility provides for both cash borrowings and
letters of credit. It has an initial term of four years and matures on December 2, 2009 unless extended for an
additional one-year pericd upon satisfaction of certain conditions. The Bank Credit Facility is secured by a pledge of
all of the common and preferred stock issued by Sunrise Senior Living Management, Inc., Sunrise Senior Living
Investments, Inc., Sunrise Senior Living Services, Inc. and Sunrise Development, Inc., each of which is our wholly-
owned subsidiary, (togetaer with us, the “Loan Parties”), and all future cash and non-cash proceeds arising
therefrom and accounts znd contract rights, general intangibles and notes, notes receivable and similar instruments
owned or acquired by the Loan Parties, as well as proceeds (cash and non-cash) and products thereof. Prior to the
amendments described bzlow, interest on cash borrowings in non-US dollars accrued at the rate of the Banking
Federation of the European Union for the Euro plus 1.70% to 2.25%. Letters of credit fees are equal to 1.50% to
2.00% at the maximum available to be drawn on the letters of credit. We pay commitment fees of 0.25% on the
unused balance of the Bank Credit Facility, Borrowings are used for general corporate purposes including
investments, acquisitions and the refinancing of existing debt. We had an outstanding balance of $1060.0 million in
borrowing and $71.8 million of outstanding letters of credit under the Bank Credit Facility at December 31, 2007,
The letters of credit issued under the Bank Credit Facility expire within one year of issuance. Our available
borrowing capacity on the Bank Credit Facility at December 31, 2007 was $78.3 million. Our available borrowing
capacity on the Bank Credit Facility at June 30, 2008 was $58.7 million.

During 2006 and 2007, as a result of the delay in completing our Accounting Review, we entered into several
amendments to our Bank Credit Facility extending the time period for fumnishing quarterly and audited annual
financial information to the lenders. In connection with these amendments, the interest rate applicable to the
outstanding balance under the Bank Credit Facility was also increased effective July 1, 2007 from LIBOR plus
2.25% to LIBOR plus 2.50%.

On January 31, February 19, March 13, and July 23, 2008, we entered into further amendments to the Bank
Credit Facility. These amendments, among other things:

»  modified to August 20, 2008 the delivery date for the unaudited financial statements for the quarter ended
March 31, 2008;

» modified to September 10, 2008 the delivery date for the unaudited financial statements for the quarter
ending June 30, 2008;

* temporarily (in February 2008) and then permanently (in July 2008) reduced the maximum principal amount
available under the Bank Credit Facility to $160.0 million; and

» waived compliance with financial covenants in the Bank Credit Facility for the year ended December 31,
2007 and for the fiscal quarters ended March 31, 2008 and June 30, 2008, and waived compliance with the
leverage ratio and fixed charge coverage ratio covenants for the fiscal quarter ending September 30, 2008.

In additicn, pursuant to the Juty 2008 amendment, until such time as we have delivered evidence satisfactory to

the administrative agent that we have timely filed our Form 10-X for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2008 and
that we are'in complianc: with all financial covenants in the Bank Credit Facility, including the leverage ratio and
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fixed charge coverage ratio, for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2008, and provided we are not then otherwise
in default under the Bank Credit Facility:

+  we must maintain liquidity of not less than $50.0 million, composed of availability under the Bank Credit
Facility plus up to not more than $50.0 million in unrestricted cash and cash equivalents (tested as of the end
of each calendar month), and any unrestricted cash and cash equivalents in excess of $50.0 million must be
used to pay down the outstanding borrowings under the Bank Credit Facility;

.+ we are generally prohibited from declaring or making directly or indirectly any paiymcnt in the form of a
stock repurchase or payment of a cash dividend or from incurring any obligation to do so; and

» the borrowing rate in US dollars, which was increased effective as of February 1, 2008, will remain LIBOR
plus 2.75% or the Base Rate (the higher of the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.50% and Prime) plus 1.25%
{through the end of the then-current interest period).

From and after the July 2008 émendmcnt, we will continue to owe and pay fees on the unused amount available
under the Bank Credit Facility on the new outstanding maximum amount of $160.0 million. Prior to the July 2608
amendrmnent, fees on the unused amount were based on a $250.0 million outstanding maximum amount.

On February 20, 2008, Sunrise Senior Living Insurance, Inc., our wholly owned insurance captive directly issued
$43.3 million of letters of credit that had been issued under the Bank Credit Facility. As of June 30, 2008, we lad
outstanding borrowings of $75.0 million, outstanding letters of credit of $26.3 million and borrowing availability of
approximately $58.7 million under the Bank Credit Facility. Taking into account the new liquidity covenants
included in the July 2008 amendment to the Bank Credit Facility described above, we believe this availability,’
including unrestricted cash balances of approximately $75.0 million at June 30, 2008, will be sufficient to supgort
our operations over the next twelve months.

Our Bank Credit Facility contains various other financial covenants ard other restrictions, including provisions
that; (1) require us to meet certain financial tests (for example, our Bank Credit Facility requires that we not exceed
certain leverage ratios), maintain certain fixed charge coverage ratios and have a consolidated net worth of at least
$450.0 million as adjusted each quarter and to meet other financial ratios and maintain a specified minimum
liquidity and use excess cash and cash equivalents to pay down outstanding borrowings; (2) require consent fof
changes in centrol; and {3) restrict our ability and our subsidiaries’ ability to borrow additional funds, dispose of all
or substantially all assets, or engage in mergers or other business combinations in which Sunrise is not the surviving
entity, without lender consent.

At December 31, 2007, we were not in compliance with the following financial covenants in the Bank Credit
Facility: leverage ratio (the ratio of consolidated EBITDA to total funded indebtedness of 4.25 as defined in the
Bank Credit Facility) and fixed charge coverage ratio (the ratio of consolidated EBITDAR to fixed charges of 1.75
as defined in the Bank Credit Facility). Non-compliance was largely due to additional charges related to losses on
financial guarantees which were identified during the 2007 audit that was completed in July 2008. Additionally, as
these covenants are based on a rolling, four quarter test, we do not expect to be in compliance with these covesiants
for the first three quarters of 2008. These covenants were waived on July 23, 2008 through the quarter ending :
September 30, 2008.

In the event that we are unable to furnish the lenders with all of the financial information required to be furgished
under the amended Bank Credit Facility by the specified dates and are not in compliance with the financial
covenants in the Bank Credit Facility, including the leverage ratio and fixed charge coverage ratio, for the quagter
ending December 31, 2008, ar fail to comply with the new liquidity covenants included in the July 2008 amesndment,
the lenders under the Bank Credit Facility could, among other things, agree to a further extension of the delivery
dates for the financial information or the covenant compliance requirements, exercise their rights to accelerate:the
payment of all amounts then outstanding under the Bank Credit Facility and require us to replace or provide c4sh
collateral for the outstanding letters of credit, or pursue further modification with respect to the Bank Credit Facility.

1n connection with the March 13, 2008 amendment, the Loan Parties executed and delivered a security agreement
to the administrative agent for the benefit of the lenders under the Bank Credit Facility. Pursuant to the security
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agreement, among other things, the Loan Parties granted to the administrative agent, for the benefit of the lenders, a
security interest in all aczounts and contract rights general intangibles and notes, notes receivable and similar
instruments owned or acquired by the Loan Parties, as well as proceeds (cash and non-cash) and products thereof, as
security for the payment of obligations under the Bank Credit Facility arrangements.

We paid the lenders aa aggregate fee of approximately $0.9 million and $1.9 million for entering into the
amendments during 2007 and 2008, respectively.

Mortgage Financing

On May 7, 2008, 16 of our wholly-owned subsidiaries (the “Borrowers™) incurred mortgage indebtedness in the
aggregate principal amount of approximately $106.7 million from Capmark Bank (“Lender”) as lender and servicer
pursuant to 16 separate cross-collateralized, cross-defaulted mortgage loans (collectively, the “mortgage loans”™).
Shortly after the closing, the Lender assigned the mortgage loans to Fannie Mae. The mortgage loans bear interest at
a variable rate equal to the “Discount” (which is the difference between the loan amount and the price at which
Fannie Mae is able to sell its three-month rolling discount mortgage backed securities) plus 2.27% per annum,
require monthly principal payments based on a 30-year amortization schedule (using an interest rate of 5.92%) and
mature on June 1, 2013.

In connection with the mortgage loans, we entered into interest rate protection agreements that provide for
payments to us in the event the LIBOR rate exceeds 5.6145%, pursuant to an interest rate cap purchased on May 7,
2008, by each Borrower from SMBC Derivative Products Limited. The LIBOR rate approximates, but is not exactly
equal to the “Discount” rate that is used in determining the interest rate on the mortgage loans; consequently, in the
event the “Discount” rate exceeds the LIBOR rate, payments under the interest rate cap may not afford the
Borrowers complete interest rate protection. The Borrowers purchased the rate cap for an initial period of three years
for a cost of $0.3 millior: (including fees) and have placed in escrow the amount of $0.7 million to purchase
additional interest rate caps to cover years four and five of the mortgage loans which amount will be returned to us
in the event the mortgagz loans are prepaid prior to the end of the third loan year.

Each mortgage loan is secured by a senior housing facility owned by the applicable Borrower (which facility also
secures the other 15 mortgage loans as well), as well as the interest rate cap described above. In addition, our
management agreement with respect to each of the facilities is subordinate to the mortgage loan encumbering such
facility, In connection with the mortgage loans, we received net proceeds of approximately $103.1 million (after
payment of lender fees, third party costs, escrows and other amounts), $53.0 million of which was used to pay down
amounts outstanding under our Bank Credit Facility. See Note 24 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for
additional information.

Guarantees

In conjunction with gur development ventures, we have provided project completion guarantees to venture
lenders and the venture itself, operating deficit guarantees to the venture lenders whereby after depletion of
established reserves we guarantee the payment of the lender’s monthly principal and interest during the term of the
guarantee and guarantees to the venture to fund operating shortfalls. In conjunction with the sale of certain operating
communities to third parties we have guaranteed a set level of net operating income or guaranteed a certain return to
the buyer. As these guarantees prevent us from either being able to account for the transaction as a sale or to
recognize profit from that sale transaction, the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 45 (“FIN 457}, Guarantor’s
Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others,
do not apply to these guarantees.

In conjunction with the formation of new ventures that do not involve the sale of real estate, the acquisition of
equity interests in existing ventures, and the acquisition of management contracts, we have provided operating -
deficit guarantees to venture lenders and/or the venture itself as described above, guarantees of debt repayment to
venture lenders in the event that the venture does not perform under the debt agreements, and guarantees of a set
level of net operating income to venture partners. The terms of the operating deficit guarantees and debt repayment
guarantees match the term of the underlying venture debt and generally range from three to seven years. The terms
of the guarantees of a set level of net operating income range from 18 months to seven years. Fundings under the
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operating deficit guarantees and debt repayment guarantees are generally recoverable either out of future cash flows
of the venture or upon proceeds from the sale of communities. Fundings under the guarantees of a set level of het
operating income are generally not recoverable.

The maximum potential amount of future fundings for outstanding guarantees subject to the provisions of FIN 45,
the carrying amount of the liability for expected future fundings at December 31, 2007, and fundings during 2607
are as follows (in thousands):

FIN 45 FASS Total
Liability Liability Liabitity
for Future for Future for Future _

Maximum Potential Fundings at Fundings at Fundings at Fundings

Amount of Future December 31, December 31, December 31, during
Guarantee type Fundings 2007 2007 2007 L2007
Debt repayment $16,832 $ 785 $ — $ 78 5 —
Operating deficit Uncapped 1,371 42,023 43394 ' —
Income support "Uncapped 960 - 16,525 17,485 5,829
Other — 4,150 4,150 —
Total $ 3,116 $ 62,698 565814  §.5829

Generally, the financing obtained by our ventures is non-recourse to the venture members, with the exceptian of
the debt repayment guarantees discussed above. However, we have entered into guarantees with the lenders with
respect to acts which we believe are in our controt, such as fraud, that create exceptions to the non-recourse nature
of the debt. If such acts were to occur, the full amount of the venture debt could become recourse to us. The
combined amount of venture debt underlying these guarantees is approximately $3.0 billion at December 31, 2007.
We have not funded under these guarantees, and do not expect to fund under such guarantees in the future.

Below is a discussion of the significant guarantees that have impacted our income statement, financial position or
cash flows or are reasonably expected to impact our profitability, financial position or cash flows in the future.’

Senior Living Condominium Developments

We began to develop senior living condominium projects in 2004. In 2006, we sold a majority interest in omg
condominium and assisted living venture to third parties. In conjunction with the development agreement for this
project, we agreed to be responsible for actual project costs in excess of budgeted project costs of more than
$10.0 million (subject to certain limited exceptions). Project overruns to be paid by us are projected to be
approximately $48.0 million. Of this amount, $10.0 million is recoverable as a loan from the venture. $14.7 million
relates to proceeds from the sale of real estate, development fees and pre-opening fees. During 2006, we recorded a
loss of approximately $17.2 million due to this commitment. During 2007, we recorded an additional loss of
approximately $6.0 million due to increases in the budgeted projected costs. Through June 30, 2008, we have paid
approximately $47.0 million in cost overruns. See “Business — Significant 2007 Developments — Senior Living
Condominium Developments”. '

The Fountains

In the third quarter of 2005, we acquired a 20% interest in a venture and entered into management agreements for
the 16 communities owned by the venture. In conjunction with this transaction, we guaranteed to fund shortfalls
between actual net operating income and a specified level of net operating income up to $7.0 million per year
through July 2010. We paid $12.0 million to the venture to enter into the management agreements, which was -
recorded as an intangible asset and is being amortized over the life of the management agreements. The
$12.0 million was placed into a reserve account, and the first $12.0 million of shortfalls were to be funded from this
reserve account. In late 2006 and 2007, we determined that shortfalls will exceed the amount held in the reserve
account. As a result, we recorded a pre-tax charge of $22.4 million in the fourth quarter of 2006. We are contiruing
to receive management fees, which we estimate to be approximately $9.0 million in 2008, with respect to these
communities. See “Business — Significant 2007 Developments — The Fountains”.
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Germany Venture

At December 31, 2007 and June 30, 2008, we provided pre-opening and management services to eight and nine
communities, respectively, in Germany. In connection with the development of these communities, we provided
operating deficit guarantees to cover cash shortfalls until the communities reach stabilization. These communities
have not performed as well as originally expected. In 2006, we recorded a pre-tax charge of $50.0 million as we did
not expect full repayment of the loans from the funding. In 2007, we recorded an additional $16.0 million pre-tax
charge based on changes in expected future cash flows. Our estimates underlying the pre-tax charge include certain
assumptions as to lease-up of the communities. To the extent that such lease-up is slower than our projections, we
could incur significant additional pre-tax charges in subsequent periods as we would be required to fund additional
amounts under the operating deficit guarantees. Through June 30, 2008, we have funded $37.0 million under these
guarantees and other loans. We expect to fund an additional $62.0 million through 2012, the date at which we
estimate no further fundiag will be required. See “Business — Significant 2007 Developments — Germany
Venture.”

Other Guarantees

We puarantee the $25.0 million senior component of public project finance bonds issued by the Camden County
Investment Authority, The proceeds of the bond issuance were used to acquire and renovate a CCRC located in New
Jersey for which we manage the community pursuant to a management agreement. This venture is consolidated as a
VIE. See Note 8 to our Consolidated Financial Statements. As indicated in Note 8, we provide operating deficit
guarantees for non-consclidated VIEs.

Contractual Obligations
Our current contractuat obligations include long-term debt, operating leases for our corporate and regional offices,
operating leases for our communities, and building and land lease commitments. In addition, we have commitments
to fund ventures in which we are a partner. See Note 18 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of

our commitments.

Principal maturities of long-term debt, equity investments in unconsolidated entities and future minimum lease
paymenits at December 31, 2007 are as follows (in thousands):

Payments due by period

More
Less Than Than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year 1-3 Years _4-5 Years _5 Years
Long-term debt.......oooovvecrceerienniesrevssreenneennene 3 153,888 8 122,541 8 3,203 8 2474 § 25,670
Bank Credit Facility 100,000 100,000 — — —
Equity investments in unconsolidated entities. ., 61,123 22,105 38,792 226 _
Operating 1ases. ..o veccer e s veaiens 727,773 ___ 68,532 532 143,997 138,272 376,972
Totakoe e e § 1,042,784 $ 313178 § 185992 §_140972 $ 402,642

At December 31, 2007, we had entered into contracts to purchase 101 development sites, for a total contracted
purchase price of approximately $400.0 million, and had also entered into contracts to lease six development sites
for lease periods ranging from five to 80 years. Generally, our land purchase commitments are terminable if we are
unabie to obtain zoning approval. At June 30, 2008, there were $18.0 million in deposits related to 86 land purchases
with a total contracted purchase price of approximately $410.0 million.

We consider borrowings under the Bank Credit Facility to be short-term as we intend to repay all borrowings
within one year. In addition, we are obligated to provide annual audited financial statements and quarterly unaudited
financial statements to various financial institutions that have made construction loans or provided permanent
financing (a) to subsidiaries directly or indirectly owned by us that own our consolidated portfolio of senior living
communities and (b) to venture entities that own senior living communities managed by us and in which we hold a
minority equity interest, pursuant to the terms of the credit facilities with respect to the loans to such entities or
pursuant to documents aacillary to such credit facilities (e.g., operating deficit guarantees, etc.). In some cases, we
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are also subject to financial covenants that are the same as the leverage ratio and fixed charge coverage ratio
covenants in our Bank Credit Facility. In all such instances, the construction loans or permanent financing provided
by financial institutions is secured by a mortgage or deed of trust on the financed community. The failure to psovide
quarterly unaudited financial statements or to comply with financial covenants in accordance with the obligatiens of
the relevant credit facilities or ancillary documents could be an event.of default under such documents, and could
allow the financial institutions who have extended credit pursuant to such documents to seck the remedies provided
for in such documents. In the instances in which we have guaranteed the repayment of the principal amount of the
credit extended by these financial institutions, we could be required to repay the loan. All of these loans

($117.6 million) have been classified as current liabilities as of December 31, 2007.

Cash Flows

Our primary sources of cash from operating activities are from management fees, professional fees, from monthly
fees and other billings from services provided to residents of our consolidated communities and distributions af
operating earnings from unconsolidated ventures. The primary uses of cash for our ongoing operations include the
payment of community operating and ancillary expenses for our consolidated and managed communities. Changes
in operating assets and liabilities such as accounts receivable, prepaids and other current assets, and accounts
payable and accrued expenses will fluctuate based on the timing of payment to vendors. Reimbursement for these
costs from our managed communities will vary as some costs are pre-funded, such as payroll, while others are
reimbursed after they are incurred. Therefore, there will not always be a correlation between increases and deareases
of accounts payable and receivables for our managed communities.

In 2007, 2006 and 2005, we billed and collected $28.2 million, $21.6 million and $14.4 million, respectively, of
Greystone development fees, of which $26.4 million, $15.1 million and $13.0 million, respectively, was defersed
and will be recognized when the contract is completed. Included in the $74.4 million of deferred gains on the gale of
real estate and deferred revenues at December 31, 2007 is $54.5 million related to Greystone and $19.9 milliog of
cash received related to our real estate transactions for Sunrise development properties that are accounted for in
accordance with SFAS No. 66, Accounting for Sales of Real Estate.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $128.5 millicn and $117.5 million in 2007 and 2006, respectively.
In 2007, cash flows provided by operations was primarily due to distributions from equity method investmentg from
venture recapitalizations which offset the loss from operations. In 2006, cash flows provided by operations was
positively influenced by a significant increase in self-insurance liabilities, which were offset by a significant
increase in due from unconsolidated communities. We have placed emphasis on improved management of ameunts
due from unconsolidated communities and expect to see reductions in this working capital item in future periods.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $117.5 million and $190.0 million in 2006 and 2003, respectively.
In 2006, cash flows provided by operations was positively influenced by a significant increase in self-insurance
liabilities, which were offset by a significant increase in due.from unconsolidated communities. We have placad
emphasis on improved management of amounts due from unconsolidated communities and expect to see redudations
in this working capital item in future periods. In 2005, cash flows provided by operations were significantly
influenced by an increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses.

Net cash used in investing activities was $248.5 milliop and $258.9 million in 2007 and 2006, respectively. In
2007, we increased our capital expenditures to $245.5 million, primarily related to spending on the development of
senior living communities. This use of cash was partially offset by $60.4 million of proceeds from sales of
communities to ventures. We also made $29.3 million of contributions-to ventures that are developing senior living
communities. Finally we acquired one community, Connecticut Ave., for $50.0 million. in 2006, we acquired
Trinity, a 25% interest in Aston Gardens and the Raiser portfolio. We made significant contributions to ventures that
were building unconsolidated senior living communities and made significant investments in consolidated
communities while receiving distributions from unconselidated communities of $72.6 million.

Net cash used in invcsting activities was $258.9 million and $168.5 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively. In
2006, we acquired Trinity, a 25% interest in Aston Gardens and the Raiser portfolio. We made significant
contributions to ventures that were building unconsolidated senior living communities and made significant

investments in consolidated communities while receiving distributions from unconsolidated communities of M
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$72.6 million. In 2005, we acquired Greystone and The Fountains using cash of $46.5 million and $29.0 million,
respectively, acquired property for $134.3 million and contributed $64.1 million to unconsolidated senior living
communities. These uses of cash in 2005 were partially offset by $56.2 million from the disposition of property and
$9.3 million of distributions received from unconsolidated senior living communities.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $176.3 million and $78.3 million in 2007 and 2006, respectively.
Activities included additional borrowings in 2007 and 2006 of $243.6 million and $154.1 million, respectively,
offset by debt repayments in 2007 and 2006 of $66.1 million and $90.8 million, respectively. The additional
borrowings under our Bank Credit Facility were used to fund our operations and continued development of senior
living communities.

Net cash provided by sinancing activities was $78.3 million and $34.0 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively.
Activities included additional borrowings of $154.1 million and $149.5 million, offset by debt repayments of
$90.8 million and $137.3 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively. The additional borrowings under our Bank Credit
Facility were used to fund our continued development of senior living communities and refinance existing debt. We
repurchased approx1mately $8.7 million of our common stock and received proceeds of $29.1 million from the
exercise of stock options in 2005.

Stock Repurchase Programs

In July 2002, our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of outstanding shares of our commen stock up to
an aggregate purchase price of $50.0 million over the subsequent 12 months. In May 2003, our Board of Directors
expanded the repurchase program to an aggrepate purchase price of $150.0 million to repurchase outstanding shares
of common stock and/or our outstanding 5.25% convertible subordinated notes due 2009. In March 2004, our Board
of Directors authorized the additional repurchase of outstanding shares of our commen stock and/or our outstanding
convertible subordinated notes up to an aggregate purchase price of $50.0 million. At December 31, 2005, each of
these preceding authorizations had expired to the extent not utilized. In November 2005, our Board of Directors
approved a new repurchase plan that provided for the repurchase of up to $50.0 million of our common stock and/or
the outstanding convertible subordinated notes. This plan extended through December 31, 2007 and was not
renewed. There were no share repurchases in 2007 or 2006. In 2005, 347,980 shares were repurchased at an average
price of $25.03.

Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates primarily through variable rate debt. The fair market
value estimates for debt securities are based on discounting future cash flows utilizing current rates offered to us for
debt of the same type and remaining maturity. The following table details by category the principal amount, the
average interest rate and the estimated fair market value of our debt (in thousands):

Maturity Date Fixed Rate Variable Rate
Through December 31, Debt Debt

2008 ... certr e bt st s et sn s st e s ene e snesnsnnensnsnesnsrsesnesesnsaseerenees B 074 $ 218,467
200D 1 v virrieirriererireresssissaaessraseee s sas s are s aeaseaemsentesentasantenantre et s reesaeaen 1,147 830
Thercaﬁer cerebenetes st resn s s tetsarsatasessesraressnnansnenranearers __ o] 22325
Total Carrymg Value RPN OO VOUOTOUPO. S A 1.2 § 3 244807
Average Interest Rate .. 1.3% 6.7%

Estimated Fair Market VAIUE.............oooooororoeoo oo ssresesersesees s § 9,207 3 244,807
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Notes receivable as of December 31, 2007 consist of the following two notes (dollars in thousands):

Interest Rate 2007
Note V with international Venture .....o.ooeeveeovrecreereeeneens e 4.37% § 592
Promissory NNOIE XTIV ..ot ettt bttt eeee e e ees e an e seeneeseeee Euribor + 4.25% 8.837

Estimated fair market value
Note V is fixed rate instruments and Promissory Note XIV is a floating rate instrument.

In addition, we also are exposed to currency risk. At December 31, 2007, we had net U.S. dollar equivalent
agsets/(liabilities) of $9.9 million, $34.4 million and ${70.3) million in Canadian dollars, British pounds and E#ros,
respectively.

Critical Accounting Estimates

We consider an accounting estimate to be critical if: 1) the accounting estimate requires us to make assumptions
about matters that were highly uncertain at the time the accounting estimate was made, and 2) changes in the
estimate that are reasonably likely to occur from period to period, or use of different estimates than we reasonably
could have used in the current period, would have a material impact on cur financial condition or results of
operations.

Management has discussed the development and selection of these critical accounting estimates with the Audit
Comumittee of our Board of Directors. In addition, there are other items within our financial statements that require
estimation, but are not deemed critical as defined above. Changes in estimates used in these and other items cauld
have a material impact on our financial statements.

Impairment of Goodwill, Intangible Assets, Long-Lived Assets and Investments in Ventures

Nature of Estimates Required — Goodwill. Goodwill is not amortized, but is subject to periodic assessments of
impairment. We test goodwill for impairment annually during the fourth quarter, or when changes in circumstgnces
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Recoverability of goodwill is evaluated using a two-stép
process. The first step involves a comparison of the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying value. If the -
carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the second step of the process involves a comparison of
the implied fair value of goodwill (based on a purchase price allocation methodology) with its carrying value. If the
carrying value of the reporting unit’s goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is
recognized in an amount equal to the excess. Restoration of a previously-recognized goodwill impairment loss is not
aliowed. §

Nature of Estimates Required — Intangibles and Long-Lived Assets. Intangibles and long-lived asset groups are
tested for recoverability when changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. Events
that trigger a test for recoverability include material adverse changes in the projected revenues and expenses,
significant underperformance relative to historical or projected future operating results, and significant negative
industry or economic trends. A test for recoverability also is performed when management has committed to ajplan
to sell or otherwise dispose of an asset group and the plan is expected to be completed within a year. Recoverability
of an asset group is evaluated by comparing its carrying value to the future net undiscounted cash flows expected to
be geperated by the asset group. If the comparison indicates that the carrying value of an asset group is not
recoverable, an impairment loss is recognized. The impairment loss is measured by the amount by which the
carrying amount of the asset group exceeds the estimated fair value. When an impairment loss is recognized for
assets to be heid and used, the adjusted carrying amount of those assets is depreciated over its remammg usefuf life.
Restoration of a previcusly-recognized long-lived asset impairment loss is not allowed.

Assumptions and Approach Used, We estimate the fair value of a reporting unit, intangible asset, or asset gioup
based on market prices (i.e., the amount for which the reporting unit, intangible asset or asset group could be bought .
by or sold to a third party), when available. When market prices are not available, we estimate the fair value uging
the income approach and/or the market approach. The income approach uses cash flow projections. Inherent igour - - .- .
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" development of cash flow projections are assumptions and estimates derived from a review of our operating results,
approved business plans, expected growth rates, cost of capital, and tax rates. We also make certain assumptions
about future economic conditions, interest rates, and other market data. Many of the factors used in assessing fair
value are outside the contro! of management, and these assumptions and estimates can change in future periods.

Changes in assumptioas or estimates could materially affect the determination of fair value of a reporting unit,
intangible asset or asset group and therefore could affect the amount of potential impairment of the asset. The
following key assumptioas to our income approach include:

«  Business Projections — We make assumptions regarding the levels of revenue from communities and
services. We also make assumptions about our cost levels (e.g., capacity utilization, labor costs, etc.). Finally,
we make assumptions about the amount of cash flows that we will receive upon a future sale of the
communities using estimated cap rates. These assumptions are key inputs for developing our cash flow
projections. These projections are derived using our intemal business plans and budgets;

«  Growth Rate — A growth rate is used to calculate the terminal value of the business, and is added to
budgeted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization. The growth rate is the expected rate
at which earnings are projected to grow beyond the planning period;

»  Economic Projections — Assumptions regarding general economic conditions are included in and affect our
assumptions regarding pricing estimates for our communities and services. These macro-economic
assumptions include, but are not limited to, industry projections, inflation, interest rates, price of labor, and
foreign currency exchange rates; and

«  Discount Rates — When measuring a possible impairment, future cash flows are discounted at a rate that is
consistent with a weighted average cost of capital for a potential market participant. The weighted average
cost of capital is an estimate of the overall after-tax rate of return required by equity and debt holders of a
business enterprise.

The market approach is one of the other primary methods used for estimating fair value of a reporting unit, asset,
or asset group. This assumption relies on the market value (market capitalization) of companies that are engaged in
the same or similar line of business.

As a result of our current projections regarding the daily census and projected revenue for Trinity, we recorded an
expense of $56.7 million related to the impairment of Trinity goodwilt and intangible assets in 2007. See
“Business — Significant 2007 Developments — Trinity Hospice™.

In addition, in 2007, 2006, and 2005, we recorded impairment expense of $7.6 million, $15.7 million, and
$2.5 million related to two, four, and one communities, respectively, and in 2007, we wrote-off $35.7 million of
investments in ventures.

Nature of Estimates Required — Investments in Ventures. We hold a minority equity interest in ventures
established to develop or acquire and own senior living communities. Those ventures are generally limited liability
companies or limited partnerships. The equity interest in these ventures generally ranges from 10% to 50%.

Our investments in ventures accounted for using the equity and cost methods of accounting are impaired when it
is determined that there is “other than a temporary” decline in the fair value as compared to the carrying value of the
venture or for equity method investments when individual long-lived assets inside the venture meet the criteria
specified above. A commitment to a plan to sell some or all of the assets in a venture would cause a recoverability
evaluation for the individual long-lived assets in the venture and possibly the venture itself. Our evaluation of the
investment in the venture would be triggered when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable due to loan compliance causes, significant under performance relative to historical or projected future
operating performance aad significant industry or economic trends.

Assumptions and Approach Used. The assumptions and approach for the evaluation of the individual long-lived
assets inside the venture are described above, Qur approach for evaluation of an investment in a venture would be
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based on market prices, when available, or an estimate of the fair value using the market approach. The assumptions
and risks related are identical to the disclosure for goodwill, intangible assets and long-lived assets described dbove.

Loss Reserves for Self-Insured Programs

Nature of Estimates Required. We utilize large deductible blanket insurance programs in order to contain costs
for certain lines of insurance risks including workers’ compensation and emplovers” liability risks, automobiles
liability risk, employment practices liability risk and general and professional liability risks (“Self-Insured Risks™).
The design and purpose of a large deductible insurance program is to reduce the overall premium and claims costs
by internally financing lower cost claims that are more predictable from year to year, while buying insurance only
for higher-cost, less predictable claims.

We have self-insured a portion of the Self-Insured Risks through a wholly owned captive insurance subsididry,
Sunrise Senior Living Insurance, Inc. (“SSLII”). SSLII issues policies of insurance to and receives premiums from
Sunrise Senior Living, Inc. that are reimbursed through expense allocation to each operated community and us
SSLII pays the costs for each claim above a deductible up to a per claim limit. Third-party insurers are responsible
for claim costs above this limit. These third-party insurers carry an A.M. Best rating of A-/VII or better.

We also offer our employees an option to participate in self-insured health and dental plans. The cost of our
employee health and dental benefits, net of employee contributions, is shared by us and the communities based on
the respective number of participants working directly either at our corporate headquarters or at the communitfes.
Funds collected are used to pay the actual program costs which include estimated annual claims, third-party
administrative fees, network provider fees, communication costs, and other related administrative costs incurréd by
us. We have aggregate protection which caps the potential Lability for both individual and total claims during a plan
year. Claims are paid as they are submitted to the plan administrator.

Assumptions and Approach Used for Seif-Insured Risks. We record outstanding losses and expenses for theSelf-
Insured Risks and for our health and dental plans based on the recommendations of an independent actuary and
management’s judgment. We believe that the allowance for outstanding losses and expenses is appropriate to gover
the ultimate cost of losses incurred at December 31, 2007, but the allowance may ultimately be settled for a gréater
or lesser amount. Any subsequent changes in estimates are recorded in the period in which they are determined.
While a single value is recorded on Sunrise’s balance sheet, loss reserves are based on estimates of future contingent
events and as such contain inherent uncertainty. A quantification of this uncertainty would reflect a range of
reasonable favorable and unfavorable scenarios. Sunrise’s annual estimated cost for Self-Insured Risks is
determined using management judgment including actuarial analyses at various confidence levels. The confidence
level is the likelihood that the recorded expense will exceed the ultimate incurred cost.

Sensitivity Analysis for Self-Insured Risks. The recorded liability for Self-Insured Risks was approximately .
$142.2 million at December 31, 2007. This liability would be approxunately $130.1 million if it were based on the
“expected value” assuming a 50% confidence level. _

We share any revisions to prior estimates with the communities participating in the insurance programs baséd on
their proportionate share of any changes in estimates. Accordingly, the impact of changes in estimates on Sunrise’s
income from operations would be much less sensitive than the difference above.

Assumptions and Approach Used for Health and Dental Plans. For our self-insured health and dental plans, we
record a liability for outstanding claims and claims that have been incurred but not yet reported. This liability i3
based on the historical claim reporting lag and payment trends of health insurance claims and is based on the
recommendations of an independent actuary. The variability in the liability for unpaid claims including incurred but
not yet reported claims is much less significant than the self-insured risks discussed above because the claims are
more predictable as they generally are known within 90 days and the high and the low end of the range of estihated
cost of individual claims is much closer than the workers’ compensation and employers’ liability risks, automobile
liability risk, employment practices liability risk and general and professional liability risks discussed above.

Sensitivity Analysis for Self-Insured Health and Dental Plan Costs. The liability for self-insured incurred byt not
- yet reported claims for the self-insured health and dental plan is included in “Accrued expenses” in the consolitated
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balance sheets and was $9.9 million and $9.7 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. We believe that . o
the liability for outstanding losses and expenses is appropriate to cover the ultimate cost of losses incurred at

December 31, 2007, but actual claims may differ. The difference between the recorded liability for self-insured

incurred but not yet reperted claims for the health and dental plan is $0.5 million higher than the expected value (the

Liability computed using a 50% confidence level). We record any subsequent changes in estimates in the period in

which they are determined and will share with the communities participating in the insurance programs based on

their proportionate share of any changes in estimates.

Variable Interest Entities

Nature of Estimates Required We hold a minority equity interest in ventures established to develop or acquire
and own senior living communities. Those ventures are generally limited liability companies or limited partnerships.
Our equity interest in these ventures generally ranges from 10% to 50%.

We review all of our ventures to determine if they are variable interest entities (“VIEs”). If a venture meets the
requirements and is a VIE, we must then determine if we are the primary beneficiary of the VIE. Estimates are
required for the computation and probability of estimated cash flows, expected losses and expected residual returns
of the VIE to determine if we are the primary beneficiary of the VIE and therefore required to consolidate the
venture.

Assumptions. In determining whether we are the primary beneficiary of a VIE, we must make assumptions
regarding cash flows of the entity, expected loss levels and expected residual return levels. The probability of
various cash flow possibilities is determined from business plans, budgets and entity history if available. These cash
flows are discounted at the risk-free interest rate. Computations are then made based on the estimated cash flows of
the expected losses and residual returns to determine if the entity is a variable interest entity, and, if so, to determine
the primary beneficiary. Changes in estimated cash flows and the probability factors could change the determination
of the primary beneficiary and whether there is a requirement to consolidate a VIE.

Valuation of Deferred Tax Assets

Nature of Estimates Required, Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized based on the future tax
consequences attributable to temporary differences that exist between the financial statement carrying value of
assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards on a taxing
jurisdiction basis. We measure deferred tax assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates that will apply in the years
in which we expect the temporary differences to be recovered or paid.

SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes (“SFAS No. 109”), requires a reduction of the carrying amounts of
deferred tax assets by recording a valuation allowance if, based on the available evidence, it is more likely than not
(defined by SFAS No. 109 as a likelikood of more than 50 percent) such assets will not be realized. The valuation of
deferred tax assets requires judgment in assessing the likely future tax consequences of events that have been
recognized in our financial statements or tax returns and future profitability. Qur accounting for deferred tax
consequences represents our best estimate of those future events. Changes in our current estimates, due to
unanticipated events or ctherwise, could have a material impact on our financial condition and results of operations.

Assumptions and Approach Used. In assessing the need for a valuation allowance, we consider both positive and
negative evidence related to the likelihood of realization of the deferred tax assets. If, based on the weight of
available evidence, it is more likely than not the deferred tax assets will not be realized, we record a valuation
allowance. The weight given to the positive and negative evidence is commensurate with the extent to which the
evidence may be objectively verified. As such, it is generally difficult for positive evidence regarding projected
future taxable income exclusive of reversing taxable temporary differences to outweigh objective negative evidence
of recent financial reporting losses. SFAS No., 109 states that a cumulative loss in recent years is a significant piece
of negative evidence that is difficult to overcome in determining that a valuation allowance is not needed against
deferred tax assets.

This assessment, which is completed on a taxing jurisdiction basis, takes into account a number of types of
evidence, including the following: - - e
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* Nature, frequency, and severity of current and cumulative financial reporting losses — A pattern of
objectively measured recent financial reporting losses is a source of negative evidence. In certain
circumstances, historical information may not be as relevant due to changed circurnstances;

*  Sources of future taxable income — Future reversals of existing temporary differences are verifiable positive
evidence. Projections of future taxable income exclusive of reversing temporary differences are a source of
positive evidence only when the projections are combined with a history of recent profits and can be
reasonably estimated; and

* Tax planning strategies — If necessary and available, tax planning strategies would be implemented to
accelerate taxable amounts to utilize expiring carryforwards. These strategies would be a source of additional
positive evidence and, depending on their nature, could be heavily weighted.

See Note 15 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more information regarding deferred tax
assets.

A return to profitability in certain of our operations would result in a reversal of a portion of the valuation
allowance relating to realized deferred tax assets, but we may not change our judgment of the need for a full
valuation allowance on our remaining deferred tax assets. In that case, it is likely that we would reverse some or all
of the remaining deferred tax asset valuation allowance. However, since we have heavily weighted recent financial
reporting losses and given no weight to subjectively determined projections of future taxable income exclusive of
reversing temporary differences, we have concluded as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 that it is more likely than
not certain deferred tax assets will not be realized (in whole or in part), and accordingly, we have recorded a fifll
valuation allowance against the net deferred tax assets.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, our deferred tax assets, net of the valuation allowances of $12.4 million and
$13.1 million, respectively, were $137.3 million and $124.5 million, respectively. These net deferred tax assets
related to operations where we believed it was more likely than not that these net deferred tax assets would be
realized through future taxable earnings. Accordingly, no valuation allowance has been established on our remaining
net deferred tax assets. We will continue to assess the need for a valuation allowance in the future. Changes in our
current estimates, due to unanticipated events or otherwise, could have a material impact on our financial condition
and results of operations.

Liability for Possible Tax Contingencies

Liabilities for tax contingencies are recognized based on the requirements of FASB Interpretation No. 48
(“FIN 48”), Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. FIN 48 is an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109
regarding the calculation and disclosure of reserves for uncertain tax positions. FIN 48 requires us to analyze the
technical merits of our tax positions and determine the likelihood that these positions will be sustained if they were
ever examined by the taxing authorities. If we determine that it is unlikely that our tax positions will be sustainkd, a
corresponding lability is created and the tax benefit of such position is reduced for financial reporting purposes.

Evaluation and Nature of Estimates Required. The evaluation of a tax position in accordance with FIN 48 is a
two-step process. The first step in the evaluation process is recognition. The enterprise determines whether it i$ more
likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination, including resolution of any related appedls or
litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position. In evaluating whether a tax position has met the
more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, the enterprise should presume that the position will be examined by the
appropriate taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information.

The second step in the evaluation process is measurement. A tax position that meets the more-likely-than-ndt
recognition threshold is measured to determine the amount of benefit to recognize in the financial statements. The
tax position is measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized
upon ultimate settlement. Tax positions that previously failed to meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold
should be recognized in the first subsequent financial reporting period in which:
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(a) the threshold is met (for example, by virtue of another taxpayer’s favorable court decision},

(b) the position is “effectively settled” by virtue of the closing of an examination where the likelihood of the
taxing authority reopening the examination of that position is remote; or

(c) the relevant sratute of limitations expires.

Previously recognized tax positions that no longer meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold are
derecognized in the first subsequent financial reporting period in which that threshold is no longer met.

Interest and Penalties. FIN 48 requires us to accrue interest and penalties that, under relevant tax law, we would
incur if the uncertain tax positions ultimately were not sustained. Accordingly, under FIN 48, interest would start to
accrue for financial statement purposes in the period in which it would begin accruing under relevant tax law, and
the amount of interest expense to be recognized would be computed by applying the applicabie statutory rate of
interest to the difference between the tax position recognized in accordance with FIN 48 and the amount previously
taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. Penalties would be accrued in the first period in which the position was
taken on a tax return that would give rise to the penalty.

Assumptions. In determining whether a tax benefit can be recorded, we must make assessments of a position’s
sustainability and the likzlihood of ultimate settlement with a taxing authority. Changes in our assessments would
cause a change in our recorded position and changes could be significant. As of December 31 2007, wehad a
recorded liability for possible losses on uncertain tax positions of $14.6 million.

Accounting for Financial Guarantees

When we enter into guarantees in connection with the sale of real estate, we may be prevented from initially
either accounting for the transaction as a sale of an asset or recognizing in earnings the profit from the sale
transaction. For guarantees that are not entered into in conjunction with the sale of real estate, we recognize at the

" inception of a guarantee or the date of modification, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in
issuing a guarantee which require us to make various assumptions to determine the fair value. On a quarterly basis,
we review and evaluate the estimated liability based upon operating results and the terms of the guarantee. If it is
probable that we will be required to fund additional amounts than previously estimated, a loss is recorded for that
contingent loss. Fundings that are recoverable as a loan from a venture are considered in the determination of the
contingent loss recorded. Loan amounts are evaluated for impairment at inception and then quarterly.

In 2006, we recorded a loss of $50.0 million for our expected loss on the operating deficit guarantees we have for
our German communities and a loss of $22.0 million for our expected loss on a guarantee of a specified level of net
operating income to the Fountains venture. Due to continued deteriorating operating performance of our
communities in Germany in 2007 we revised our estimated liability for operating deficit guarantees and as a result,
we recorded additional expense of $16.0 million. Because our loss on the operating deficit guarantees for our
German communities is based on projections spanning numerous years it is highly susceptible to future adverse
change and such changes could have a material impact on our financial condition and results of operations.

Assumptions and Approach Used. For the German operating deficit guarantees, we calculated the estimated loss
on financial guarantees based on projected operating losses and an assumed sale of the community after the
operations have stabilized. The assumed sale value uses estimated cap rates. For the Fountains guarantee of net
operating income, we calculated the estimated loss based on projected cash flows during the remaining term of the
guaraniee. Inberent in our development of cash flow projections are assumptions and estimates derived from a
review of our operating results, approved business plans, expected growth rates, cost of capital, and tax rates. We
also make certain assumptions about future economic conditions, interest rates, and other market data. Many of the
factors used in assessing fair value are outside the control of management, and these assurnptions and estimates can
change in future periods,

Changes in assumpticns or estimates could materially affect the determination of fair value of an asset. The
following key assumpticns to our income approach include:
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*  Business Projections — We make assumptions regarding the levels of revenue from communities and
services. We also make assumptions about our cost levels (e.g., capacity utilization, labor costs, etc.). Finally,
we make assumptions about the amount of cash flows that we will receive upon a future sale of the
comumunities using estimated cap rates. These assumptions are key inputs for developing our cash flow
projections, These projections are derived using our internal business plans and budgets;

"+ Growth Rate— A growth rate is used to calcutate the terminal value of the business, and is added to
budgeted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization. The growth rate is the expected rate
at which eamings are projected to grow beyond the planning period;

*» Economic Projections — Assumptions regarding general economic conditions are included in and affest our
assurnptions regarding pricing estimates for our communities and services. These macro-economic
assumptions include, but are not limited to, industry projections, inflation, interest rates, price of labor, and
foreign currency exchange rates; and

= Discount Rates — When measuring a possible loss, future cash flows are discounted at a rate that is
consistent with a weighted average cost of capital for a potential market participant. The weighted average
cost of capital is an estimate of the overall after-tax rate of return required by equity and debt holders of a
business enterprise. : ‘

In 2006, we recorded a loss of $17.2 million for our expected loss due to the completion guarantee for our -
condominium project under construction. Due to continued deterioration of the condominium project in 2007, we
revised our estimated liability for the completion guarantee and as a result, we recorded additional expense of |
$6.0 million. Accordingly, changes in our current estimates, due to unanticipated events or otherwise, could have a
material impact on our financial condition and results of operations.

Assumptions and Approach Used in Calculating our Loss on Completion Guarantees. The computation of pur
expected loss on our completion guarantee involves the use of various estimating techniques to determine total
estimated project costs at completion. Contract estimates involve various assumptions and projections relative o the
outcome of future events over a period of time including the nature and complexity of the work to be performéd, the
cost and availability of materials and the impact of delays. These estimates are based on our best judgment. A
significant change in one or more of these estimates could affect the ultimate cost of our condominium development
project. We review our contract estimates at least quarterly to assess revisions in contract values and estimatedtcosts
at completion. We have recorded our best estimate of our loss but it is reasonably possible that our possible logs
could exceed amounts recorded.

Lifigation

Litigation is subject to uncertainties and the outcome of individual litigated matters is not predictable with
assurance, Various legal actions, claims and proceedings are pending against us, some for specific matters deséribe
in Note 18 to the financial statements and others arising in the ordinary course of business. We have establishefl loss
provisions for matters in which losses are probable and can be reasonably estimated. In other instances, we arejnot
able to make a reasonable estimate of any liability because of uncertainties related to the outcome and/or the agnount
or range of losses. At December 31, 2007, we have recorded an accrual of $6.0 million for our estimated exposure to
loss related to the Trinity OIG Investigation and qui fam action discussed in Note 18 to the Consclidated Finarfcial
Statements. We have not recorded any loss related to our possible exposure to shareholder litigation as a potential
loss is not probable or estimable. Changes in our current estimates, duee to unanticipated events or otherwise, could
have a material impact on our financial condition and results of operations.

Impact of Changes in Accounting Standards

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes
(“FIN 48”). FIN 48 is an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, and it seeks to
reduce the diversity in practice associated with certain aspects of measurement and recognition in accounting for
income taxes. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement -
recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. Additionally, FIN #8
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provides guidance on de-recognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure
and transition. We adoptsd FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007, and applied its provisions to all tax positions upon initiai
adoption. Only tax positions that meet a “more likely than not” threshold at the effective date may be recognized or
continue to be recognized. There was no adjustment to our recorded tax liability as a result of adopting FIN 48.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS 157”). This standard
defines fair value, establishes a methodology for measuring fair value and expands the required disclosure for fair
value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for Sunrise as of January 1, 2009. Provisions of SFAS 157 are required
to be applied prospectively as of the beginning of the first fiscal year in which SFAS 157 is applied. We are
evaluating the impact that SFAS 157 will have on its financial statements.

In November 2006, the Emerging Issues Task Force of FASB (“EITF”) reached a consensus on EITF Issue
No. 06-8, “dpplicability of the Assessment of a Buyer’s Continuing Investment under FASB Statement No. 66,
Accounting for Sales of Real Estate, for Sales of Condominiums” (“EITF 06-8"). EITF 06-8 requires condominium
sales to meet the continving investment criterion in SFAS No. 66 in order for profit to be recognized under the
percentage of completion method. EITF 06-8 was effective for us at January 1, 2007. We are currently developing
one condominium project for an unconsolidated venture. The venture has applied EITF 06-8.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Liabilities
(“SFAS 159"). SFAS 159 permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other iterns
at fair value that are not currently required to be measured at fair value. The irrevocable election of the fair value
option is made on an instrument by instrument basis, and applied to the entire instrument, and not just a portion of it.
The changes in fair value of each item elected to be measured at fair value are recognized in earnings each reporting
period. SFAS 159 does not affect any existing pronouncements that require assets and liabilities to be carried at fair
value, nor does it eliminate any existing disclosure requirements. This standard is effective for Sunrise as of
January 1, 2008. We have not chosen to measure any financial instruments at fair value.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), Business Combinations (“SFAS 141R”).
SFAS 141R requires most identifiable assets, liabilities, noncontrolling interests, and goodwill acquired in a
business combination to be recorded at “full fair value”. The standard is effective for us as of January I, 2009, and
earlier adoption is prohibited.

On December 4, 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Non-controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements — an Amendment of ARB No. 51 (“SFAS No. 160"). SFAS No. 160 establishes new accounting and
reporting standards for a non-controlling interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary.
Specifically, this statement requires the recognition of a non-controlling interest (minority interest) as equity in the
consolidated financial statements separate from the parent’s equity. The amount of net income attributable to the
non-controlting interest ‘will be included in consolidated net income on the face of the income statement.

SFAS No. 160 clarifies that changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in
deconsolidation are equity transactions if the parent retains its controlling financial interest. In addition, this
statement requires that a parent recognize a gain or loss in net income when a subsidiary is deconsolidated. Such
gain or loss will be measured using the fair value of the non-controlling equity investment on the deconsclidation
date. SFAS No. 160 alsc includes expanded disclosure requirements regarding the interests of the parent and its non-
controlling interest. SFAS No. 160 is effective for us as of January 1, 2009. We are currently evaluating the impact
that SFAS No. 160 will have on our financial statements.

Impact of Inflation

Management fees from communities operated by us for third parties and resident and ancillary fees from owned
senior living communities are significant sources of our revenue. These revenues are affected by daily resident fee
rates and community occupancy rates. The rates charged for the delivery of senior living services are highly
dependent upon local market conditions and the competitive environment in which the communities operate. In
addition, employee compensation expense is the principal cost element of community operations. Employee
compensation, including salary and benefit increases and the hiring of additional staff to support our growth
initiatives, have previously had a negative impact on operating margins and may again do so in the foreseeable
future. - -
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Substantially all of our resident agreements are for terms of one year, but are terminable by the resident at any
time upon 30 days notice, and allow, at the time of renewal, for adjustments in the daily fees payable, and thus may
enable us to seek increases in daily fees due to inflation or other factors. Any increase would be subject to masket
and competitive conditions and could result in a decrease in occupancy of our communities. We believe, however,
that the short-term nature of our resident agreements generaily serves to reduce the risk to us of the adverse effect of
inflation. There can be no assurance that resident and anciliary fees will increase or that costs will not mcreas& due
to inflation or other causes.

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Our internal control over financial reporting is intended tor
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

A system of internat control over financial reporting (1) pertains to the maintenance of records that, in reasgnable
detail, should accurately and fairly reflect the Company’s transactions and dispositions of the Company’s assets;
(2) provides reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipis and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of the Company’s management
and directors; and (3) provides reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated
financial statements,

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the .
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In making its assessment of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, management used
the criteria issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control-
Integrated Framework. In connection with this assessment, management determined that two items constitute
material weaknesses in internal control as of December 31, 2007. These two material weaknesses are descnbe@ as
follows:

ENTITY-LEVEL CONTROL ENVIRONMENT — The extensive nature of the Company’s accounting
restatement and the findings of the Special Independent Committee confirmed that the Company did not setithe
appropriate tone around accounting and control consciousness, lacked a sufficient complement of personnelwith
an appropriate level of accounting knowledge, experience and training to support the size and complexity of the
Company’s organizational structure and financial reporting requirements, and did not exercise appropriate
oversight of accounting, financial reporting and internal control matters; and

PROCESS AND TRANSACTION LEVEL CONTROLS - There was a lack of clear organization and
accountability within the accounting function, inchuding insufficient review and supervision, combined with, weak
financial reporting systems that were not integrated and required extensive manual interventions. Specifically,
there was a lack of effective accounting reviews for routine and non-routine transactions and accounts. As result,
and coupled with a lack of a sufficient level of experienced personnel as described in the entity level control
environment deficiency, the Company was unable to close its books in a timely and accurate manner.
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Conclusion

As of December 31, 2007, management has concluded that there were two material weaknesses in internal control
over financial reporting, and, accordingly, the Company’s intetnal control over financial reporting was not effective
at that date.

Our independent registered public accounting firm that audited the financial statements in this report has issued
an attestation report expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as at
December 31, 2007, which report appears below.,

Remediation Steps to Address Material Weaknesses

As disclosed in our 2006 Form 10-K, in connection with management’s assessment of the Company's internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, management identified four material weaknesses in the
Company’s internal confrol over fipancial reporting. The four matenal weaknesses were;

1. Entity-level control environment

2. Transaction documentation and written accounting policies
3. Communication and information flow

4. Process and transaction level controls

Management, including the CEO and CFOQ, determined that as of December 31, 2007 there was sufficient analysis
and written documentation of the application of GAAP and adequate policies and procedures to ensure the
accounting personnel were made aware of the specific features in transactions. Accordingly, management concluded
that the second and third material weaknesses identified at December 31, 2006 had been remediated as of
December 31, 2007, T ‘

Management, under the direction of the CEQ and CFO, has been directing remediation efforts; including
implementation of the Board approved remedial framework. In connection with the preparation of the financial
statements for 2007, we continued performing the compensating controls and procedures that we implemented in
2006 and designed to assure that any weaknesses in internal control did not impact the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements. Since the filing of cur 2006 Form 10-K an March 24, 2008, we have continued to
build on the remedial ac:ions undertaken in 2007 and continued to implement the Board adopted remedial
framework. While efforts continue, management believes that the Company has made significant improvements to
the control environment and to the Company’s accounting operations, primarily through the previously disclosed
extensive changes in senior management and other personnel, extensive organizational changes, increased staffing
and increased focus on controls. Management believes that the two material weaknesses that existed at December 31,
2007 will be remediated in 2008.




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Sunrise Senior Living, Inc.

‘We have audited Sunrise Senior Living, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007,
based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Sunrise Senior Living, Inc.’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Report én
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an oplmon on the Company’s mtemal
control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes.in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reportiag
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordanee
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonakie
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control gver financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may btcome
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures say
deteriorate.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company’s annual or interim financial
statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. The following material weaknesses have been
identified and included in management’s assessment:

Entity-Level Control Environment

The extensive nature of the Company’s accounting restatement and the findings of the Special Independent
Committee confirmed that the Company did not set the appropriate tone around accounting and control
consciousness, lacked a sufficient complement of personnel with an appropriate level of accounting knowledge,
experience and training to support the size and complexity of the Company’s organizational structure and financial
reporting requirements, and did not exercise appropriate oversight of accounting, financial reporting and internal
control matters.
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Process and Transaction Level Controls

There was a lack of clear organization and accountability within the accounting function, including insufficient
review and supervision, combined with weak financial reporting systems that were not integrated and required
extensive manual interventions. Specifically, there was a lack of effective accounting reviews for routing and non-
routine transactions and accounts. As a result, and coupled with a lack of a sufficient level of experienced personnel
as described in the entity level control environment deficiency, the Company was unable to close its books in a
timely and accurate manner.

These material weaknesses were considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in
our audit of the 2007 financial statements, and this report does not affect our report dated July 30, 2008 on those
financial staternents.
In our opinion, because of the effect of the material weaknesses described above on the achievement of the
objectives of the control criteria, Sunrise Senior Living, Inc. has not maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the COSO criteria,

/s/ Emst & Young LLP

McLean, Virginia
July 30, 2008
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Stockholders and Board of Directors
Sunrise Senior Living, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Sunrise Senior Living, Inc. as of December 31,
2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statemznts based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Beard
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Sunrise Senior Living, Inc. as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the consolicated results of
its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007, in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 3 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, the Company has restated its
financial statemnents for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 and has restated its statement of cash flaws
for the year ended December 31, 2007.

As discussed in Note 2 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Financial
Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes and EITF Issue
No. 06-8, Applicability of the Assessment of a Buyer’s Continuing Investment under FASB Statemeni No. 66,
Accounting for Sales of Real Estate for Sales of Condominiums, effective January 1, 2007.

Also as discussed in Note 2 to the accompanying consolidated financial statemments, the Company adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, effective January 1, 2006.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States), Sunrise Senior Living, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007,
based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated July 30, 2008 expressed an adverse opinion
thereon.

/s/ Emst & Young LLP

McLean, Virginia

July 30, 2008, except for Paragraph 1
of Note 3, as to which the date is
QOctober 15, 2008
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

(In thousands, except per share and share amounts) 2007 2006
(Restated)
ASSETS
Current Assets;
Cash and cash equivalents..........ceorecninirensecennens v rserertasensnsnarias hY 138,212 § 21,990
Accounts receivable, net 76,909 75,055
Notes receivable .. v ererrersesassares — 4,174
Income taxes rccelvable 63,624 30,873
Diue from unconsolidatec. commumtles net “ SRRSO 61,854 80,729
Deferred inCOME tAXES, NBL......c..oveecceeeeeeetsstin e s esee s rsrsstsassrasssnasassanssarans 33,567 29,998
Restricted cash... ettt ananes 61,999 34,293
Prepaid insurance.. - 23,720 5,485
Prepaid expenses and other current assets - 70,079 19,401
Total current assets ........ eeverererensrseean . 529,964 361,998
Property and equipment, net .. . 656,211 609,385
Property and eqmpment st bject to a sales contract, net. e rreanneaes — 193,158
Property and equipment subject to financing, net........ S 58,871 62,520
Notes receivable................ . 9,429 17,631
Due from unconsolidated ¢ ommunmes rerreeereeaneneseeenes 19,555 24,959
Intangible assets, NEt.........ccocverrercrerercnmrannraes 83,769 103,771
Goodwill... 169,736 218,015
Investments in unconsolldatcd communmes . 97,173 104,272
Restricted cash................... 165,386 143,760
Other assets, net 8,503 8,832
Total ASSELS ...cvveemecserrerirrererensssassanes e i 1,798,597 § 1,848,301
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt ... OO, 122,541 § 91,923
Outstanding draws on bank credit faCIllt}' 100,060 50,000
Accounts payable and accrued expenses..........oocoee.c.. 275,362 216,087
Due to unconsolidated communities................................. 37,344 5,792
Deferred revenue .........coinccscnnines 9,285 8,703
Entrance fees.....ccoorvveenns 34,512 38,008
Self-insurance liabilities ., 67,267 41,379
Total current liabilities... 646,311 451,982
Long-term debt, less current maturties ... e resbemete e en st 31,347 48,682
Deposits related to properties subject to a ) sales contract ... ettt oo — 240,367
Liabilities related to properties accounted for under the ﬁnancmg e B 54,317 66,283
Investment accounted for under the profit-shanng method.... . 51,377 29,148
Guarantee liabilities.............. 65,814 75,805
Self-insurance liabilities .. - 74,971 72,993
Deferred gains on the sale of real cstate and defcm:d rr:vcnues reetermeeeenenereeventestasasin 74,367 51,958
Deferred income tax liabilities... 82,605 78,632
Other long-term liabilities, net 133,717 85,228
Total liabilities................ 1,214 826 1,201,078
IMIDOMIY IEETESES o eceiiiit eerrereerrrnsn s esrereransanseensssessranssessssessaseerannsseseososesastasaessnsrasessssastsemanssnnsanasnen 10,208 16,515
Stockholders® Equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized, no shares issued and
OUtSARAINEG .ot i -— _
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 120,000, 000 sha.res authonzed 50 556 925 a.nd
50,572,092 shares issued and outstandmg, net of 103,696 and 27,197 treasury shares, at
December3l 2007 and 2006, respectively.... 506 ' 506
Additional pald 11 ;1 131 72 S weerererr e 452,640 445,275
Retained earnings .. - 112,123 182,398
Accumulated other comprehenswe INCOME et 8.294 2,529
Total stockholders’ equity..... . 573,563 630.708
Commitments and contingencies
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity - cetrereremrenaneen e stnemesnnenenrsenseene 31,198,597 8 1848301

See accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

. Year Ended December 31,
(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2007 2006 2005
: {Restated)  (Restated)
Operating revenue: .
Management fEES .....c.iuui e crree e e e s e e et b n e $ 127830 $ 117228 § 104,823
BUYOUL EES ...ttt et ee e e e e et et e a s e s ra e . 1,626 134,730 83,036
Professional fees from development, marketing and other.........o.vvevvcvverereerencnnen, 38,855 28,553 24,920
Resident fees for consolidated communities.......o.ooooieee e ieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 402,396 381,709 341,610
Hospice and other ancillary SErviCes.......oovuirrieesimcrissnies s s resssesss e sssssesse e s 125,796 76,882 44,641
Reimbursed CONIACE SEIVICES ..c.oveei e v irseersesn s crseneressrernssasesinsssranssrsissnsrons 956,047 911,979 - 911,992
Total OPETAtiNG FEVEIIES......ccveiecririerererinteseseseeseseesenss e meesmssesasscsnsssesesesssesnsensacs 1,652,550 1,651,081 1,511,022
Operating expenses: .
Development and VENtITe EXPENSE ....ccveriueerrerreecssereinssarersessrenssseesnsvaresssaresnsssaens 79,203 69,145 41,064
Community expense for consolidated commMUNILIES ......ooveveereeeceeece e vee v 290,203 276,833 251,058
Hospice and other ancillary SETVICES EXPEISE....vvuuvirrreivemeireersressssrsssrsseresensessares 134,634 74,767 45,051
Community 1EaSE EXPEISE .. oviiiioeiie et et eeee e eeeesreamerepesas eeneeeneaaa 68,994 61,991 57,946
General and administrative.............. 187,325 131,473 106,601
Accounting Restatement and Spec1al Independent Cormmttce Inquuy.....‘.......... 51,707 2,600 —
Loss on financial guarantees and other contracts... 22,005 ° 89,676 _
Provision for doUubtfUl ACCOUNTIS ......cccveveivrivreeirreeeissmesseseeeesesteseeererseesmesns et srenans 9,564 14,632 1,675
Impairment of owned commumtaes ettt irtetetetnreeraaataseasnee e taeosanressraeerenteteann 7,641 15,730 2,472
Impairment of goodwill and mtang:ble assets ..................................................... 56,729 — —
Depreciation and amortization.. 55,280 48,648 42,981
Write-off of abandoned dcve]opment pchcts 28,430 1,329 502
Write-off of unamortized contract costs .. — 25,359 14,609
Reimbursed contract SEMVICES ......coouevv i e e 956,047 911,979 911,992
Total OPETating EXPEISES -...ccocervereeecrrerenieereertemnesiemeaesrseenesemsssesoenssesenssesesnerenes 1947762 1.724.162 " 1.476,351
{Loss) income from operations ........ccovereenceniornnisisnsscsesnnesssrenens (299,212} (73,081) 34,671
Other non~operating income {expense): '
Interest income .. 9,894 9,577 6,231
IDLETESt EXPENSE .ovvvverersreree (6,647} (6,204) (11,882
(Loss) gain on mvestments ................................................................................. —— (5,610) 2,036
Other (expense) income.. {6.089) 6,706 3,105
Total other non-operatmg (expense) meome . (2,842) 4,469 (510
Gain on the sale and development of real estate and equlty mterests ................... 105,081 51,347 - 81,723
Sunrise’s share of earnings and return on investment in unconsolidated
COMIITIUIILIES L1vvivvviiseiiimrsiesesmeitessransesteessmseaeessomesemssaseessessomsossnsensensaesaesnsensnsonsns 108,947 43,702 13,472
Gain (loss) from investments accounted for under the profit-sharing method...... . 22 . (85T} (857
Minerity interests.. ) L 4470 6916 . 6,721
(Loss) income before provxsnon for income taxcs.................‘ ............................ (79,534) 32,496 135,220
Benefit from (provision for) INCOME taXEeS........oevererrneserm et e et s ena e 9.259 (17.212) + (52,156

Net (J0S8) IMCOME ......eeeerenrieeeeiceeces e s ecrereenseseresaerssreesrsssrererssesrsserenssrensersnenes e (20,275)

Earnings per share data:
Basic net (loss) income per common Share ..........o.ooveeiicinesiesinsinsinirsesrnsres 3 (1.41)
Diluted net (loss) income per common Share.............cvveecevrnrrienerensrsessesnees (1.41)

See accompanying notes.

3 15284 ¥ . 83,0064

$ 031 % 2.00

- 030

1.74
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

{In thonsands)

Balance at January 1, 2005 (As
previously stated)....

Effect of restatement

Balance at January 1, 2005

Net income (Restated) ..................
Foreign currency transtaticn
loss, pet of tax... S
Sunrise’s share of mvestee s
other comprehensive loss............
Total comprahensivc incorane
(Restated}....
Issuance of common stock Lo
employees....
Repurchase of common stock.......
Conversion of convertible debt.....
Issuance of restricted stock...........
Amortization of restricted stock....
Tax effect of stock-based
COMPENSAtIoN.......cveereeeeeeeraccanans
Balance at December 31, 2005

Net income (Restated) .....c.oveuneeee.
Foreign currency translaticn
income, net of tax .........coee....n.
Sunrise’s share of investee’s
other comprehensive income.......
Total comprehensive income

Issuance of common stock to
EMPLOYELS et cermrerreereesrrcananrareas
Conversion of convertible debt.....
Issuance of restricted stock...........
Forfeiture of restricted stock.........
Adoption of SFAS 123R..........c....
Stock-based compensation
BXPETISE cooeeereresenreraeemseeeen s s
Tax effect of stock-based
COMPENSALION ......cocmtvseciiiirinsnne
Balance at December 31, 2006

Net loss
Foreign currency translation
income, net of taX ......cocooveeernns
Sunrise’s share of investee’s
other comprehensive income ...
Total comprehensive loss..............
Issuance of restricted stock ...........
Forfeiture or surrender of
restricted StOCK......oomeemeeeeveneenns
Stock-based compensaﬁon
€XpeTse...
Tax effect of stock-based
compensation...
Balance at December 31 2-307 ......

Accumulated
Shares of Common Additional Other
Common  Stock Paid-in Retained Deferred Comprehensive
Stock Amount Capital Earnings  Compensation _ Income (Loss) Total
. 41,138 0§ 412 0§ 279,116 § 91,545 $  (4,539) $ 3,165 $ 369,703
{7.493) (7.495)
41,138 412 279,116 84,050 (4,.535) 3,165 362,208
— —_— — 83,064 - — 83,064
— —_ — — — (3,231) (3,231)
_ —_ _ — —_ (503) {503)
— — —_ — — — 79,330
2,248 22 31,307 — — 31,329
(348) (3) (8,709) -_— — — (8,712)
3 — 55 _ —_ 55
412 4 10,995 — {10,997) — 2
— — —_ — 3,209 — 3,209
— — 13,443 — — — 13,443
43,453 435 326,207 167,114 (12,323) (569) 480,864
— — _— 15,284 — — 15,284
— — — — — 2,205 2,205
— — — _ — 893 8§93
— — — —_ —_ _ 18,382
374 3 5,161 — — _ 5,164
6,700 a7 117,917 —_ — —_ 117,984
45 1 532 — — — 533
— — (5) — — 6))
— — (12,323) — 12,323 — _—
_ — 5,846 — -— — 5,846
— — 1,840 — — — 1,940
50,572 506 445275 182,398 — 2,529 630,708
— — — (70,275) — — (70,275)
— — — — — 5,865 5,865
— —_ — — — (100) (100)
—_ —_— — — — _ {64.510)
83 1 — - — — 1
(103) (1) (1,818) — — — (1,819)
— — 7,020 — _ — 7,020
— — 2,163 p— 2,163
50557 $ 506 § 432,640 L&é&é S___-... $ _573.563

See accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31, N
2007 2006 2005
(In thousands) estated {Restated) (Restated)
Operating activities
Net (loss} income . h (70275) $ 15284 8§ 83064
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Gain ¢n sale and development of real estate and equity INtETESES .onvvnnncrnrrersrsssrsssesss (105,081) (51,347) (81,723)
(Gain) loss from investments sccounted for under the pmﬁl-shan.ug method................. . (22) 857 857
Gain from application of financing method — (1,155) {528)
Gain on sale of investment in Sunrise REIT debentures — — (2036)
L0353 0D SalE OF IV ESIIIIETILS ..o e e e eeeseeseesemneanem s en sermeseresreresrsrensesersessenerer —_— 5,610 —_
Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets 56,729 — —
Write-off of abandoned development ProJEctS ... ... evecue i erece e eemeiassenees 28,430 1,329 502
Provision for doubtfial BCCOUNLS .......coccmninrenrenisr s ssbesbenssesesrassastossensssrenssrsseses 9,564 14,632 15675
Provision for deferred income taxes 733 (3,853) 29357
Impairment of LoNg-Lved BSSEtS........ccccnmmmmnnerisnearmirin s ssssssssssssrsssssressssenss 7,641 15,730 2472
Loss on financial guarantees and other contracts ...........ccocooueeeeeeervene. 22,005 89,676 L —
Sunrise’s share of earnings and return on investment in unconsolidated communities.... (108,947} (11,997) {13,073)
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated COMMUNITIES.....ereu v rrsversrrsressssrssmemsrsrane 168,322 66,381 26,545
Minority interest in income/loss of controlled entities 4,470) (6,916) 6(721)
Depreciation and BMOMZALON ...vrverserssrsssssermsnsarmresnernens 55,280 48,648 42P981
Write-off of unamortized contract costs......vvvrererene — 25,359 14609
Amortization of ﬁna.nmng costs 1,051 1,404 1,483
Stock-based compcnsanun 7,020 6,463 5465
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable ... err s bt S (12,388) (23,242) 3850
Due from unconsolldated commumncs 28,111 (83,451) (6£279)
Prepaid expenses and other current nsscts . reerrans (60,282) (4,041) (3425)
Captive insurance restricted cash srrers s s e s ser e s (32,930 (48,840} (28430)
OHher 255818 ..v.cuveecrees e consssssssianae {35,666) 6,694 {6,189)
Increage (decrease) in:
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities. .......ccuemmrrinnnrirnens 140,589 22,204 68820
Entrance fees.......... (3,586) 913 1085
Self-insurance liabilities.......... 12,866 30,186 21 gzs
Guarantee liabilities .. (5.829) — —
Deferred revenue and gains on the sale of real estate 29,621 983 33034
Net cash provided by operating activities. 128,486 117511 0
Investing activities
Capital exPEnUIUIES. ..o rricnis st s seasss st srmstars bee et secressesses sessessesssssreassassnsersassasssesesss (245,523) (188,655) (1323857)
Acquisitions of business assets. e et east e es s sraren (49.917) (103,491) (75532)
Dispositions of PrOPEItY c...cveeeee e s s 60,387 83,290 56246
Cash obtained in acquisition of GEEYSIONE ........ccoeeeeeemreeereneeeaee e remreaessesessesseseranes - — — 10922
Change in restricted cash .....cicenmrecerersseecsaneens {21,792 (11,428) (15,701)
Purchases of short-term investments . (448,900) (172,575) (62825)
Proceeds from short-term investments 448 900 172,575 77325
Increase in investments and NOtes TECEIVADBIE ..o ecnicniesissnssssssetes s besnseme st e senmeras " (183,314) (343,286) (158597)
Proceeds from investments and notes receivable imvensvrvreva 220,312 376,061 1871042
Investments in unconsolidated communities (29,297) (77,311) (64080)
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated commumncs ................................................... 601 5954 9273
Net cash used in investing activities {248,543y _ (258926 __ _ (168484)
Financing activities
Net proceeds from exercised options... — 4 299865
Additional borrowings of long-term debt...........ccocvuene. 243,564 154,140 149539
Repayment of long-term debt (66,105) {90,781) {137296)
Contribution from minority interests Vet s R et e s — 15,669 5000
Distributions to minofity MEETESES ... sstrstrmrarsaresreessmssessesess (1,180) (630) (1021
FInARCIng COSIS PAIA...vvesevercscmsemsssimssasnasnasrssassssnssns s sesnssssssss sesssssssssssssssensssnssssns —_ (75) (2622)
Repurchases of COMINON SIOCK...........covreri et curimsiesiesrssssniasssssssemsisssssims s messssrssesssssssssssesasses — — 2
Net cash provided by financing activitics................ 176,279 78,327 53 -
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 56,222 (63,088) 55459
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of Year ... et 81,990 4
Cash and cash equivalents at end of Year.......cmis s s § 138212 § 81950 § 145

See accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Presentation
Organization

We are a provider of senior living services in the United States, Canada, the United Kingdom and Germany. We
were incorporated in Delaware on December 14, 1994,

At December 31, 2007, we operated 439 communities, including 402 communities in the United States, 12
communities in Canada, 17 communities in the United Kingdom and eight communities in Germany, with a total
resident capacity of approximately 54,000. Qur communities offer a full range of personalized senior living
services, from independent living, to assisted living, to care for individuals with Alzheimer’s and other forms of
memory loss, to nursing, rehabilitative care and hospice services. We develop senior living communities for
ourself, for unconsolidated ventures in which we retain an ownership interest and for third parties.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements which are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”) include our wholly owned and controlled subsidiaries. Variable interest entities
(“VIEs") in which we have an interest have been consolidated when we have been identified as the primary
beneficiary. Commencing with our adoption of EITF 04-5, Determining Whether a General Partner, or the
General Parmers as a Group, Controls a Limited Partnership or Similar Entity When the Limited Partners Have
Certain Rights (“EITF (4-5"), entities in which we hold the managing member or general partner interest are
consolidated unless the other members or partners have either (1) the substantive ability to dissolve the entity or
otherwise remove us as managing member or general partner without cause or (2) substantive participating rights,
which provide the other partner or member with the ability to effectively participate in the significant decisions
that would be expected 10 be made in the ordinary course of business. EITF 04-5 was effective June 29, 2005 for
new or modified limited partnership arrangements and effective January 1, 2006 for existing limited partnership
arrangements. There are no previously unconsolidated entities that required consotidation as a result of adoption of
EITF 04-5. Investments in ventures in which we have the ability to exercise significant influence but do not have
control over are accounied for using the equity method. All intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated in consolidation.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results
could differ from those 2stimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider cash and cash equivalents to include currency on hand, demand deposits, and all highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less at the date of purchase.

Restricted Cash

We utilize large deductible blanket insurance programs in order to contain costs for certain lines of insurance
risks including workers’ compensation and employers’ liability risks, automobile liability risk, employment
practices liability risk and general and professional lLiability risks (“Self-Insured Risks”). We have self-insured a
portion of the Self-Insured Risks through our wholly owned captive insurance subsidiary, Sunrise Senior Living
Insurance, Inc. (the “Suarise Captive”). The Sunrise Captive issues policies of insurance to and receives premiums
from us that are reimbursed through expense allocations to each operated community and us. The Sunrise Captive
pays the costs for each claim above a deductible up to a per claim limit. Cash held by Sunrise Captive of
$128.2 million and $95.3 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, is available to pay claims. The
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eamnings from the investment of the cash of Sunrise Captive are used to reduce future costs of and pay the
liabilities of Sunrise Captive. Interest income in Sunrise Captive was $3.5 million, $2.1 million and $0.6 million
for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Restricted cash also includes escrow accounts related to other insurance
programs, land deposits, a bonus program and other items.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
We provide an allowance for doubtful accounts on our outstanding receivables based on an analysis of

collectibility, including our collection history and generally do not require collateral to support outstanding
balances.

Naotes Receivable
We on occasion may provide financing to unconsolidated ventures at negotiated interest rates. These loans age
included in “Notes receivabie” in the consolidated balance sheets. The collectibility of these notes is monitored
based on the current performance of the ventures, the budgets and projections for future performance, If
circumstances were to sugpest that any amounts with respect to these notes would be uncollectible, we would -
establish a reserve to record the notes at their net realizable value. Generally we do not require collateral to support
outstanding balances.

Due from Unconsolidated Communities

Due from unconsolidated communities represents amounts due from unconsolidated ventures for development
and management costs, including development fees, operating costs such as payroll and insurance costs, and
management fees. Development costs are reimbursed when third-party financing is obtained by the venture.
Operating costs are generally reimbursed within thirty days.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the
lesser of the estimated useful lives of the related assets or the remaining lease term. Repairs and maintenance are
charged to expense as incurred.

In conjunction with the acquisition of land and the development and construction of communities,
preacquisition costs are expensed as incurred until we determine that the costs are directly identifiable witha
specific property. The costs would then be capitalized if the property was already acquired or the acquisition of the
property is probable. Upon acquisition of the land, we commence capitalization of all direct and indirect project
costs clearly associated with the development and construction of the community. We expense indirect costs as
incurred that are not clearly related to projects. We charge direct costs to the projects to which they relate. If a
project is abandoned, we expense any costs previously capitalized. We capitalize the cost of the corporate
development department based on the time employees devote to each project. We capitalize interest a; described in
“Capitalization of Interest Related to Development Projects” and other carrying costs to the project and the
capitalization period continues until the asset is ready for its intended use or is abandoned.

We capitalize the cost of tangible assets used throughout the selling process and other direct costs, srovided ¢hat
their recovery is reasonably expected from future sales. ,

We review the carrying amouats of long-lived assets for impairment when indicators of impairment are
identified. If the carrying amount of the long-lived asset (group) exceeds the undiscounted expected cash flows ghat
are directly associated with the use and eventual disposition of the asset (group) we record an impairment charge to
""the extent the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the assets. We determine the fair value of long-
lived assets based upon valuation techniques that include prices for similar assets (group).
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Real Estate Sales

We account for sales of real estate in accordance with FASB Statement No. 66, Accounting for Sales of Real
Estate (“SFAS 66™). For sales transactions meeting the requirements of SFAS 66 for full accrual profit recognition,
the related assets and liabilities are removed from the balance sheet and the gain or loss is recorded in the period
the transaction closes. For sales transactions that do not meet the criteria for full accrual profit recognition, we
account for the transactions in accordance with the methods specified in SFAS 66. For sales transactions that do
not contain continuing involvement following the sate or if the continuing involvement with the property is
contractually limited by the terms of the sales contract, profit is recognized at the time of sale. This profit is then
reduced by the maximura exposure to loss related to the contractually limited continuing involvement. Sales to
ventures in which we have an equity interest are accounted for in accordance with the partial sale accounting
provisions as set forth in SFAS 66.

For sales transactions that do not meet the full accrual sale criteria as set forth in SFAS 66, we evaluate the
nature of the continuing involvement and account for the transaction under an alternate method of accounting
rather than full accrual sale, based on the nature and extent of the continuing invelvement. Some transactions may
have numerous forms of continuing involvement. In those cases, we determine which method is most appropriate
based on the substance cf the transaction.

Venture agreements may contain provisions which provide us with an option or obligation to repurchase the
property from the venture at a fixed price that is higher than the sales price. In these instances, the financing
method of accounting is followed. Under the financing method of accounting, we record the proceeds received
from the buyer as a financing obligation and continue to keep the property and related accounts recorded on our
books. The results of operations of the property, net of expenses other than depreciation (net operating income), is
reflected as “interest expense” on the financing obligation. Because the transaction includes an option or obligation
to repurchase the asset at a higher price, interest is recorded to accrete the liability to the repurchase price.
Depreciation expense cantinues to be recorded as a period expense. All cash paid or received by us is recorded as
an adjustment to the financing obligation. If the repurchase option or obligation expires and all other criteria for
profit recognition under the full accrual method have been met, a sale is recorded and gain is recognized. The
assets are recorded in “Property and equipment subject to financing, net” in the consolidated balance sheets, and
the liabilities are recorded in “Liabilities related to properties accounted for under the financing method” in the
consolidated balance sheets.

In transactions accounted for as partial sales, we determine if the buyer of the majority equity interest in the
venture was provided a preference as to cash flows in either an operating or a capital waterfall. If a cash flow
preference has been provided, profit, including our development fee, is only recognizable to the extent that
proceeds from the sale of the majority equity interest exceed costs related to the entire property.

We also may provide a guarantee to support the operations of the properties. If the guarantees are for an
extended period of time, we apply the profit-sharing method and the property remains on the books, net of any
cash proceeds received from the buyer. If support is required for a limited period of time, sale accounting is
achieved and profit on the sale may begin to be recognized on the basis of performance of the services required
when there is reasonable assurance that future operating revenues will cover operating expenses and debt service.

Under the profit-sharing method, the property portion of our net investment is amortized over the life of the
property. Results of operations of the communities before depreciation, interest and fees paid to us is recorded as
“Loss from investments accounted for under the profit-sharing method™ in the consolidated statements of income.
The net income from ope=rations as adjusted is added to the investment account and losses are reflected as a
reduction of the net investment. Distributions of operating cash flows to other venture partners are reflected as an
additional expense. All cash paid or received by us is recorded as an adjustment to the net investment. The net
investment is reflected in “Investments accounted for under the profit-sharing method” in the consolidated balance
sheets.

We provided a guaranteed return on investment to certain buyers of properties. When the guarantee was for an

extended period of time, SFAS 66 precltudes sale accounting and we applied the profit-sharing method. When the
guarantee was for a limized period of time, the deposit method was applied until operations of the property covered
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all operating expenses, debt service, and contractual payments, at which time profit was recognized vnder the
performance of services method.

Under the deposit method, we did not recognize any profit, and continued to report in our financial statements
the property and related debt even if the debt had been assumed by the buyer, and disclosed that those items are
subject to a sales contract. We continued to record depreciation expense. All cash paid or received by us was
recorded as an adjustment to the deposit. When the transaction qualified for profit recognitior under the full
accrual method, the application of the deposit method was discontinued and the gain was recognized. The assefs
were recorded in “Property and equipment, subject to a sales contract, net” and the liabilities were recorded in .
“Deposits related to properties subject to a sales contract™ in the consolidated balance sheets. At December 31,
2007, we no longer have any sales transactions accounted for under the deposit method.

Capitalization of Interest Related to Development Projects

Interest is capitalized on real estate under development, including investments in ventures in accordance with
SFAS No. 34, Capitalization of Interest Cost, {"SFAS 34”) and in accordance with FASB Statement No. 58,
Capitalization of Interest Cost in Financial Statements That Include Investments Accounted for by the Equity
Method (“SFAS 58", Under SFAS 34 the capitalization period commences when development begins and continues
until the asset is ready for its intended use or the enterprise suspends substantially all activities related to the
acquisition of the asset. Under SFAS 58, we capitalize interest on our investment in ventures for which the equity
therein is utilized to construct buildings and cease capitalizing interest on our equity investment when the first
property in the portfolioc commences operations. The amount of interest capitalized is based on the stated mter%s
rates, incleding amortization of deferred financing costs. The calculation includes interest costs that theoretically
could have been avoided, based on specific borrowings to the extent there are specific borrowings. When project
specific borrowings do not exist or are less than the amount of qualifying assets, the calculation for sach exccss uses
a weighted average of all other debt outstanding,

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

We capitalize costs incurred to acquire management, development and other contracts. In determining the
allocation of the purchase price to net tangible and intangible assets acquired, we make estimates of the fair value of
the tangible and intangible assets using information obtained as a result of pre-acquisition due diligence, markating,
leasing activities and independent appraisals. '

Intangible assets are valued using expected discounted cash flows and are amortized using the straight-line
method over the remaining contract term, generally ranging from one to 30 years. The carrying amounts of
intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when indicators of impairment are identified. If the carrying ameunt
of the asset (group) exceeds the undiscounted expected cash flows that-are directly associated with the use and
eventual disposition of the asset (group), an impairment charge is recognized to the extent the carrying amountof
the asset exceeds the fair value.

Goodwill represents the costs of business acquisitions in excess of the fair value of identifiable ner assets acguired.
We evaluate the fair value of goodwill to assess potential impairment on an annual basis, or during the year if dn
event or other circumstance indicates that we may not be able to recover the carrying amount of the asset. We
evaluate the fair value of goodwill at the reporting unit level and make the determination based upon future cash
flow projections. We record an impairment loss for goodwill when the carrying value of the goodwill is less than the
estimated fair value.

Investments in Unconsolidated Communities
We hold a minority equity interest in ventures established to develop or acquire and own senior living
comnmunities. Those ventures are generally limited liability companies or limited partnerships. Our equity integest in
these ventures generally ranges from 10% to 50%.
In accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 46(R), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities (“FIN 46R”}), we

review all of our ventures to determine if they are variable interest entities (*VIEs”). If a venture is a VIE, it is
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consolidated by the primary beneficiary, which is the variable interest holder that absorbs the majority of the
venture’s expected losses, receives a majority of the venture’s expected residual returns, or both. At December 31,
2007, we consolidated seven VIEs where we are the primary beneficiary.

In accordance with EITF 04-5, Determining Whether a General Partner, or the General Partners as a Group,
Controls a Limited Partrership or Similar Entity When the Limited Partners Have Certain Rights, the general
partner or managing meraber of a venture consolidates the venture unless the limited partners or other members have
either (1) the substantive ability to dissolve the venture or otherwise remove the general partner or managing
member without cause o: (2) substantive participating rights in significant decisions of the venture, including
authorizing operating and capital decisions of the venture, including budgets, in the ordinary course of business. We
have reviewed all venturss that are not VIEs where we are the general partner or managing member and have
determined that in all cases the limited partners or other members have substantive participating rights such as those
set forth above and, therefore, no ventures are consolidated under EITF 04-5.

For veptures not consolidated, we apply the equity method of accounting in accordance with APB Opinion No. 18,
The Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in Common Stock, and Statcment of Position No. 78-9,
Accounting for Investments in Real Estate Ventures, (“SOP 78-9). Equity method investments are initially recorded
at cost and subsequently are adjusted for our share of the venture’s earnings or losses and cash distributions. In
accordance with SOP 78-9, the allocation of profit and losses should be analyzed to determine how an increase or
decrease in net assets of the venture (determined in conformity with GAAP) will affect cash payments to the
investor over the life of the venture and on its liquidation. Because certain venture agreements contain preferences
with regard to cash flows from operations, capital events and/or liguidation, we reflect our share of profits and losses
by determining the difference between our “claim on the investee’s book value” at the end and the beginning of the
period. This claim is calculated as the amount that we would receive (or be obligated to pay) if the investee were to
liquidate all of its assets at recorded amounts determined in accordance with GAAP and distribute the resulting cash
to creditors and investors in accordance with their respective priorities. This method is commonly referred to as the
hypothetical liquidation at book value method.

Our reported share of earnings is adjusted for the impact, if any, of basis differences between our carrying value
of the equity investment and our share of the venture’s underlying assets. We generally do not have future
requirements to contribute additional capital over and above the original capital commitments, and in accordance
with APB 18, we disconsinue applying the equity method of accounting when our investment is reduced to zero
barring an expectation of an imminent return to profitability. If the venture subsequently teports net income, the
equity method of accounting is resumed only after our share of that net income equals the share of net losses not
recognized during the period the equity method was suspended.

When the majority equity partner in one of our ventures sells its equity interest to a third party, the venture
frequently refinances its senior debt and distributes the net proceeds to the equity partners. All distributions received
by us, which are not refundable either by agreement, or by law, are first recorded as a reduction of our investment.
Next, we record a liability for any contractual or implied future financial support to the venture including obligations
in our role as a general parmer. Any remaining distributions are recorded as “Sunrise’s share of earnings and return
on investment in unconsolidated communities™ in the consolidated statements of income.

We evaluate realization of our investment in ventures accounted for using the equity method if circumstances
indicate that our investment is other than temporarily impaired.

Deferred Financing Costs
Costs incurred in connection with obtaining permanent financing for our consolidated communities are deferred
and amortized over the term of the financing using the effective interest method. Deferred financing costs are
included in “Other assets™ in the consolidated balance sheets.

Loss Reserves For Certain Self-Insured Programs

We offer a variety of insurance programs to the communities we operate. These programs include property
insurance, general and professional liability insurance, excess/umnbrella liability insurance, crime insurance,”
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automobile liability and physical damage insurance, workers’ compensation and employers’ liability insurance and
employment practices liability insurance (the “Insurance Program™). Substantially all of the communities we operate
participate in the Insurance Program are charged their proportionate share of the cost of the Insurance: Program.

We utilize large deductible blanket insurance programs in order to contain costs for certain of the lines of
insurance risks in the Insurance Program including workers’ compensation and employers® liability risks,
automobile liability risk, employment practices liability risk and general and professional liability risks (“Self-
Insured Risks™). The design and purpose of a large deductible insurance program is to reduce overall premium and
claim costs by internally financing lower cost claims that are more predictable from year to year, while buying
insurance only for higher-cost, less predictable claims.

We have self-insured a portion of the Self-Insured Risks through the Sunrise Captive. The Sunrise Captive issues
policies of insurance to and receives premiums from us that are reimbursed through expense allocation to each
operated community. The Sunrise Captive pays the costs for each claim above a deductible up to a per claim limit.
Third-party insurers are responsible for claim costs above this limit. These third-party insurers carry an A.M. Best
rating of A-/VII or better.

We record outstanding losses and expenses for all Self-Insured Risks and for claims under insurance policie$
based on management’s best estimate of the ultimate liability after considering all available information, including
expected future cash flows and actuarial analyses. We believe that the allowance for outstanding losses and expenses
is appropriate to cover the ultimate cost of losses incurred at December 31, 2007, but the allowance raay ultimstely
be settled for a greater or lesser amount. Any subsequent changes in estimates are recorded in the period in which
they are determined and will be shared with the communities participating in the insurance programs based on the
preportionate share of any changes.

Employee Health and Dental Benefits

We offer employees an option to participate in our self-insured health and dental plan. The cost of our empleyee
health and dental benefits, net of employee contributions, is shared between us and the communities based on the
respective number of participants working either at our corporate headquarters or at the communities. Funds
collected are used to pay the actual program costs including estimated annual claims, third-party administrative fees,
network provider fees, communication costs, and other related administrative costs incurred by us. Although claims
under this plan are self-insured, we have aggregate protection which caps the potential liability for both individual
and total claims during a plan year. Claims are paid as they are submitted to the plan administrator. We also regord a
liability for outstanding claims and claims that have been incurred but not yet reported. This liability is based an the
historical claim reporting lag and payment trends of health insurance claims. We believe that the liability for
outstanding losses and expenses is adequate to cover the ultimate cost of losses incurred at December 31, 2007, but
actual claims may differ. Any subsequent changes in estimates are recorded in the period in which they are
determined and will be shared with the communities participating in the program based on their proportionate $hare
of any changes. '

Continuing Care Agreements

We lease communities under operating leases and own communities that provide life care services under vagious
types of entrance fee agreements with residents (“Entrance Fee Communities” or “Continuing Care Fetirement
Comrmunities”). Residents of Entrance Fee Communities are required to sign a continuing care agreement with us.
The care agreement stipulates, among other things, the amount of all entrance and monthly fees, the fype of
residential unit being provided, and our obligation to provide both health care and non-health care sexvices. In
addition, the care agreement provides us with the right to increase future monthly fees. The care agreement is
terminated upon the receipt of a written termination notice from the resident or the death of the resident. Refundable
entrance fees are returned to the resident or the resident’s estate depending on the form of the agreement either upon
reoccupancy or terrnination of the care agreement.

When the present value of estimated costs to be incurred under care agreements exceeds the present value of
estimated revenues, the present value of such excess costs is accrued. The calculation assumes a future increase in
the monthly revenue commensurate with the monthly costs. The calculation currently results in an expected positive
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net present value cash flow and, as such, no liability was recorded as of December 31, 2007. A liability of
$1.3 million was recorded at December 31, 2006.

Refundable entrance fees are primarily non-interest bearing and, depending on the type of plan, can range from
between 30% to 100% of’ the total entrance fee less any additional occupant entrance fees. As these obligations are
considered security deposits, interest is not imputed on these obligations. Deferred entrance fees were $34.5 million
and $38.1 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Nen-refundable portions of entrance fees are deferred and recognized as revenue using the straight-line method
over the actuarially determined expected term of each resident’s contract,

Accounting for Guarantees

Guarantees entered in:o in connection with the sale of real estate often prevent us from either accounting for the
transaction as a sale of an asset or recognizing in earnings the profit from the sale transaction. Guarantees not
entered into in connection with the sale of real estate are considered financial instruments. For guarantees considered
financial instruments we recognize at the inception of a guarantee or the date of modification, a liability for the fair
value of the obligation undertaken in issuing a guarantee. On a quarterly basis, we evaluate the estimated liability
based on the operating results and the terms of the guarantee. If it is probable that we will be required to fund
additional amounts than previcusly estimated a loss is recorded. Fundings that are recoverable as a loan from a
venture are considered ir: the determination of the contingent loss recorded. Loan amounts are evaluated for
impairment at inception and then quarterty.

Asset Retirement Obliyations

In accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations — an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143, Asset Retirement Obligations (“FIN 47") we record a liability for a
conditional asset retirem=nt obligation if the fair value of the obligation can be reasonably estimated.

Certain of our operating real estate assets contain asbestos. The asbestos is appropriately contained, in accordance
with current environmental regulations, and we have no current plans to remove the asbestos. When, and if, these
properties are demolished, certain environmental regulations are in place which specify the manner in which the
asbestos must be handled and disposed of. Because the obligation to remove the asbestos has an indeterminable
seitlement date, we are not able to reasonably estimate the fair value of this asset retirement obligation. Asbestos has
also been found at some of our development sites where old buildings are scheduled to be demolished and replaced
with new Sunrise facilities. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006 our estimates for asbestos removal costs for these

_sites were insignificant.

In addition, certain of our long-term ground leases include clauses that may require us to dispose of the leasehold
improvements constructed on the premises at the end of the lease term. These costs, however, are not estimable due
to the range of potential settlement dates and variability among propertles Further, the present value of the expected
costs is insignificant as the remaining term of each of the leases is fifty years or more.

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of temporary differences between the amounts of assets and liabilities
recognized for financial reporting purposes and such amounts recognized for tax purposes. We record the current
year amounts payable or refundable, as well as the consequences of events that give rise to deferred tax assets and
liabilities based on differences in how these events are treated for tax purposes. We base our estimate of deferred tax
assets and liabilities on current tax laws and rates and, in certain cases, business plans and other expectations about
future outcomes. We provide a valuation allowance against the net deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not
that sufficient taxable income will not be generated to utilize the net deferred tax assets.
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Revenue Recognition

“Management fees” is comprised of fees from management contracts for operating communities owned by
unconsolidated ventures and third parties, which consist of base management fees and incentive management fees.
The management fees are generally between five and eight percent of a managed community’s total operating
revenue. Fees are recognized in the month they are earned in accordance with the terms of the management costract.

“Buyout fees” is comprised of fees primarily related to the buyout of management contracts.

“Professional fees from development, marketing and other” is comprised of fees received for services provided
prior to the opening of an unconsolidated community. Our development fees related to building design and
construction oversight are recognized using the percentage-of-completion method and the portion related to
marketing services is recognized on a straight-line basis over the estimated period the services are provided. The
cost-to-cost methed is used to measure the extent of progress toward completion for purposes of calculating the
percentage of completion portion of the revenues. Greystone Communities, Inc.’s (“Greystone™) deviloprent |
contracts are multiple element arrangements. Since there is not sufficient objective and reliable evidence of ther fair
value of undelivered elements at each billing milestone, we defer revenue recognition until the completion of the
development contract. Deferred development revenue for these Greystone contracts were $54.6 million and
$28.1 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and is included in “Deferred gains on the sale of real
estate and deferred revenues” in the balance sheet.

We form ventures, along with third-party partners, to invest in the pre-finance stage of certain Greystone
development projects. When the initial development services are successful and permanent financing for the pipject
is obtained, the ventures are repaid the initial invested capital plus fees generally between 50% and 75% of their
investment. We consolidated these ventures that are formed to inves! in the project as we control them. No revénue
is recognized until the permanent financing is in place.

“Resident fees from consolidated communities” are recognized monthly as services are provided. Agreemenis
with residents are generally for a term of one year and are cancelable by residents with thirty days notice.

“Hospice and other ancillary services” is comprised of fees for providing palliative end of life care and suppprt
services for terminally'iil patients and their families, fees for providing care services to residents of certain
communities owned by ventures and fees for providing private duty home health assisted living services. Hospice
revenues are highly dependent on payments from Medicare, paid primarily on a per diem basis, from the Medigare
programs. Because we generally receive fixed payments for our hospice care services based on the level of caré
provided to our hospice patients, we are at risk for the cost of services provided to our hospice patients. Reducfions
or changes in Medicare funding could significantly affect our results of our hospice operations. Reductions in
amounts paid by government programs for the services or changes in methods or regulations governing paymeats
could cause our net hospice revenue and profits to materially decline.

“Reimbursed contract services” is comprised of reimbursements for expenses incurred by us, as the primary
obligor, on behalf of communities operated by us under long-term management agreements. Revenue is recogrized
when we incur the related costs. If we are not the primary obligor, certain costs, such as interest expense, real dstate
taxes, depreciation, ground lease expense, bad debt expense and cost incurred under local area contracts, are ndt
included. The related costs are included in “Reimbursed contract services™ expense. ,

We considered the indicators in ETTF 99-19, Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net s an Agent, in
making our determination that revenues should be reported gross versus net. Specifically, we are the primary obligor
for certain expenses incurred at the communities, including payroll costs, insurance and items such as food and;
medical supplies purchased under national contracts entered into by us. We, as manager, are responsible for seiting
prices paid for the items underlying the reimbursed expenses, inciuding setting pay-scales for our employees. We
select the supplier of goods and services to the communities for the national contracts that we enter inte on belmlf of
the communities. We are responsible for the scope, quality and extent of the items for which we are reimbursed.
Based on these indicators, we have determined that it is appropriate to record revenues gross versus net.
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Stock-Based Compensution

On January 1, 2006, we adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based Paymenis (“SFAS 123(R)") to
record compensation expense for our employee stock options, restricted stock awards, and employee stock purchase
plan. This statement is a revision of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (“SFAS 123”) and
supersedes Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 (“APB 25”), Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,
and its related implemen:ation guidance. Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R), we followed the intrinsic value
method in accordance with APB 25, in accounting for its stock options and other equity instruments.

SFAS 123(R) requires that all share-based payments to employees be recognized in the consolidated statements
of income based on their grant date fair values with the expense being recognized over the requisite service period.
We use the Black-Scholes model to determine the fair value of our awards at the time of grant.

Foreign Currency Translation

Our reporting currency is the U.S. dollar. Certain of our subsidiaries’ functional currencies are the local currency
of the respective country. In accordance with SFAS No. 52, Foreign Currency Translation, balance sheets prepared
in their functional currencies are translated to the reporting currency at exchange rates in effect at the end of the
accounting period except: for stockholders’ equity accounts and intercompany accounts with consolidated
subsidiaries that are considered to be of a long-term nature, which are translated at rates in effect when these
balances were originally recorded. Revenue and expense accounts are translated at a weighted average of exchange
rates during the period. The cumulative effect of the translation is included in “Accumulated other comprehensive
(loss) income” in the corsolidated balance sheets.

Advertising Costs

We expense advertising as incurred. Total advertising expense for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005 was $4.2 million, $3.3 million, and $3.6 million, respectively.

Legal Contingencies
We are subject to various legal proceedings and claims, the outcomes of which are subject to significant

uncertainty. We record an accrual for loss contingencies when a toss is probable and the amount of the loss can be
reasonably estimated. We review these accruals quarterly and make revisions based on changes in facts and

- circumstances.

Reclassifications
Certain amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.
New Accounting Standards

We adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty
in Income Taxes (“FIN 48”), effective January I, 2007. FIN 48 is an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109,
Accounting for Income Taxes, and it seeks to reduce diversity in practice associated with certain aspects of
measurement and recogrition in accounting for income taxes. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and
measurement attribute fer the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position that an entity takes
or expects to take in a tax return. Additionally, FIN 48 provides guidance on de-recognition, classification, interest
and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. Under FIN 48, an entity may only recognize
or continue to recognize tax positions that meet a “more likely than not” threshold. There was no adjustment to our
recorded tax liability as a result of adopting FIN 48.

In November 2006, the Emerging Issues Task Force of FASB (“EITF”) reached a consensus on EITF Issue
No. 06-8, Applicability cf the Assessment of a Buyer's Continuing Investment under FASB Statement No. 66,
Accounting for Sales of Real Estate, for Sales of Condominiums (“EITF 06-8”). EITF 06-8 requires condominium
sales to meet the continuing investment criterion in SFAS No. 66 in order for profit to be recognized under the
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percentage of completion method. EITF 06-8 was effective for us at January 1, 2007. We are currently developing
one condominium project for an unconsolidated venture. The venture has applied EITF 06-8 for sales.

Future Adoption of Accounting Standards

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS 157”). This standazd
defines fair value, establishes a methodology for measuring fair value and expands the required disclosure for fair
value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for us as of January 1, 2009. Provisions of SFAS 157 are required to be
applied prospectively as of the beginning of the first fiscal year in which SFAS 157 is applied. We are evaluating the
impact that SFAS 157 will have on our financial statements,

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Liabilifies
(“SFAS 159”). SFAS 159 permits entities to choose 10 measure many financial instruments and certain other items
at fair value that are not currently required to be measured at fair value. The irrevocable election of the fair valae
option is made on an insttument by instrument basis, and applied to the entire instrument, and not just a portioa of it.
The changes in fair value of each item elected to be measured at fair value are recognized in earningg each repérting
period. SFAS 159 does not affect any existing pronouncements that require assets and liabilities to be carried at fair
value, nor does it eliminate any existing disclosure requirements. This standard is effective for us as of January I,
2008. We have not chosen to measure any financial instruments at fair value.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No, 141 (revised 2007), Business Combinations (“SFAS 141R™},
SFAS 141R requires most identifiable assets, liabilities, noncontrolling interests, and goodwill acquired in business
combinations to be recorded at “full fair value.” The standard is effective for us as of January 1, 2009, and earlfer
adoption is prohibited. All of our future acquisitions will be impacted by this standard.

On December 4, 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Non-controiling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements — an Amendment of ARB No. 51 (“SFAS No. 160™). SFAS No. 160 establishes new accounting and
reporting standards for a non-controlling interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary.
Specifically, this statement requires the recognition of a non-controlling interest {(minority interest) as equity in the
consolidated financial statements separate from the parent’s equity. The amount of net income attributable to the
non-controlling interest will be included in consolidated net income on the face of the income staternent.

SFAS No. 160 clarifies that changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in
deconsolidation, are equity transactions if the parent retains its controlling financial interest. In addition, this
statement requires that a parent recognize a gain or loss in net income when a subsidiary is deconsolidated. Such
gain or loss will be measured using the fair value of the non-controlling equity investment on the deconsolidatipn
date. SFAS No. 160 also includes expanded disclosure requirements regarding the interests of the parent and its non-
controlling interest. SFAS No. 160 is effective as of January 1, 2009. We are currently evaluating the impact that
SFAS No. 160 will have on our financial statements.

3. Restatement Related to Statement of Cash Flows Classifications and Accounting for Lease Payments and
Non-Refundable Entrance Fees for Two Continuing Care Retirement Communities

2007 Statement of Cash Flows

The 2007 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been restated primarily to reflect proper classification of
transactions with unconsolidated communities, assumption of debt related to sales transactions and the
classification of gain resulting from sales transactions. The effect of the restaternent on the 2007 Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows was to decrease net cash provided by operating activities from $235.0 million to
$128.5 million, to increase net cash used in investing activities from $235.5 million to $248.5 million and to

- increase net cash provided by financing activities from $56.7 million to $176.3 million. In 2007, $119.1.milliog of
debt was assumed by third parties as part of sales transactions. Cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2007 as
previously reported and as restated are reflected in the following table (for restated line items only):
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2007 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(In thousands) ) As Reported As Restated
Gain on sale and development of real estate and equity interests . . .. .......... $(61,635) $(105,081)
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable . . ..... e e (16,536) (12,388)
Due from unconsolidated senior living communities . ..................... 102,996 28,111
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . .. ..o v v e i v e i (55,443} {60,282)
Other A88EES . . . . .. i e e e e (1,177) (35,666)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued eXpenses . . ... ... oo it 78,576 140,589
Self-insurance liabilities .. . ... v i e e e e e e 27,866 12,866
Guarantee Habilities . . ... .ot e e e (5,806) (5,829)
Net cash provided by eperating activities . .. ... ... ... ... ... ... 235,007 128,486
Capital eXpenditires . ... ...ttt e (240,309) (245,523)
Dispositions of property . .. ... ... . 171,338 60,387
Change inrestricted cashi . ... ... ... e (20,579) (21,792)
Increase in investments and notesreceivable . .. ........ ... ... ... .. .., {181,451) (183,314)
Proceeds from investmernits and notesreceivable . . ... ... ... i, 136,744 220,312
Investments in unconsolidated communities. . .. ...t i (51,940) (29,297)
Net cash used in INveStiDE ACHVILES . .. .o oottt e enrarranraranns (235,513) (248,543)
Additional berrowings of long-termdebt. . . ... ... ... o i 229,688 243,564
‘Repayment of long-termdebt. ..... ... ... .. ... oL e (170,860) (66,105)
Contribution from minority interests . .. ... ... it 3,210 —
Distributions t0 minonty IMETest. . ... ..ottt it (5.310) (1,180)
Net cash provided by financing activities . .. ... .. cov e i e e 56,728 176,279

Accounting for Lease Payments and Non-Refundable Enirance Fees

We lease six CCRCs under operating leases and provide life care services under various types of entrance fee
agreements with residents. Upon admission to a community, the resident signs a continuing care agreement with us.
The care agreement stipulates, among other things, the amount of all entrance and monthly fees, the type of
residential unit being provided, and our obligation to provide both health care and non-health care services. In
addition, the care agreerrent provides us with the right to increase future monthly fees. The care agreement is
terminated upon the receipt of a written termination notice from the resident or the death of the resident, The
refundable portion of the entrance fee is returned to the resident or the resident’s estate depending on the form of the
agreement either upon reoccupancy or termination of the care agreement. The obligation to repay is acknowledged
through the provisions of'a Lifecare Bond. The non-refundable portion of the entrance fee is deferred and
recognized as revenue using the straight-line method over the actuarially determined expected term of each
resident’s contract. For one of these communities, the entrance fees are fully refundable and two communities do not
have entrance fees. For the remaining three communities, residents choose between various entrance fee packages
where the non-refundabli: component ranges from 10% to 100% of the total entrance fee (the larger the non-
refundable portion, the lower the total payment).

For two CCRCs that were previously owned by MSLS, the sale of the CCRCs by MSLS to a third party resulted
in a bifurcation of real estate ownership and operations, and separated the entrance fee repayment obligation from us,
as the third party lessor tecame the primary obligor of the Lifecare Bonds. We collect the entrance fees from the
resident under a continuiag care agreement. In accordance with our lease, we sell and issue the Lifecare Bonds to
residents on behalf of the lessor and remit all entrance fees to the lessor. In accordance with the terms of these two
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leases, we receive a rent credit against the amount of minimum rent due each accounting period equal to the amount
of non-refundable fees collected by us from residents and remitted to the lessor.

Historically, we reported rent expense net of the amount of rent credit we received from the landlord for the non-
refundable fees. We also did not consider the entrance fees to be compensation for the services we were providing to
the resident and therefore did not record them as deferred revenue on our balance sheet.

Upon further review, we have now determined that we are the primary obligor to the resident for life care services
and for providing a unit for the resident to occupy when we enter into the continuing care agreement with the
resident. We enter info leases to be able to fulfill our obligation to provide a unit for the resident. For the non-
refundable component of the entrance fee we have determined we should defer the fee and amortize it into inceme
as we provide services to the resident over the expected term of the continuing care agreement. As there is a legal
assignment of the obligation to repay the Lifecare bond to the lessor, we are not required to record the liability on
our books and, therefore, no accounting adjustment was required for this item.

In regard to the calculation of rent expense, all payments to the lessor both for minimum rent (which in
accordance with the lease is a fixed amount, with a scheduled 3% annual increase, less a rent credit equal to the
amount of non-refundable entrance fees) and the non-refundable entrance fees are considered rent expense.

The effect of the restatement was to decrease retained earnings at January 1, 2005 by approximately $7.5 million,
to reduce pre-tax income in 2005 and 2006 by approximately $6.6 million and $8.3 million, respectively, and to
reduce 2005 and 2006 net income by approximately $4.0 million and $5.1 million, respectively. The restatement
resulted in an increase to resident fees for consolidated communities of approximately $1.6 million in 2005 and
$2.7 million in 2006, and an increase to community lease expense of approximately $8.2 million in 2065 and
$11.0 million in 2006. We have restated the prior-period financial statements to correct these errors in accordagce
with SFAS No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections.

4. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Allowance for doubtful accounts consists of the following (in thousands):

Accounts

Receivable  Other Assets Total
Balance January 1, 2005 (f6SEAtEA) c.ev.verrerereeressnsssresereseseressereeree S 188 $ — 5 1,888
Provision for doubtfill ACCOUNTS............cvicvicvieese i sas st esessrsesaneens 1,675 — 1,675
WWIE-0fT5 ..ottt et e et sseme s resessesemnesen e ssen s eneseeene L1063} — (1.065)
Balance December 31, 2005 (restated}........cocoveiveeeierccriernrieeiereneninns 2,498 — 2,498
Provision for doubtful 8CCOUDLS........ovreeerveiiirerie s sseere s eses e s ssarssanans 6,632 8,000 14,632
R Lo § -3 OO ) B .1} — (1.626)
Balance December 31, 2006 (restated).......c...ooeevveieecicee e 7,504 © 8,000 15,504
Provision for doubtful 2cCOUnts............c.cooooeeicercece s, 1,044 1,920 9,564
WIE-0FTS oo vttt e bessb bt (4.708) — {(4.708)
Balance December 31, 2007 ... se s it ans s $.10,440 § 9920 $ 20,360
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5. Property and Equipment

“Property and equipment consists of the following (in thousands):

December 31,
Asset Lives 2007 2006

. Land and land improvements. ... ervemremecnnueercrencrcnecsse 15 years $ 77,709 § 76456
Building and building fmprovements ........ccvccveeesiensinnsenes 40 years 337,310 330,431
Fumiture and equipment.........ccccovveerscerceieeecrvssieesiescceeeneenee 3=10 years 148.829 122,479
563,848 329,366

Less: Accumulated depreciation.......cveeeriniisesceineene (157.744) (125.315)
406,104 404,051

ConSruction iN PTOZTESS «...ovecveeeeereeeseraesereeeeeeseneesesaesasasnens 250,107 205,334
Property and equipment, DEL.......coocoeecinrevenncnsmen e £ 656211 § 609,385

Depreciation expense for communities was $33.9 million, $27.1 miltion, and $20.4 million in 2007, 2006, and
2003, respectively, excluding depreciation expense related to properties subject to the deposit method, financing
method and profit-sharing method of accounting. See Note 7.

During 2007, we recorded an impairment charge of $7.6 million related to two communities acquired in 1999 and
2006. During 2006, we rzcorded an impairment charge of $15.7 million related to seven small senior living
communities which were: acquired between 1996 and 1999.

In 2007, we decided to discontinue development of four senior living condominium projects due to adverse
economic conditions and as a result, we recorded pre-tax charges totaling approximatety $21.0 million in 2007 to
write-off capitalized development costs for these projects. In the first quarter of 2008, we suspended the
development of the remaining three condominium projects and as a result, we expect to record pre-tax charges
totaling approximately $22.0 million in the first quarter of 2008.

6. Acquisitions
Sunrise Connecticut Avenue Assisted Living, LLC

In August 2007, we purchased a 90% interest in Sunrise Connecticut Avenue Assisted Living, LLC, a venture in
which we previously owaed a 10% interest, for approximately $28.9 million and approximately $1.0 million in
transaction costs. Approximately $19.9 million of existing debt was paid off at closing and we entered into new debt
of $40.0 million. As a result of the acquisition, Sunrise Connecticut Avenue Assisted Living, LLC is our wholly
owned subsidiary and the financial results are consolidated as of the acquisition date in August 2007.

The purchase price was allocated to the assets acquired, including intangible assets and liabilities assumed, based
on their estimated fair velues. The purchase price values that were assigned as follows (in millions):

Net Working CaPital .........cc.crveiiriieiieerermrnr s st sn st sea s s ens s sssannaas $ 06
Property and equlpment PO PO OO TP YOO OO RROTOVORY ¢ X:
Other assets... S OO OO PSSO 0.1
Less: Debt ofventure as! ,umed O OO UUU PO OO PP PSOROR o 4. ) |
Total purchase price (including transactlon costs) SRRSO S

Sunrise Connecticut Avenue Assisted Living, LLC does not meet the definition of a significant subsidiary and
therefore historical and pro forma information is not disclosed.
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Raiser Portfolio

In August 2006, we acquired the long term management contracts of two San Francisco Bay Area CCRCs and the
ownership of one community. The two managed comrnunities are condominiums owned by the residents. The three
communities have a combined capacity of more than 200 residents.

The purchase price was allocated to the assets acquired, including intangible assets and liabilities assumed, based on their

estimated fair values. The purchase price values were assigned as follows (in millions):

Net WOrking CApIAl ..........ccceeiriiieieriniessiete st e ee et e sees e eetesesess et e ssnasassessamssarassebonsasasseararas $ 098
Land, property and €QUIPIMENL ..o e s s a s 17.0
Entrance fee liability and future service obligations..............._ ................................................... (11.2
Management contracts and other assets... ORI OOPOTOUPD”.g O L
Total purchase price (including transactlon costs) ..................................................................... 3 272

The weighted-average amortization period for the management contracts is 30 years. Raiser does ot meet e
definition of a significant subsidiary and therefore historical and pre forma information is not discloszd.

Trinity Hospice, Inc.

In September 2006, we acquired Trinity Hospice, Inc. (“Trinity™), a large provider of hospice services in the
United States. Trinity currently operates 20 hospice programs across the United States.

The purchase price was allocated to the assets acquired, including intangible assets consisting primarily of tade-
name, referral network and non-compete agreements, and liabilities assumed, based on their estimate] fair values.
The purchase price values were assigned as follows (in millicns):

Net WOrKing CAPIAL ....o.vi ittt et esese st sre s esesene s e nas s sase e snssnssansnsnsarsssensreeners B 30 d
Property and EQUIPIMENT.........cv o eerreeerieere e rerereeesr e seeresaernre seeseere et smeesbsa st st em e bR e re s emsasannsese st mananana 150
INtANEIBLE BSSEES. ..\ eeeeeeeirrieceirecesreseee e e ses e rmetarmes s e e smsn s gemnteeses e rasemeseeae st e st erantesastnoasrassssnsnanars Fu T
GOOAWIIL ... ottt e cr e era s srser e e sneesa et s seen e s sas e sr e e srensrerestaretssensnsssmsnrssensense 903
OHRET BSSEES....e.verreirerui et et icst st ss st st sr e sat b e b escE 443 s e st b e s b s bbb eas e et ne st nm st s nm e b 04 -
Total purchase price (including tranSaction COSLS).........urviceecmnerrienieiceesnesssssresnesassnsne 2148

The weighted-average amortization period for the intangible assets is five years. Trinity does not meet the
definition of a significant subsidiary and therefore historical and pro forma information is not discloszd.

As of December 31, 2006, Trinity’s average daily census was approximately 1,500. As of December 31, 2047,
Trinity's average daily census was approximately 1,300. This decline in census from 2006 to 2007 was partially the
result of the closing of certain operating locations in non-core Sunrise markets and Trinity’s focus on remediation
efforts. As a result of a review of the goodwill and intangible assets related to Trinity, we recorded an impairment
loss of approximately $56.7 million in 2007.

2005 Acquisitions
In May 2005, we acquire_d Greystone for a total purchase price of approximately $49.0 million with a potential
acquisition cost of $54.0 million subject to various adjustments set forth in the acquisition agreement. Performance

milestones were reached in 2006 and 2007, with $2.5 million expected to be paid in 2008.

In July 2005 we contributed approximately $25.8 million in cash in exchange for a 20% interest in an

unconsolidated venture formed to purchase assets from The Fountains, an Arizona based owner and operator of senior

living communities.
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7. Sales of Real Estate
Total gains (losses) or. sale recognized are as follows {in millions):

December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Properties accounted for under basis of performance of services.......ooecvinene. § 36 5 18 $ 06
Properties accounted for previously under financing method...........ooococeivnnien 328 —
Properties accounted for previously under deposit method.....ccovvevevmeeeiee 524 353 81.3
Land sales... 5.7 5.4 (O 2)
Sales of equlty mterests .md othcr salcs 106 8.8
Total gains on the sale and development of rcal estate and equlty mterests .3 1051 $ 513 $817 81.1

Basis of Performance of Services

During the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, we sold majority membership interests in entities
owning partially developed land or sold partially developed land to ventures with three, nine and seven underlying
communities, respectively, for $86.2 million, $182.5 million and $98.0 million, net of transaction costs, respectively.
In connection with the transactions, we provided guarantees to support the operations of the underlying communities
for a limited period of tirne. In addition, we operate the communities under long-term management agreements upon
opening. Due to our continuing involvement, all gains on the sale and fees received after the sale are initially
deferred. Any fundings under the cost overrun guarantees and the operating deficit guarantees are recorded as a
reduction of the deferred gain. Gains and development fees are recognized on the basis of performance of the
services required. Deferred gains of $1.7 million, $7.7 million and $8.3 million were recorded in 2007, 2006 and
2003, respectively. Gains of $3.6 million, $1.8 million and $0.6 million were recognized in 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

Financing Method

In 2004, we sold majority membership interests in two entities which owned partially developed land to two
separate ventures. In conjunction with these two sales, we had an option to repurchase the communities from the
venture at an amount that was higher than the sales price. At the date of sale, it was likely that we would repurchase
the properties, and as a result the financing method of accounting has been applied.

In March 2007, the two separate ventures were recapitalized and merged into one new venture. Per the terms of
the transaction, we no loager had an option to repurchase the communities. Thus, there were no longer any forms of
~ continuing involvement that would preclude sale accounting and a gain on sale of $32.8 million was recognized in
2007. No gains were recognized in 2006 or 2005.

Relevant details are as follows (in thousands):

December 31,
2007 2006 2005

Property and equipment subject to financing, net............ e 3 —  $ 62,520 § 64,174
Liabilities relating to properties subject to the ﬁnancmg method — {66,283) {64,208)

Depreciation expense... " veeeeeen 305 1,959 363
Development fees recewed net of costs AT UR U RRDURE o — 1,335
Management fees receivad ...o.irmmrureinircieseeeesssss e 230 981 93

In December 2007, we sold a majority membership interest in an entity which owned an operating community. In
conjunction with the sale, the buyer had the option to put its interests and shares back to us if certain conditions were
not met by June 2008. If the conditions were met prior to June 2008, the buyer’s put option would be extinguished.
As of December 31, 2007, the conditions were not met. Due to the existence of the put option that allows the buyer
to compel us to repurchase the property, we applied the financing method of accounting. The total property and
equipment subject to financing, net, was $58.9 million and the liability relating to properties subject to the financing
method was $54.3 millian at December 31, 2007.

66




In February 2008, the required conditions were met, the buyer’s put option was extinguished and sale accounting
was achieved. In connection with the sale, we also provided a guarantee to support the operations of the propeity for
a limited perlod of time. Due to this continuing involvement, the gain on sale will be initially deferred and thea
recognized using the basis of performance of services method.

Deposit method

We accounted for the sale of an operating community in 2004 under the deposit method of accounting as we
guaranteed to make monthly payments to the buyer equal to the amount by which a net operating income targst
exceeded actual net operating income for the community. The guarantee expired on the earlier of (a) the end of any
consecutive twelve month period during which the property achieved its net operating income target, or
(b) October 31, 2006. We recorded a gain of $4.0 million upon expiration of the guarantee on October 31, 2006. No
gains were recognized in 2005 and 2004.

.

Relevant details are as follows (in thousands):

December 31, :

2007 2006 2005
Property subject to Sales CONIACE, NEL......vuuurverevereriasscsesrsrssersensessssssrasases 5 — $ — $ 10,42
Deposits related to properties subject to a sales contract.........ccviiirnes — — (13,883)
Depreciation expense... e reeeratnnertareane e et eenree 296 331
Development fees recelved, net ofcosts reerire i rer e teenr et res e nnetns | —— —_— _—
Management fees reCeived ..o e e 198 192

During 2003, we sold a portfolio of 13 operating communities and five communities under develcpment for
approximately $158.9 million in cash, after transaction costs, which was approximately $21.5 million in excess of
out capitalized costs. In connection with the transaction, we agreed to provide support to the buyer if the cash flows
from the communities were below a stated target. The guarantee expired at the end of the 18th full calendar menth
. from the date on which all permits and licenses necessary for the admittance of residents had been obtained for the
last development property. The last permits were obtained in January 2006 and the guarantee expired in July 2007.
We recorded a gain of $52.5 million upon the expiration of the guarantee.

Relevant details are as follows {in thousands):

December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Properties subject to sales contract, net .. et atertreesaerasarees B — § 193,158 § 197,781
Deposits related to properties subject to a sales contract ...................................... — (240,367) £236,692)
Depreciation expense... OOV U YU VU POV U YOOV URYUTPURTRUURRPR 3. ¥ ) o 8,257 - 7,168
Development fees recelved net of costs — 20 1,412
Management fees reCeIVEd .......coov e s 2,331 3,738 3,023

During 2003, we sold three portfolios with a combined 28 operating communities. In connection with the sdle, we
were obligated to fund any net operating income shortfall as compared to a stated benchmark for a period of 13to
24 months following the date of sale. In 2004, we sold a portfolio of five operating communities. In connection with
the sale, we guaranteed a stated level of net operating income for an 18-month period foliowing the date of sale.
These guarantees, in accordance with SFAS 66, require the application of the deposit method of accounting, We
recorded pre-tax gains of approximately $0, $28.3 million and $80.9 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively,
as these guarantees expired.
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Relevant details are as. follows (in thousands):

December 31,

C 2007 2006 2005
Properties subject t0 sales CONTACE, DL ..o vvvcveereeeieseeserererems e recmsb s sranains 3 - $ — $ 47308
Deposits related to properties subject to a sales contract...........cccoveeinsnsinencrnneen, — — (74,247)
DEpreciatlon EXPEINISE. ..ccvcutecerimercrisiisseresisrertessetsesnssssnasiassssmssisassasssaanessseesmssestasssinns — 848 6,644
Development fees received, net of COSS ..o — -— —
Management fees reCeiviid ..o e e -— 617 4 548

In addition, during 2007, 2006 and 2003, Sunrise recognized losses or gains on sales of $(0.1) million,
$3.0 million and $0.4 million, respectively, related to communities that were sold in 2002, but the gain had been
deferred.
Land Sales
During 2007, 2006 and 2005, we sold three, two and one pieces of undeveloped land, respectively. There were no
forms of continuing involvement that precluded sale accounting or gain recognition. We recognized gains or losses
of $5.7 million, $5.4 miliion and $(0.2) million, respectively, related to these land sales.
Sales of Equity Interests
During 2007 and 2006, we sold our equity interest in four and two ventures, respectively, whose underlying asset
is real estate. In accordarice with EITF No. 98-8, Accounting for Transfers of Investments That Are in Substance
Real Estate (“EITF 98-8"), the sale of an investment in the form of a financial asset that is in substance real estate
should be accounted for in accordance with SFAS 66. For all of the transactions, we did not provide any forms of
continuing involvement that would preclude sale accounting or gain recognition. We recognized gains on sale of
$10.6 million and $8.8 million in 2007 and 2006, respectively, related to these sales.
Gain (Loss) from Investments Accounted for Under the Profit-Sharing Method, net

We currently apply thz profit-sharing method to the following transactions as we provided guarantees to support
the operations of the properties for an extended period of time:

(1) during 2006, the sale of two entities related to a partially developed condominium project;
(2) during 2004, the sale of a majority membership interest in one venture with two underlying properties; and
(3) during 2004, the sale of three partially developed communities

Relevant deteils are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005

REVEIUE oo eetrtetee e stsse e ssasaesrssesstestssbambestsassssntesessnssrsresnerentee 3 235791 $ 19,902 $ 11,077
Expenses U UTUUTUSRORSPR 0. %1 )| (16.528) {10.310)
Income from operations before deprematlon ................................................. 6,341 3374 767
Depreciation expense... — — 1,964
DiSEABULODS €0 OHEF AVESIOMS..errrererrseeeessseererssesmreresserresseeresesrmsoseeeese {(6.319) (4.231) (3.588)
Income (loss) from investments accounted for under the proﬁt-shanng

method... OO, | 22 % 857y § _ (85T)
[nvestments accounted fl)r under the proﬁt—sharmg method net w3 (51,377) 0% (25,148)  $ (5,106)
Amortization expense or investments accounted for under the proﬁt—

Sharing MEthod .....c..o.eveveiec e en e 31,8000 8 1,800 § —
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Condominium Sales

We began to develop senior living condominium projects in 2004, In 2006, we sold a majority interest in one
condominijum and assisted living venture to third parties. In conjunction with the development agreement for this
project, we agreed to be responsible for actual project costs in excess of budgeted project costs of more than
$10.0 million (subject to certain limited exceptions). Project overruns to be paid by us are projected o be
approximately $48.0 million. Of this amount, $10.0 million is recoverable as a loan from the venture and
$14.7 million relates to proceeds from the sale of real estate, development fees and pre-opening fees. During 2806,
we recorded a loss of approximately $17.2 million dug to this commitment. During 2007, we recorded an additional
loss of approximately $6.0 million due to increases in the budgeted projected costs. Through June 30, 2008, we have
paid approximately $47.0 million in cost overruns.

8. Variable Interest Entities

At December 31, 2007, we held a management agreement with one entity and an equity interest in. eight ventures
that are considered VIEs, for a total of nine VIEs. We are the primary beneficiary of and, therefore, consclidate
seven of these VIEs. We are not considered the primary beneficiary of the remaining two VIEs and, therefore,
account for these investments under the equity or cost method of accounting.

Consolidated VIEs

» The entity that we have a management agreement with is a continuing care retirement community located in
the U.S. comprised of 254 continuing care retirement community apartments, 32 assisted living units, 27
Alzheimer care apartments and 60 skilled nursing beds. We have included $20.1 million and $21.4 milbion,
respectively, of net property and equipment related to this entity in our 2007 and 2006 consolidated balance
sheets and $24.6 million and $25.2 million, respectively, of debt. We guaranteed in 2007 and 2006
$23.2 million and $23.8 million, respectively, of this debt. We included $1.5 million, $1.5 million and
$1.1 million, respectively, of depreciation and amertization expense related to this entity in our 2007, 2006
and 2005 consolidated statements of income.

*+  Six of the seven consolidated VIEs are investment partnerships formed with third-party partners to invest
capital mn the pre-finance stage of certain Greystone projects. When the initial development services are
successful and permanent financing for the project is obtained, the partners are repaid their initial invesied
capital plus fees generally between 50% and 75% of their investment. Greystone, which was acquired by us
in May 2005, is a developer and manager of CCRCs. We have included $9.0 miltion and $13.8 million of
cash related to these ventures in our 2007 and 2006 consolidated balance sheets, respectively. At
December 31, 2006, six Greystone VIEs were consolidated. During 2007, two of these six ventures wese no
longer considered VIEs and were deconsolidated. Two new Greystone investment partnerships were formed
to invest seed capital in 2007 and at December 31, 2007, six Greystone VIEs were consolidatzd.

Unconsolidated VIEs

+  Sunrise At Home Senior Living Services, Inc. (“Sunrise At Home™) was a venture between Sunrise and two
third parties. The venture offered home health services by highly trained staff members in customers’ homes
and had annual revenue of approximately $19.0 millien in 2006. In June 2007, Sunrise At Home was nierged
with Alliance Care and we received a preferred equity interest in Alliance Care. Alliance Care provides
services to seniors, including physiciar house calls and mobile diagnostics, home care and private duty
services through 24 local offices located in seven states. Additionally, Alliance Care operates over 125
Healthy Lifestyle Centers providing therapeutic rehabilitation and wellness programs in senicr living
facilities. As a result of the merger, we are no longer the primary beneficiary and deconsolidated Sunrise At
Home as of the merger date. At December 31, 2007, Alliance Carc has total assets of $41.2 million; total
liabilities of $38.1 million, and annual revenue of $84.3 million.

+ In July 2007, we formed a venture with a parter to purchase six communities from our first UK venture, The
new venture also entered into a firm commitment to purchase 11 additional communities from the ventare




which are currently under development in the UK. At December 31, 2007, this venture has total assets of
$562.7 million, total liabilities of $472.0 million, and annual revenue of $17.0 million.

Qur book equity investment in these non-consolidated VIEs was $5.5 million at December 31, 2007, and that
amount is our maximurm exposure to loss.

At December 31, 2006, six ventures with Sunrise REIT were VIEs. In April 2007, Ventas acquired Sunrise REIT.
After the acquisition, these ventures were no longer considered VIEs.

9. Buyout of Management Contracts

During 2006, Five Star bought out 18 management contracts for which we were the manager. We recognized
$131.1 million in buyout fees and an additional $3.6 million for management fees which would have been earned
during the transition period. We also wrote-off the related remaining $25.4 million unamertized management
coniract intangible asset.

During 2005, Five Star bought out 12 management contracts for which we were the manager. We recognized
$83.0 million in buyout fees. We also wrote-off the related remaining $14.6 million unamortized management
contract intangible asset. Five Star’s right to buyout these contracts was unconditional regardless of performance.
10. Notes Receivable

Notes receivable (inchiding accrued interest} consist of the following (in thousands}):

December 31,

JInterest Rate(1) 2007 2006

Note V with international venture .........cevevvevarnene 4.37% $ 592 § 1,030
Promissory Note XTIV .....ocoeiurerrscresessnseneeneeeneeeenn. BUTIDOT + 4.25% 8,837 4,834
Promissory Note XIT ... e 7.50% - -— 11,767
Note VI, revolving credit agreement .........coeveenrnene 10.00% — 4174
9,429 21,305

Current MAatUTIHES ..ov.vevesveeesves e s eesc e enesemaeesesenas — (4.174)
3 9,420 § 17,631

(1) Interest rate at December 31, 2007
All the notes are with affiliated ventures with the exception of Promissory Note XTIL

In 2002, we jointly formed a venture (“International LLC IIT") in which we have a 20% ownership interest. In May 2002,
we agreed to loan funds 1o International LLC III (“Note V™) to partially finance the initial development and construction of
communities in the United Kingdom and Germany. Quistanding principal and interest are due as senior living communities
are sold by the venture, A portion of the note was repaid in 2007.

In December 2005, we agreed to loan International LLC TIT up to 10 million Euros ($14.719 million at December 31, 2007)
(“Promissory Note XIV™) on a revolving basis to fund operating deficits of the lease-up communities in Germany. The loan
is unsecured and subordinated to the senior lenders of the German communities. Qutstanding principal and interest payments
are due on the earlier of December 31, 2010 or the termination of senior financing, with one two-year renewal at the option of
International LLC ITI. As of December 31, 2007, the full 10 million Euros has been funded. We currently do not expect to
receive repayment of 3.996 million Euros ($5.882 million). The carrymg value above has been reduced by this estimated
uncollectible amount of $5.882 million.

In May 2004, we accepted a promissory note of $10.0 million (“Promissory Note XIII”). We had an option to purchase an

alternate property (land) from the borrower, and if we chose to purchase this land, the purchase price of the altemate property
would be credited against the principal balance of this note, under the terms of the note agreement. Outstanding principal and
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interest were due on Juze 1, 2006. During 2006, the maturity date on the promissory note was extended until May 15, 2008.
The land was purchased during 2007 and the note was repaid. This note was collateralized by the underlying ldnd.

In 2002, we jointly formed a venture (“LLC VI”) in which we have a 20% ownership interest. The purpose of LLC VI is to
develop, construct and own senior living communities. We agreed to loan LLC VI up to $20.0 million (“Note V1) through a
revolving credit agreement to partially finance the initial development and construction of 15 communities. Ngte VI is
secured by the communities and is subordinated to other lenders of LLC VI. LLC VI borrowed an additiona! $80.4 million
against the credit agreement and we received payments of $9.2 million for principal. The note was repaid as part of a
recapitalization in 2007,

We recorded interest income on these notes of $0.3 million, $1.5 million and $3.1 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

11. Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Intangible assets consist of the following (in thousands):

Estimated December 31,
Useful Life 2007 2806
Management contracts less accumulated amortization of $23,084 and
$13,242 . ceeeeeeeeneen 1230 years $ 76909 § 88,581
Leaseholds less accumulated amortlzatlon of $3 577 and $3 162 ................. 10-29 years 4,307 4,721
QOther intangibles less accumutated amortization of $628 and $1,173........... 1-40 years 2553 __ 10.46¢
3 83769 $ 103,77

Amortization was $14.2 million, $8.8 million and $6.1 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, rcspecti\.fezly. In addition,
in 2006 and 2005, we wrote-off $25.4 million and $14.6 million, respectively, representing the unamortized
intangible asset for management contracts that were bought out (see Note 9) and other intangible assets.
Amortization is expected to be approximately $11.0 million, $10.3 million, $6.7 million, $3.1 millioa and
$2.9 million in 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively.

Goodwill was $169.7 million and $218.0 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. In 2006, we
initially recorded goodwill of $59.3 million related to the acquisition of Trinity {see Note 6). We recorded goodwill
of $31.5 million in 2005 and increased goodwill by $2.5 million and $5.0 million in 2007 and 2006, respectively, to
reflect the earn-out related to the acquisition of Greystone. In 2007, we recorded an impairment charge of
$56.7 million related to our Trinity goodwill and related intangible assets.

12. Investments in Unconsolidated Communities

The following are our investments in unconsolidated communities as of December 31, 2007:

Sunrise
Venture Ownership
Karrington of Findlay Lid. ....ccovcivvieiniiienrisivner e cnrrsrsressnsssnssesssassssssssssssressessessessasecrenneonnenes 30.00%
MorSun Tenant LP ..o e eeeeeeanfeasstafeseoesestasemeeseseesiceseaseiasietettrieesttesnetensaies 50.00%
Sunrise/Inova McLean Assisted meg, LLC. werereemnerenerrnnerereseneresenesnonesernseneensnsrasnseronsnnes 40.00%
AU-HCU Holdings, LLC(I) ereme s iesareer e e resarreeneraereseerenraraneesesessessnencnsrnensenessensencnseaenreeee 30.00%0
RCU Holdings, LLC(1)... ereresbener et st et e etseteresbe st rannssnsstsrasrentesasrastasnsraniessranssnrnnenrnnnsnnanres S0 00%0
SunVest, LLC(1) ... ettt st e e e n b er e e entsrest s banases et st sanassesnennensnnarssasnarsssnssnnnarnsensnsenaneres S0.00%0
AL One Investments LLC ettt ettt e e e nt e mt b sat e sae s st srs e sasnsnanssasrssast e seaneren | Do 30D
Metropolitan Senior Housmg, LLC et ettt s raesane st sttt et s eemsesnsamnnansineeeseenecrnscnsnsersenseeneenrnnees 29.00%
Sunrise at Gardner Park, LP .. eerateteteteanetetimtet s st e ane et srnteesannmen st ennasnseareensebanesnseesesrssasinaneies 29.00%0
Sunrise Floral Vale Semor L1v1ng, LP ................................................................................................. 25.00%
Cheswick & Cranberry, LLC... T USSP OPOOUOPRPPPRIPR o B 1
BG Loan Acquisition LP .. et ret et et ene st raen s rae s e s res et ans e srsrersrasesnsnisssnesans | 29.00%0
Sunrise Aston Gardens Venturc, LLC Cerrereeree s asba s e taa s bbenbastanss st ransna e sentestenrentenrnensessnernns 20 00%0
MaSEET MOESUIL, LP ...oovoiorrecieceessiesissesenaessnssssssresssssnassssnsessssssss esssesssesss oessmssssseessss sasassesassonssantsecsncen 20.00%
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MESTEr MELSUN, LP.......eeccticiiiieiistieseiveesseeressesesssssseaes sesstssss susansensessessbsns sensmmsmesebhbaratenssnsassanenssssssstens 20.00%
Master MetSUD TWO, LP ..ooivieriisre s ieiie e escsscssstssessas s st st rsss e pem e ssisbssb s s n s n s se s sessagsarsoraon 20.00%
Master MetSUD THIEE, LP.....ivorreeveeeceeecee e eces et siba s s e s srs e sis e s e ameaea bt e bs s b e ann e snrae s ana e annas 20.00%
Sunrise First Assisted Living Holdings, LLC..........occconrrnonirommmimmsrnnessssemsimsssssssssssssssssssrsseseeneces - 20.00%
Sunrise Second Assisted Living Holdings, LLC .....c.ccovveinverrererionrccescemmisesisssnsemssemssssnsssesessneeees - 20.00%
Sunrise Beach Cities Assisted Living, LP ....cccoooiicininerrerr et sssesasiess e nes s 20.00%
AL U.S. Development Venture, LLC ......o.evevrvuemrcemericceeis s sesssesessisssnssssssrsssssssssressssnssescssss - 20-00%
Sunrise HBLR, LLC ..o e retsae e seemesccaceseee st satassaves st s s sssssass stess st sossibsissesassanssss 20.00%
Sunrise IV Senior Living Holdings, LLC ... e e srs s 20.00%
COPSUN Clayton MO, LLC ...t sersssee st asas s res st sm s ssissb ran s s smsa s ssce e 20.00%
SUNMSE OF AUTOTA, LP......ooviiiiiernieriiimraiercsserae e essesresmesessrortss tssansens smmderbbeasbavatans sasassuronsrasascasensaoes 20.00%
Sunrise oF BN MLIS, LE oo.oovoneciereieeesnseseessrsereeesesistsnsssssssassesessessesrssssssserssnenseessesssessnisssnsennens 20:00%0
Sunrise 0f North YOIk, LP{2) .veeeeereeceeeveeeeeeeeeeeestsssessarscssssssssassonssesassessssssessensisssasssrerssrersaencnnes 20.00%
PS Germany Investment (JErSEY) LP.......ccerrerirmrrrnremimnieesssesoncrenseseceeesnessssissssmsnsrssrnsmsssssesenseseees 20.00%
PS UK Investment (JErSey) LP .....o..ocveeueeceeienses e ssreseeosencssemsconeemsnssssssssessssssrsssnisaressssssninissssssns 20.00%
PS UK Investment I (JEFSEY) LP .....ruvucercveerieresrensensecteiememcncnessesmastssssssmsssasssessesssssssesssnssssssnns 20-00%0
Sunrise First Euro Properties LP ...t st s s 20.00%
Master CNL Sun Dev [, LLC .. reereeeeeeeeenareasessasnesssasrassnsesisssensasrsssnsrssrasoressasrsoenscnseeiies 20.00%
Sunrise Bloomfield Senior lemg, LLC ererere e resssestetsrassassassnsvansrnaserecressseessrensenennsnns 20.00%
Sunrise Hillerest Senior Living, LLC ....ovvivvoreensrericemererenesmesiecsionsssesmsssemsssssesssaressesssssssnsesssssessenses 20.00%
Sunrise New Seasons Venture, LLC 20.00%
Sunrise Rocklin Senior Living, LLC .....cccvrueeimsrerssrmsnsssnsssseisssenessconsansenesssmsessnsssmsssrssssisssnssssesnsences 20.00%
Sunrise Sandy Senior Living, LLC ...o..oocviuieennevrsrensesrsenneseecrereesssssisessssssmssssisssssessssssssssnssssens 20.00%
Sunrise Scottsdale Senior Living, LLIC ...c.oviororecrcececceicsissit s st e 20.00%
Sunrise Staten Island SL LLC ... esesnre e sssssrssssenisssnsssessesessnsssssssssssnnssrssannseres. 20.00%
Sunrise US UPREIT, LLC....voviveeiieicinsescescsensessssesasssssssssssssssssnsssssasssnsssssnsssssssesssssssessessnnssness 19:80%0
SunKap Coral Gables, LLC........c.v i iereereernrmiseeseseserssessasass s ssms st cass e ssstsssbassasss srasresas s ensssscsonee 15.00%
SunKap Boca Raton, LLC ......c.cee.ceeruieerusreenroreseenenesesmesreesssscssesmssmsssssssmsssossonssssssnsnsssssssnsnnses - 19.00%
Santa Monica AL, LLC ... cerereenr e oo re s eceses et e sas aasa s ses e s s 5 2en et s et et b s annans 15.00%
Sunrise Third Senior Living Holdmgs LLC e ereee et eesssssonsasnssstrnssnssnsssssesensansessassasearsrensereneseens 10.00%
Cortland House, LP ... et sersssssreessessenreseesees oo 10,00%
AEW/Sunrise Senior Housmg Portfollo LLC ..................................................................................... 10.00%
Dawn Limited Parnership........cocoecceereeereecurenseesrsesscnseseseeseesisenssssessessmmsssssssasensmsssssssmssensssssncennes 10:00%0

(1) Properties related to investments are accounted for under the profit-sharing method of accounting. See Note 7.

(2) Properties related to investments are accounted for under the financing method of accounting. See Note 7.
Inctuded in *“Due from unconsolidated communities” are net receivables and advances from unconsolidated

ventures of $31.4 million and $105.7 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, Net receivables from

these ventures relate prirnarily to development and management activities,

Summary financial information for unconsolidated ventures accounted for by the equity method is as follows (in
thousands);

December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Assets, principally property and eqUIPMENt ........oocovveercercer s 39,183,922 8§ 4,370,376 § 3,283,725
Long-1erT debtouuiuirereceeecir ettt sy s 4,075,993 2,971,318 2,076,734
Liabilities, excluding long-term debt......coooveneriicennicniiiner e 549,628 583,008 409,986
EQUILY cooeueerverimrnvermesstesrasssssss oot sese et mes s b bbbt e 558,301 816,050 797,005
REVENUE ..o eeeeeenreseetems e emsmsssssssssnssasssssssnsonssassasenessrssnasssenssnrareess 1,021,112 846,479 625,371
Net income (loss) ............................................................................................. (15,487} (56,968) 24,051

Accounting policies used by the unconsolidated ventures are the same as those used by us.
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Total management fees and reimbursed contract services from related unconsolidated ventures was
$509.1 million, $390.3 millicn and $321.2 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. !

Our share of earnings and return on investment in unconsolidated communities consists of the following
(in thousands):

December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Sunrise’s share of earnings (losses) in unconsolidated communities.....$ 60,700 $ (11,997) § (13,073)
Return on investment in unconsolidated communities .........ccceeeeinricnnnnn 72,710 55,699 26,545
Impairment of equity INVESHMENLS .......cervvervreerrrecreverrereersesseeresseeerenene __{24,463) —

§108047 § 43700 § 13412

Our investment in unconsolidated communities was less than our portion of the underlying equity in the veriture
by $81.5 million and $62.3 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Return on Investment in Unconsolidated Communities

Sunrise’s return on investment in unconsolidated communities primarily represents cash distributions from
ventures arising from a refinancing of debt within ventures. We first record all equity distributions, which are not
refundable either by agreement, or by law, as a reduction of our investment. Next, we record a liability if thereds a
contractual obligation or implied obligation to support the venture, including in our role as general partner. Any
remaining distribution is recorded in income.

In 2007, our return on investment in unconsolidated communities was primarily the result of three venture
recapitalizations. In one transaction, the majority owner of a venture sold their majority interest to a new third party,
the debt was refinanced and the total cash we received and the gain recognized was $53.0 million. In another
transaction, in conjunction with a sale by us of a 15% equity interest, which gain is recorded in “Gain on the sdle
and development of real estate and equity interests,” and the sale of the majority equity owner’s interest to a néw
third party, the debt was refinanced and we received total proceeds of $4.1 million relating to our retained 20%
equity interest in two ventures, which we recorded as a return on investment in unconsolidated cormmunities.

In 2006, our retum on investment in unconsolidated communities was primarily the result of three venture
recapitalizations. In one transaction, the majority owner of two ventures sold their majority interests to a new third
party, the debt was refinanced and the total recorded retumn on investment to us from this combined transaction was
approximately $21.6 million. In another transaction, the majority owner of a venture sold its majority interest to a
new third party, the debt was refinanced and the total return on investment to us was $26.1 million.

In 2005, we recorded $22.4 million of return on investment from the recapitalization of four ventures for 18
communities.

Transactions

In January 2007, we entered into a venture to develop assisted living communities in the United Kingdom (the
“UK”) over the next four years, with us serving as the developer and then as the manager of the communities. This
is our second venture in the UK. We own 20% of the venture. Property development will be funded through
contributions of up to approximately $200.0 million by the partners, based upon their pro rata percentage, with the
balance funded by loans provided by third-party lenders, giving the venture a total potential investment capacity of
approximately $1.0 billion.

During 2007, we entered into two development ventures to develop and build senior living communities in the
United States during 2007 and 2008, with us serving as the developer and then as the manager of the communities.
We own 20% of the ventures. Property development will be funded through contributions of up to approximately
$208.0 million by the partners, based upon their pro rata percentage, with the balance funded by loans provided by
third party lenders, giving the ventures a total potential investment capacity of approximately $788.0 million. We
will develop and manage the communities.
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During 2007, our first UK venture in which we have a 20% equity interest sold seven communities to a venture in
which we have a 10% interest. Primarily as a result of the gains on these asset sales recorded in the ventures, we
recorded equity in earnings in 2007 of approximately $75.5 million. When our UK and Germany ventures were
formed, we established z bonus pool in respect to each venture for the benefit of employees and others responsible
for the success of these ventures. At that time, we agreed with our partner that after certain return thresholds were
met, we would each reduce our percentage interests in venture distributions with such excess to be used to fund
these bonus pools. Durirg 2007, we recorded bonus expense of $27.8 million in respect of the bonus pool relating to
the UK venture, These bonus amounts are funded from capital events and the cash is retained by us in restricted cash
accounts. As of December 31, 2007, approximately $18.0 million of this amount was included in restricted cash.
Under this bonus arrangement, no bonuses are payable until we receive distributions at least equal to certain capital
contributions and loans made by us to the UK and Germany ventures. We currently expect this bonus distribution
limitation will be satisfied in late 2008, at which time bonus payments would become payable.

In October 2000, we formed Sunrise At Home, a venture offering home health assisted living services in several
East Coast markets and Chicago. In June 2007, Sunrise At Home was merged into AllianceCare. AllianceCare
provides services to seniors, including physician house calls and mobile diagnostics, home care and private duty
services through 24 local offices located in seven states. Additionally, AllianceCare operates more than 125 Healthy

Lifestyle Centers providing therapeutic rehabilitation and wellness programs in senior living facilities. In the merger,

Sunrise received approximately an 8% preferred ownership interest in AllianceCare and Tiffany Tornasso, our chief
operating officer, was appointed to the Board of Directors. Our investment in AltianceCare is accounted for under
the cost method.

During December 2007, we decided to withdraw from ventures that owned two pieces of undeveloped land in
Florida, We wrote off our remaining investment balance of approximately $1.1 million in the two projects.

In December 2007, we contributed $4.4 million for a 20% interest in an unconsolidated venture with COP
Investment Group (Conrad Properties). The venture purchased an existing bulldmg for approx;matcly $22.0 million
and will renovate the building into a senior independent living facility.

In September 2006, a venture acquired six senior living communities with a capacity for approximately 2,000
residents in Florida, operated under the Aston Gardens brand name for $450.0 million. The aggregate purchase price
for the transaction was $450.0 million (which included approximately $134.0 million of debt assumption), plus
$10.0 million in transaction costs for the total of $460.0 million. Our venture partner funded 75% of the equity
(approximately $117.0 million) for this transaction and we funded the remaining 25% of the equity (approximately
$39.0 million} with the balance of the purchase price (approximately $i70.0 million) paid through financing
obtained by the joint verture. We funded our $39.0 million portion of the acquisition through our existing cash
balances and Bank Credit Facility. We also received an initial 20 year contract to manage these properties. In 2007
and into 2008, the operazing results of the Aston Garden communities suffered due to adverse economic conditions
in Florida for independent living communities including a decline in the real estate market. These operating results
are insufficient to achieve compliance with the debt covenants for the mortgage debt for the properties. In July 2008,
the venture received notice of default from the lender of $170.0 million of debt obtained by the venture at the time
of the acquisition in September 2006. Later in July 2008, we received notice from our equity partner alleging a
default under our management agreement as a result of receiving the notice from the lender. This debt is non-
recourse to us. Based on our assessment, we have determined that our investment is impaired and as a result, we
recorded a pre-tax impairment charge of approximately $21.6 million in the fourth quarter of 2007.

In June 2006, a new unconsolidated venture in which we held a 20% ownership interest acquired three
communities and their management contracts from a third party. The total purchase price was $34.3 million, of
which we contributed $3.8 million. During 2007, due to deteriorating performance for two of the three communities,
an impairment charge of $8.9 million was recorded in the venture under SFAS No. 144, and we recorded our
proportionate share of the loss, $1.8 million. In addition, we wrote-off our receivables due from the venture of
approximately $1.9 million.
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13. Bank Credit Facility

On December 2, 2005, we entered into a $250.0 mitlion secured Bank Credit Facility, which has since been
reduced to $160.0 million as described below (the “Bank Credit Facility™), with a syndicate of banks. The Bank
Credit Facility replaced our former credit facility. The Bank Credit Facility provides for both cash borrowings and
letters of credit. It has an initial term of four years and matures on December 2, 2009, unless extended for an
additional one-year period upon satisfaction of certain conditions. The Bank Credit Facility is secured by a pledge of
all of the common and preferred stock issued by Sunrise Senior Living Management, Inc., Sunrise Senior Liviag
Investments, Inc., Sunrise Senior Living Services, Inc. and Sunrise Development, Inc., each of which is our wholly-
owned subsidiary, (together with us, the “Loan Parties™), and all future cash and non-cash proceeds arising
therefrom and accounts and contract rights, general intangibles and notes, notes receivable and similar instruments
owned or acquired by the Loan Parties, as well as proceeds (cash and non-cash) and products thereof.

Prior to the amendments described below, cash borrowings in US doltars initially accrued interest at LIBOR plus
1.70% to 2.25% plus a fee to participating lenders subject to certain European banking regulations or the Base Rate
(the higher of the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.50% and Prime) plus 0.00% to0 0.75%. The Bank Credit Facility also
permits cash borrowings and letters of credit in currencies other than US dollars. Prior to the amendraents described
below, interest on cash borrowings in non-US currencies accrue at the rate of the Banking Federation of the
European Union for the Euro plus 1.70% to 2.25%. Letters of credit fees are equal to 1.50% to 2.00% of the
maximum available to be drawn on the letters of credit, We pay commitment fees of 0.25% on the unused balance of
the Bank Credit Facility. Borrowings are used for general corporate purposes including investments, acquisitiops
and the refinancing of existing debt. There were $71.7 million of outstanding letters of credit and $100.0 millien
outstanding under the Bank Credit Facility at December 31, 2007. The letters of credit issued under the Bank Credit
Facility expire within one year of issuance.

Borrowings under the Bank Credit Facility are considered short-term debt in cur consolidated financial
statements,

* During 2006 and 2007, we entered into several amendments to our Bank Credit Facility extending the time period
for furnishing quarterly and audited annual financial information to the lenders. In connection with these
amendments, the interest rate applicable to the outstanding balance under the Bank Credit Facility was also
increased effective July 1, 2007 from LIBOR plus 2.25% to LIBOR plus 2.50%.

On January 31, February 19, March 13, and July 23, 2008, we entered into further amendments to the Bank
Credit Facility. These amendments, among other things:

» modified to August 20, 2008 the delivery date for the unaudited financial statements for the quarter ended
March 31, 2008;

* modified to September 10, 2008 the delivery date for the unaudited financial statements for the quarter
ending June 30, 2008;

= temporarily (in February 2008) and then permanently (in July 2008) reduced the maximum principal amount
available under the Bank Credit Facility to $160.0 million; and

* waived compliance with financial covenants in the Bank Credit Facility for the year ended December 31,
2007 and for the fiscal quarters ended March 31, 2008 and June 30, 2008, and waived compliance with the
leverage ratio and fixed charge coverage ratio covenants for the fiscal quarter ending September 30, 2088,

In addition, pursuant to the July 2008 amendment, until such time as we have delivered evidence satisfactory 10
the administrative agent that we have timely filed our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2008 and
that we are in compliance with all financial covenants in the Bank Credit Facility, including the leverage ratio dnd
fixed charge coverage ratio, for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2008, and provided we are not then otherwise
in defaunlt under the Bank Credit Facility:
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» we must maintain liquidity of not less than $50.0 million, composed of availability under the Bank Credit
Facility plus up to not more than $50.0 million in unrestricted cash and cash equivalents (tested as of the end
of each calendar rnonth), and any unrestricted cash and cash equivalents in excess of $50.0 million must be
used to pay down the outstanding borrowings under the Bank Credit Facility;

= we are generally prohibited from declaring or making directly or indirectly any payment in the form of 2
stock repurchase or payment of a cash dividend or from incurring any cbligation to do so; and

* the botrowing rate in US dollars, which was increased effective as of February 1, 2008, will remain LIBOR
plus 2.75% or the Base Rate (the higher of the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.50% and Prime) plus 1.25%
(through the end of the then-current interest period).

From and after the July 2008 amendment, we will continue to owe and pay fees on the unused amount available
under the Bank Credit Facility as if the maximum outstanding amount was $160.0 million. Prior to the July 2008
amendment, fees on the unused amount were based on a $250.0 million outstanding maximum amount.

We paid the lenders an aggregate fee of approximately $0.9 million and $1.9 million for entering into
amendments during 2007 and 2008, respectively.

On February 20, 2008, Sunrise Senior Living Insurance, Inc., our wholly owned insurance captive directly issued
$43 .3 million of letters of credit that had been issued under the Bank Credit Facility. As of June 30, 2008, we had
outstanding borrowings ¢f $75.0 million, outstanding letters of credit of $26.3 million and borrowing availability of
approximately $58.7 million under the Bank Credit Facility.

In connection with the March 13, 2008 amendment, the Loan Parties executed and delivered a security agreement
to the administrative agent for the benefit of the lenders under the Bank Credit Facility. Pursuant to the security
agreement, among other things, the Loan Parties granted to the administrative agent, for the benefit of the lenders, a
security interest in all accounts and contract rights, general intangibles and notes, notes receivable and similar
- instruments owned or acquired by the Loan Parties, as well as proceeds (cash and non-cash) and products thereof, as
security for the payment of obligations under the Bank Credit Facility arrangements.

Our Bank Credit Facility contains various other financial covenants and other restrictions, including provisions
that: (1) require us to meat certain financial tests (for example, our Bank Credit Facility requires that we not exceed
certain leverage ratios), raaintain certain fixed charge coverage ratios, have a consolidated net worth of at least
$450.0 million as adjusted each quarter and to meet other financial ratios, maintain a specified minimum liquidity
and use excess cash and :ash equivalents to pay down outstanding borrowings; (2) require consent for changes in
control; and (3) restrict our ability and our subsidiaries’ ability to borrow additional funds, dispose of all or
substantially all assets, or engage in mergers or other business combinations in which Sunrise is not the surviving
entity, without lender consent.

At December 31, 2007, we were not in compliance with the following financial covenants in the Bank Credit
Facility: leverage ratio {the ratio of consolidated EBITDA to total funded indebtedness of 4.25 as defined in the
Bank Credit Facility) and fixed charge coverage ratio (the ratio of consolidated EBITDAR to fixed charges of 1.75
as defined in the Bank Credit Facility), Non-compliance was largely due to additionat charges related to losses on
financial guaraniees which were identified during the 2007 audit that was completed in July 2008. Additionally, as
these covenants are based on a rolling, four quarter test, we do not expect to be in compliance with these covenants
for the first three quarters of 2008. These covenants were waived on July 23, 2008 through the quarter ending on
September 30, 2008.

In the event that we are unable to furnish the lenders with all of the financial information required to be furnished
under the amended Bank Credit Facility by the specified dates and are not in compliance with the financial
covenants in the Bank Credit Facility, including the leverage ratio and fixed charge coverage ratio, for the quarter
ending December 31, 2008, or fail to comply with the new liquidity covenants included in the July 2008 amendment,
the lenders under the Bank Credit Facility could, among other things, agree to a further extension of the delivery
dates for the financial information or the covenant compliance requirements, exercise their rights to accelerate the
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payment of all amounts then outstanding under the Bank Credit Facility and require us to replace or provide cash
coltateral for the outstanding letters of credit or pursue further modification with respect to the Bank Credit Fagility,

14. Long-Term Debt,

Long-term debt consists of the following (in thousands):

Tiecember 31,
2007 2006
Outstanding draws on Bank Credit Facility.........cecceervrmnirescrermsnsessessensensresesssrsesesrerenenee 3 100,000 % 50,000
Borrowings from Sunrise REIT ...t et nn s — _ 35112
Mortgages, notes payable and Other ... e 153,888 105,493
253,888 190,605
CUITENE TAMITITIES . ..e.eeveseeerertrsesress e rssessarvassseesnsstessersesreraressassnsssrseasestessensssresnsasssennests sasmssncs (222,541) __ £141.923)

3 31347 3 _, 48,682

Borrowings from Sunrise REIT

At December 31, 2006, there was $35.1 million of borrowings from Sunrise REIT outstanding. Tke borrowings
were not collateralized and were related to communities we were developing for Sunrise REIT. All amounts were
repaid in 2007.

Other Mortgage and Notes Payable

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, there was $153.9 million and $105.5 million, respectively, of outstanding
mortgages and notes payable. Of the amount of mortgages and notes payable outstanding at December 31, 2007,
$121.2 million relates to 17 existing communities and communities under development that are collateralized by the
assets of the respective community. Payments of interest and some principal payments are made monthly. Integest
rates range from 3.4% to 8.5% with maturities ranging from less than one year to 19 years.

Of the amount of mortgages and notes payable outstanding at December 31, 2006, $45.6 million was owed to
third parties for five of the communities we developed for Sunrise REIT. Interest was paid monthiy for three of the
development communities at a rate of LIBOR plus 2.25% (7.57% at December 31, 2006) and for one of the
properties at a rate of LIBOR plus 2.35% (7.67% at December 31, 2006). Interest was paid for a Canadian
development property loan at a rate of Canadian Prime plus 1.05 (7.00% at December 31, 2006). All amounts were
repaid in 2007.

At December 31, 2006, $26.7 million of the remaining other mortgages and notes payable relate to six addijonal
cornrnunities that are collateralized by the assets of the respective community, Payments of principal and interdst are
made monthly. Interest rates ranged from 4.78% to 8.50% with remaining maturities ranging from less than oné year
to 20 years.

At December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, we consolidated debt of $24.6 million and $25.2 million,
respectively, related to an entity that we consolidate as it is a VIE and we are the primary beneficiary.

In November 2001, we entered into a $60.0 million revolving credit facility, expandable to $100.0 million. This
credit facility was to mature in November 2006, was subject to a five-year extension, accrues interest at LTBOR plus
1.20% (5.8% at December 31, 2007) and is collateralized by senior living communities. The credit facility mayg be
converted to a fixed rate facility at any time during the term, We pay commitment fees of 0.13% on the unused
portion. In September 2003, we reduced the credit facility to $16.0 million. During 2006, the maturity date was
extended to November 2011 based upon the terms of the credit facility. At December 31, 2007 and 2006,
$8.1 million was outstanding and two communmes were collateral for the credit facility.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the net book value of properties pledged as collateral for mortgages payable
was $266.8 million and $191.6 million, respectively.




Principal maturities o7 long-term debt at December 31, 2007 are as follows (in thousands):

BT ET oo eeeeoeeeeeeeeeesecessensenasssessssnessresanssmsnssama s s neanbassn s e emesesmeesmsabbssabeen e e s e s asmes oatsannsrnsereatsbob nasatanan 25,672
§ 253,888

Interest paid totaled $14.1 million, $13.9 million and $13.3 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Interest
capitalized was $9.3 miltion, $5.4 millicn and $5.6 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

We are obligated to provide annual audited financial staternents and quarterly unaudited financial statements to
various financial institutions that have made construction loans or provided permanent financing to entities directly
or indirectly owned by us. In addition, some of these loans have financial covenant requirements that are similar to
the Bank Credit Facility. In all such instances, the construction loans or permanent financing provided by financial
institutions is secured by a mortgage or deed of trust on the financed community. The failure to provide our annual
audited and quarterly unaudited financial statements or comply with financial covenants in accordance with the
obligations of the relevaat credit facilities or ancillary documents could be an event of default under such documents,
and could allow the financial institutions who have extended credit pursuant to such documents to seek remedies,
including possible repayment of the loan. These loans total $117.6 million and $49.2 million at December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively, and are classified as current liabilities as of those dates.
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15. Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of agsets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount recognized for income tax purposes. The significant

components of our deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows (in thousands):

December 31,
2007 2006

Deferred tax assets: _

Sunrise operating loss carryforwards — federal...............ocivvei e veirn s s e 3 1910 § 1,910
Sunrise operating loss carryforwards — state.., 7,903 4,476
Sunrise operating loss carryforwards — forelgn - 5,650 2,515
Sunrise At Home loss carryforwards — federal and state S R — 5,891
Sunrise At Home deferred tax 55618, HEL .......covervieeieeieeciseternsssstsoteteeessessesrnesesstssenesessaesesonen — 1,302
FINancial GUATANLEES .......cc.c.cieeecie v vvaen et s s s sreseseens res e sssmtsbe st et asssbesrssnestssssrssuesnssnn 25,893 38,719
Accrued health IBSUBNCE. ... e b s s es e sarn s snanen 14,872 17,159
Sl - iNSUIANCE TADIIIHES —..o..ooteeeeeceeeeee et eeteeseessssssesass sesareestensensessesseesssesnssnsensesenreesnenne 6,989 8,826
Stock-based COMPENSAION. .....ccvvrreriesieretiee i eeeee st ceieseesetesseaeaseee s e e seemsscssesnasenesensssenessneseas 7,636 7,518
Deferred develOpment fEES .......covvueiecieice sttt aasen s saa st b enr s e 29,258 5,923
Allowance for AOUBHUL ACCOUDES ...........oee e seeseessetssasereesrasssestsssasessasasssssnsensns sasen €,178 6,441
TAK CTEAIS c.vee v tee e sree e etess e te et ess st rteeree sreaesrsessans smsnt et enssaeetesasseesraassnsemmsmeatsreemnesentesn 6,729 6,277
Accrued expenses and IESEIVES......ccvuveeeiirirncrerieseesrereseesae e enr e e reneenis 20,593 8,560
EHIALCE FEES.......octiieeiceeece et eene et s sr s s s b sn s st et sas e s aeses s s e sbssasan s e s s sasnssnb et assnsnmtbens 14,228 10,661
OHRET ettt et ee et e se et et es e ensehs et e e e raerre ey ontenteree b et ent s R s et Rt on bt st sanresensabens 1,898 11,401
L1 el Loy (g r ot B b T ¢ OO POV 145,737 137,579
Sunrise valuation allowances... (€,165) (3,800)
Foreign deferred tax valuation allowance ereetrnteaeetre e i e e e e e ransaen s ereraenanatraen (€,243) (2,071)
Sunrise At Home valuation allOWaNCE........c.ocuoemeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eee et e e e — (7,193)
Net deferred tax S58L5 ... ..coreeecee e ettt et e et ee e er e e e st bbb en s 137,329 124 515
Deferred tax liabilities: )
INVESUIENTS 11 VEILUIES ....eceeeeee et cverer s e res et s e bessssresses s srssaerssrssnvmmanntontons sesnbonton (96,333) - (80,093)
Basis difference in property and equlpmcnt and mtanglbles (74,826)  (84,599)
Prepaid expenses... - e e eeean (8,133) (5,932)
Other... (1.075) (2,525)
Total deferred tax llabxlmes ....................................................................................................... (186,367) _ {173.149)

Net deferred tax HABIIEES ..ooeiieice ettt ettt ee ettt eeemeeetessmseesassosisear o ssasraeaas

date.

During 2006, we completed the acquisition of the stock of Trinity. In connection with this

§_(49,038) 5 __(48.634)

During 2006, the deferred tax assets and liabilities included assets and liabilities from Sunrise At Home, which
was a consolidated VIE. In 2007, Sunrise At Home was merged into AllianceCare. As a result of the merger, we are
no {onger the primary beneficiary of Sunrise At Home and we deconsolidated Sunrise At Home as of the merger

acquisition, we

recorded a net deferred tax liability of approximately $0.6 million related to Trinity’s acquisition date temporazy
differences. During 2007, as a result of a review of the goodwill related to Trinity, we recorded an impairment loss
of approximately $56.7 million. Approximatety one-half of the impairment charge relates to non-deductible

goodwill and results in a non-deductible loss that negatively impacts the 2007 tax rate.

During 2007 and 2006, we provided income taxes for unremitted earnings of our Canadian foreigr, subsidiazies
that are not considered permanently reinvested. During 2007, we also provide for income taxes for unremitted
earnings of our United Kingdom foreign subsidiaries that are not considered permanently reinvested. As of
December 31, 2007, we have deferred tax assets that are fully reserved with respect to our German subsidiaries.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had a total valuation allowance against deferred tax assets of $12.4 million
and $13.1 million, respectively. In 2006, we have provided a full valuation allowance against the net deferred tax

assets of Sunrise At Home because it was more likely than not that sufficient taxable income will not be genersted to
utilize the net deferred tax assets. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, we have a valuation allowance of
$1.3 million in both years against our foreign tax credits, which we do not view as more likely than not to be ugilized
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to offset future U.S. taxable income. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, we provided a valuation allowance relating
to our German net deferred tax assets of $6.2 million and $2.1 million, respectively, because it is more likely than
not that sufficient future German taxable income will not be generated to utilize the excess of the net operating loss
carryforward over the future German taxable temporary differences. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, we
established a valuation allowance of $4.0 million and $1.4 million, respectively, primarily relating to state net
operating losses that are no longer viewed to be more likely than not to be utilized against future state taxable
income prior to expiraticn.

At December 31, 2007, we have U.S. federal net operating losses of $77.4 million, which we will elect to
carryback to 2006. At December 31, 2006, we had U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards of $5.4 million
from our Trinity acquisition, which are subject to a limitation as to annual use under Intemal Revenue Code
section 382 and which expire in tax years from 2024 through 2025, At December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had state
net operating loss carryforwards valued at $8.2 million and $4.1 million respectively which are expected to expire
from 2010 through 2023. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had German net operating loss carryforwards to
offset future foreign taxzble income of $13.0 million and $5.5 million respectively, which have an unlimited
carryforward period to offset future taxable income in Germany. At December 31, 2006, Sunrise At Home had net
operating loss carryforwards for U.S, federal income tax purposes of approximately $16.9 million which expire at
various dates through 2026.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had Alternative Minimum Tax credits of $4.9 million and $4.9 million,
respectively, which carryforward indefinitely and can be offset against future regular U.S. tax. At December 31,
2007 and 2006, we had $1.3 million and $1.3 million, respectively, of foreign tax credit carryforward as of each
reporting date which expire in 2013. The major components of the provision for income taxes attributable to
continuing operations ar: as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005

Current:

Federal ..cucvviirccrs s eireseesss st s s ssssr s sstsssessnssssssnssermemennnnneneeneene 9 (14,904)  § 15,837 § 15,140
SEALE L.t erecrereetsireer s e s a s eme s et nm sase e em e sem s eneeeeehemeaie 2,814 5,202 5,563
FOTBIZTI oot crertcrecin s s vetsainers s sa b eec et et s e e smt b sa b ans 2,098 26 2,096
TOLAl CUITEME EXPEISE. .....occeeeteeeereesicsaciesasrnsas e sases s sress s senesbon s b e s e {9,992) 21,065 22,799
Deferred: o

FABTRL ... ovvvtieereesir st cmessens e e ereamesa s eees s nans e saetesam e sam s eme e cmeseems e anaesasasate 121 (4,178) 27,236
SHALE ..ottt et et bbb e aa R bbb e R e e e r et ettt (614) 553 (337
FOTRIEN ettt e et e et ne 1,226 {228) 2,458
Total deferred expense (Denefit) ....cooveereiieeecrc e 733 {3.853) 29.357
Total tax (benefit) EXPEISE ....ovmiveeececeeieriestcteessseemsasnsrrssessevereeenenenenee 3 19,259) 8 17,212 § 52,156

Current taxes payable for 2007, 2006 and 2005 have been reduced by approximately $2.2 million, $1.9 million,
and $13.4 million, respectively, reflecting the tax benefit to us of employee stock options exercised during the year.
The tax benefit for these option exercises has been recognized as an increase to additional paid-in capital.
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The differences between the amount that would have resulted from applying the domestic federal statutory tax
rate (33%) to pre-tax income from continuing operations and the reported income tax expense from continuing
operations recorded for each year are as follows:

Years Endéd December 31,

{In thousands) 2007 2006 2008
(Loss) income before tax benefit (expense) taxed in the U.S. ....ccccoveeee § (78,816) $ 38535 $ 125095
(Loss) income before tax benefit (expense) taxed in foreign jurisdictions..... (718)  __(6.039) 125
Totat (loss) income before tax benefit (EXPEnse).......cou.erevevcrnrerrrersesvecrseene $ (79,534) $ 32496 LL}?@
Tax at US federal statutory TALE ... evecrereereee e eresasnesenabensassetessesrassanmeassresasneen {35.00% 35.0% 35.0%
State taxes, net.. UV ST OO POTRUUYPPPIUPTOURTUYUTUOTOTY (- 9 b2 4.2% 3.9%
Work opportumty cred1ts cermeremrene s e seseensaesesnsresesresenensrenaerens (0.6)%0 (1.3)% {1.2)%
Change in valueation allowance ...................................................................... 8.4% 11.1% 1.0%
Tax eXempt intErest ......cooevcoieinrvnrnnisnimin st smseniessencnnees {2.2)%0 (4.5)% 0.1)%
Tax contingencies............. 2.3% 4.4% {1.0Y%
Wnte-offofnon—deductlblc goodwﬂl 12.1% 0.0% (3.0%
Foreign rate differential .........ccccooveeevecevsercinis s e (0.8)% 0.0% G.0%
1.8. tax related to foreign eamings 4.3% 0.0% 0.0%
OHBET «.cvveeveiinivnessorvre e e e e e e br s snee s s es s assbbste e b aeaeembt s8 8t s et emrme b teemie 4.2% 4.1% LO%

L%  530%  3R&%

In September 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes +— an
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes (“FIN 48™). FIN 48 prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measureiment of a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 requires that we recognized in our financial statetnents
the impact of a tax position if that position is more likely than not to be sustained on audit based on the technical
merits of the position. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim periods and disclosure.

We adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. There was no adjustment to our recorded tax liability as
a result of adopting FIN 48. The total unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2007 was $27.6 million.
Included in the balance were $14.6 million of tax positions that, if recognized, would favorably impact the effective
tax rate. We are under audit by the IRS for the 2006 tax year and it is possible that the amount of the liability fer
unrecognized tax-benefits could change during the next twelve month period. We file income tax returns, including
returns for our subsidiaries, with federal, state, local and foreign jurisdictions. We have no other income tax refun
examinations by U.S,, state, local or foreign jurisdictions, with the exception of Canada.

(In thousands)

Unrecognized tax benefit at begmnmg of year (Ja.nuary 1, 2007) e $ 25,147
Change attributable to tax positions taken during a prior penod —
Change attributable to tax positions taken during a current period ..................................................... 2,643
Decrease attributable to settlements with taxing authorities... —
Decrease attributable to lapse in statute of limitations... s v et e ere st en e an e sabesrenerrasbenentes (234)
Unrecognized tax benefit at end of year (December 31 2007) ........................................................... i 27,556

In accordance with our accounting policy, we recognize interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits
as a component of tax expense. This policy did not change as a result of the adoption of FIN 48. Our consolidated
statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2007 and our consolidated balance sheet as of that date
include interest and penalties of $1.1 million and $3.5 million, respectively.

16. Stockholders’ Equity
Stock Option Plans
In December 2004, the F inancial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Statement No. 123 (revised 2004),

Share-Based Payment (“SFAS 123(R)”). SFAS 123(R) supersedes APB 25 and amends FASB Staternent No. 95,
Statement of Cash Flows. SFAS 123{R) requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants of
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employee stock options, to be recognized as expense based on their fair values. Pro forma disclosure is no longer an
alternative, We adopted SFAS 123(R) on January 1, 2006, using the modified prospective method and, accordingly,
the financial statements for prior periods do not reflect any restated amounts related to adoption. In accordance with
SFAS 123(R), we are required to record compensation expense for all awards granted after the date of adoption and
for the unvested portion of previously granted awards that remain outstanding at the date of adoption.

The adoption of SFAS 123(R) resulted in the recognition of incremental share-based compensation costs of
$3.6 million, before tax, a reduction in net income of $1.8 million (net of tax benefits of $1.8 million} and a
reduction in basic net income per share of $0.04 and diluted net income per share of $0.03 in 2006. Additionally, the
adoption of SFAS 123(R) resulted in a decrease of $3.6 million in reported cash flows from operating activities and
an increase of $3.6 million in reported cash flows from investing activities related to the presentation of excess tax
benefits from share-based awards for the year ended December 31, 2006,

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and eamnings per share as if we had applied fair value
recognition provisions of SFAS 123(R) to share-based employee compensation in 2005. We have included the
impact of measured but unrecognized compensation costs and excess tax benefits credited to additional paid-in
capital in the calculation of diluted pro forma shares.

Twelve Months
Ended
Dec. 31
(In thousands, except per share data) 2005
{Restated)
Net income.. $ 83,064
Add: Compcnsatlon exp=nse mcluded in net income, nct of tax " 3,331
Less: Total share-based zmployee compensatlon expense determmed under falr-value
method for all awards, net OF tAX ... et s (9.359)
PrO fOTTNA DEL IMCOMIE ..eivvviiiesreeceresirreirreeisireressressrirssesssrrestesarasassasssesensemsmeasseesierasesbissssnsisionsosrases § 77,036
Basic net income per share:
As reported .................................................................................................................................. $§ 200
Pro forma... $ 186
Diluted net income per sha.re
As reported ... $ 174
Pro forma $ 162
Stock Options

We have stock option plans providing for the grant of incentive and nonqualified stock options to employees,
directors, consultants and advisors. At December 31, 2007, these plans provided for the grant of options to purchase
up to 19,797,820 shares of common stock. Under the terms of the plans, the option exercise price and vesting
provisions of the options are fixed when the option is granted. The options typically expire ten years from the date of
grant and generally vest over a four-year period. The option exercise price is not less than the fair market value of a
share of common stock on the date the option is granted.

In 1996, cur Board of Directors approved a plan which provided for the potential grant of options to any director
who is not an officer or cmployee of us or any of our subsidiaries (the “Directors’ Plan”). Under the terms of the
Directors’ Plan, the option exercise price was not less than the fair market value of a share of common stock on the
date the option was granted. The period for exercising an option began upon grant and generally ended ten years
from the date the option was granted. All options granted under the Directors’ Plan were non-incentive stock options.
There were 40,000 options outstanding under the plan at December 31, 2007. Our directors may be considered
employees under the provisions of SFAS 123(R).

The fair value of stock options is estimated as of the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option valuation model
that uses the assumptions noted in the following table. The risk-free rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in
cffect at the time of grant. The expected term (estimated period of time outstanding) is estimated using the historical
exercise behavior of employees and directors. Expected volatility is based on historical volatility for a period equal
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to the stock option’s expected term, ending on the day of grant, and calculated on a monthly basis. Compensation
expense is recognized using the straight-line method for options with graded vesting,

' . 2007 2006 2005
Risk free inferest rate ........c.ocovuervnicimiiiniensivenrcecsrsreesenssersmecsssresceceeees. 3.6%  4.8%-52%  4.3%-4.5%
Expected dividend yield .......ooovemiomnienniesiinienseessssientecrerins | — — —
Expected teIm (YEAIS)....cooieiiieeriinrenisiesssemssrmsssssrssssesssssssssssssseressssssnns 1.0 51-9.1 39-56
Expected volatility........cccccooveriireineerrrernnnesseses e rsesssrsensssesrennenn: 29.9%0  56.1% - 60.7% 32.3% - 62.0%

A summary of our stock option activity and related information for the year ended December 31, 2007 is
presented below (share amounts are shown in thousands):

Weighted  Remaining
Average Confractual
Shares  Exercise Price _ Term

Outstandmg — begmmng o) i | RSO 3,767 $ 1496
Granted ... . rrereursanersatesae e ra peen e b euesreuner s sasrsnsaneesansasnsares —
Excr(:lscd ......................................................................................................... — —
FOLFEitad ......coovrecriii st sass s s sttt bbb et n b ssa s s sbabssbeberaes (33) 16.27
Expired ... O O RPPRRSORRRY f §..1¢) 2091
Outstandmg— end ofyear SOOI o . 1 14.64 3.6
Vested and expected to vest — end ofyear SO USROS OOPROOR. T 1 b 14.64 3.6
Exercisable — end of year..........cooveeiinniiiicn e eveens 3,902 14.56 3.5

The weighted average grant date fair value of options granted was $23.28 and $12.44 per share in 2006 and 2005,
respectively. No options were granted or exercised in 2007. The total intrinsic value of options exercised was
$9.4 million and $33.0 million for 2006 and 20035, respectivély. The fair value of shares vested was $1.3 million,
$5.2 million and $13.1 million for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Unrecognized compensation expense related
to the unvested portion of our stock options was approximately $0.3 million as of December 31, 2007, and is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-average remaining term of approximately 1.1 years.

[n 2007, the Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors extended the exercise period of stock optigns
that were set to expire unexercised due to the inability of the optionees to exercise the options because we werg not
current in our SEC filings. The Compensation Committee sei the new expiration date as 30 days after we becoge a
current filer with the SEC. As a result of this modification, we recognized $2.4 miilion of stock-based compensation
expense.

We generally issue shares for the exercise of stock options from authorized but unissued shares.
Restricted Stock
We have restricted stock plans ﬁroviding for the grant of restricted stock to employees and directors. These grants

vest over one to ten years and some vesting may be accelerated if certain performance criteria are met.
Compensation expense is recognized using the straight-line method for restricted stock with graded vesting,
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A summary of our restricted stock activity and related information for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006,
and 2005 is presented below (share amounts are shown in thousands):

Weighted

Average
Grant Date

Shares Fair Value

Nonvested, January 1, 2005.......cowvvreeremerereeerarereimenessseseesessssimsossermssmsssssssnsssssssssenssssassssssns 931 $ 13.18
GTADTEA o vt e e e et estesbssbsvassabs s nas b s aRn s nsrsesaeeatratssre s senssneane et soabosebas s b s srnsan st e T s 412 26.67
o=« U OO U YR PO RSO P T (101) 13.12
Canceled ... etmteeseeevateesesateseateresatnasraatetetatinsatassbetsenntbavanneenanressranenrannsenanns T —
Nonvested,DecemberBl 2005.... OO OO URTORSSORUVPI . . . 19.79
Granted ... et eeeeeeemtateeereseetsstatt et ee st em et ean et em et eeseeereeesrereinasatsrsnsantesnssresssssaaseanssensansssraeneres D 35.75
Vested... UV S OOV TUUSUROTUTVUVRPDOPR (¥ ) | 24.48
Ca.nccled eeerueeteeeeneieinteataeaassioateeanaasteeeseasneaasreansraes . _(16) 2522
Nonvested, December3 2006.... . 834 20.34
Granted ... et tireterieatetes et etetearasateeareresaeaeeemeeneimtesesatsssntanatntetrsenerarernes OB 33.87
VT BSEEA ..o oeeteeceeesieesseeseeratssassoteasaserrenn et eaere st emseesseeensbabsteararanrresRrndrr e st s s e s b e et n e s e R Rebes (288) 14.01
Canceled... OO PO PURVOUTOPRRROPNN § 1 .} 27.38
Nonvested, December3 2007_,52& 24.64

The total fair value of restricted shares vested was $14.01 per share and $24 .48 per share for 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Unrecognized compensation expense related to the unvested portion of our restricted stock was
approximately $8.0 million as of December 31, 2007, and is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average
remaining term of approximately 3.6 years.

Under the provisions of SFAS 123(R), the recognition of deferred compensation (a contra-equity account
representing the amount of unrecognized restricted stock expense that is reduced as expense is recognized) at the
date restricted stock is granted is no longer required. Therefore, we climinated the amount in “Deferred
compensation-restricted stock” against “Additional paid-in capital” in our December 31, 2006 consolidated balance
sheet,

Restricted stock shares are generally issued from existing shares.
Restricted Stock Units

In addition to equity zwards under our equity award plans, to encourage greater stock ownership, we have a
Bonus Deferral Program for certain executive officers. The Bonus Deferral Program provides that these executive
officers may elect to receive all or a portion of their annual bonus payments, if any, in the form of fully-vested, but
deferred, restricted stock. units in lieu of cash (such restricted stock units are referred to as “base units”). In addition,
at the time of the deferral election, each executive officer must also elect a vesting period of from two to four years
and, based on the vesting period chosen, will receive additional restricted stock units equal to 20% to 40% of the
deferral bonus amount (such additional restricted stock units are referred to as “supplemental units™). The
supplemental units, but not the base units, are subject to the vesting period chosen by the executive and will vest in
full upon conclusion of the period (assuming continued employment by the executive). Delivery of the shares of our
common stock represented by both the base units and supplemental units is made to the executive officer upon the
conclusion of the vesting period applicable to the supplemental units, or the first day of the next open window
period under the Compasy’s insider trading program, if the trading window is closed on the vesting date, or, if so
elected by the executive at retirement (as defined in the Bonus Deferral Program), thus further providing a retention
incentive to the named executive officers electing to participate in the program. Compensation expense is
recognized using the straight-line method for restricted stock units with graded vesting.

Repurchase of Outstanding Shares
The Board of Directoss previously approved repurchase programs that expired in May 2005 providing for the

repurchase of an aggregate of $200.0 million of our common stock and/or the outstanding 5.25% convertible
subordinated notes that were due 2009. In November 2005, Sunrise’s Board of Directors approved a new repurchase
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program that provides for the repurchase of up to $30.0 million of Sunrise’s common stock. This program extended
through December 31, 2007. There were no share repurchases under this program in 2007 or 2006. In 2005,
347,980 shares were repurchased at an average price of $25.03.

Stockholder Rights Agreement

We have a Stockholders Rights Agreement (“Rights Agreement”). All shares of common stock issued by us
between the effective date of adoption of the Rights Agreement (April 24, 1996} and the Distribution Date (as
defined below) have rights attached to them. The Rights Agreement was renewed in April 2006 and the rights éxpire
on April 24, 2016. The Rights Agreement replaced our prior rights plan, dated as of April 25, 1996, which expired
by its terms on April 24, 2006, Each right, when exercisable, entitles the holder to purchase one one-Ihousandﬂi ofa
share of Series D Junior Participating Preferred Stock at a price of $170.00 per one one-thousand of & share (the
“Purchase Price™). Until a right is exercised, the holder thereof will have no rights as a stockholder with respect to
this right.

The rights initially attach to the common stock. The rights will separate from the common stock and a distribution
of rights certificates will occur (a “Distribution Date™} upon the earlier of (1) ten days following a public
announcement that a person or group {an “Acquiring Person™) has acquired, or obtained the right to acquire,
berneficial ownership of 20% or more of the outstanding shares of common stock (the “Stock Acquisition Drate™) or
(2) ten business days (or such later date as the Board of Directors may determine) following the commencemerit of,
or the first public announcement of the intention to commence, a tender offer or exchange offer, the consummation
of which would resuit in the beneficial ownership by a person of 20% or more of the cutstanding shares of common
stock.

In general, if a person becomes the beneficial owner of 20% or more of the then outstanding shares of common
stock, each holder of a right will, after the end of the redemption period referred to below, have the right to exefcise
the right by purchasing for an amount equal to the Purchase Price common stock (or in certain circumstances, dash,
property or other securities of us) having a value equal to two times the Purchase Price. All rights that are or were
beneficially owned by the Acquiring Person will be null and void. If at any time following the Stock Acquisitign
Date (1) we are acquired in a merger or other business combination transaction, or (2) 50% or more of our assets or
earning power is sold or transferred, each holder of a right shall have the right to receive, upon exercise, commen
stock of the acquiring company having a value equal to two times the Purchase Price, Our Board of Directors
generally may redeem the rights in whole, but not in part, at a price of $.005 per right (payable in cash, common
stock or other consideration deemed appropriate by cur Board of Directors) at any time until ten days after a Stock
Acquisition Date. In general, at any time after a person becomes an Acquiring Person, the Board of Directors mjay
exchange the rights, in whole or in part, at an exchange ratio of one share of common stock for each outstanding
nght.
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17. Net (Loss) Income Per Common Share

The foliowing table summarizes the computation of basic and dituted net (loss) income per common share
amounts presented in the accompanying consolidated statements of income (in thousands, except per share amounts}:

Years Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
{Restated) (Restated)

Numerator for basic net (loss) income per share:

Net (loss) income .. rreeeemreeseresiearsereneneeennes 2 (70.275) § 15,284 3 83,064
Numerator for dilutcd nt'l (loss) income per sharc
Net (loss) income............. rrreeriemrnerenrenee 8 (70,275) § 15,284 § 83,064
Assumed conversion of convemble notes, net of tax — — 4376
Diluted net (1055) NCOTIE. .....cveveeceeeeeee e et st en e s § (70275) § 15284 § 87440
Denotminator:
Denominator for basic net (loss) income per common share —

weighted average Shares ......co.ccooeceeceevccccniemrescrrrererccisiennneas. 49,8351 48,947 41,456
Effect of dilutive securities:

Employee stock options and restricted St0€K ... oo — 1,775 2,234

Convertible notes.. — — 6.695
Denominator for dlluted nct (loss) income per common Share —

weighted average shares plus assumed conversions.......ooecervvecrcncvennen. 49,851 50,722 __50,385
Basic net (loss) income Der common Share ......vevvevverereoscscsmemcennene o (141} § 0,31 § 2,00
Diluted net (loss) income per common Share .........ccoeveveeeeecesiecinnn, (141]) 0.30 1.74

Options are included under the treasury stock method to the extent they are dilutive. Shares issuable upon
exercise of stock options after applying the treasury stock method of 1,367,157, 133,500 and 524,500 for 2007, 2006
and 2003, respectively, have been excluded from the computation because the effect of their inclusion would be
anti-dilutive. The i 1111pac t of the convertible notes has been excluded for 2006 because the effect would be anti-

-dilutive: S - : :

18. Commitments and Contingencies
Leases for Office Space

Rent expense for office space for 2007, 2006, and 2005 was $8.4 million, $6.9 million, and $5.8 million,
respectively. We lease our corporate offices, regional offices and development offices under various leases. In 1998,
we entered into an agreement to lease new office space for our corporate headquarters, which expires in
September 2013. The lease had an initial annual base rent of $1.2 million. In September 2003, we entered into an
agreement to lease additional office space for our corporate headquarters. The new lease commenced in September
2003 and expires in September 2013. The lease has an initial annual base rent of $3.0 million. The base rent for both
of these leases escalates approximately 2.5% per year in accordance with the base rent schedules.

In connection with thz acquisition of Greystone in May 2005, we assumed a ten year operating lease that expires
in 2013 with the option o extend for seven years. The lease was amended in 2006 to expand the leased space. Based
on this agreement, the current annual base rent of $1.1 million will increase to $1.2 million by 2008 and then
decrease in 2009 through the remainder of the lease term. Both the initial agreements and 2006 amendment provided
for lease incentives for leasehold improvements for a total of $0.9 million. These assets are included in “Property
and equipment, net” in the consolidated balance sheet and are being amortized over the lease term. The incentives
were recorded as deferred rent and are being amortized as a reduction to lease expense over the lease term.

Leases for Operating Communities
We have also entered into operating leases, as the lessee, for four communities. Two communities commenced
operations in 1997 and two communities commenced operations in 1998. In connection with the acquisition of

Karrington Health, Inc. in May 1999, we assumed six operating leases for six senior living communities and a
ground lease. The operating lease terms vary from 15 to 20 years, with two ten-year extension options. We also have
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two other ground leases related to two communities in operation. Lease terms range from 15 to 99 years and are
subject to annual increases based on the consurmner price index and/or stated increases in the lease.

In connection with the acquisition of Marriott Senior Living Services, Inc. (“MSLS™) in March 2003, we assumed
14 operating leases and renegotiated an existing operating lease agreement for another MSLS community in June
2003, We also entered into two new leases with a landlord who acquired two continuing care retirement
communitics from MSLS at the same date. Fifteen of the leases expire in 2013, while the remaining two leases
expire in 2018. The leases had initial terms of 20 years, and contain one or more renewal options, generally for-five
to 15 years. The leases provide for minimum rentals and additional rentals based on the operations of the leased
community. Rent expense for operating communities subject to operating leases was $69.0 million, $62.0 millipn
and $57.9 million for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, including contingent rent expense of $8.2 million,
$6.5 million, and $4.8 million for 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under office, equipment, ground and other operating leases at December 31,
2007 are as follows (in thousands):

Thereafter 376,972
Lﬁ.ﬂ
Letters of Credit

In addition to the letters of credit discussed in Note 13 related to our Bank Credit Facility and the Sunrise Captive,
we have letters of credit outstanding of $1.9 million and $1.6 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively, These letters of credit primarily relate to our insurance programs.

Land Purchase Commitments

At December 31, 2007, we had entered into contracts to purchase 101 development sites, for a total contracted
purchase price of approximately $400.0 million, and had also entered into contracts to lease six development sites
for lease periods ranging from five to 80 years. Generally, our land purchase commitments are terminable by us.

Guarantees

As discussed in Note 7, in conjunction with our development ventures, we have provided project completion
guarantees to venture lenders and the venture itself, operating deficit guarantees to the venture lenders whereby after
depletion of established reserves we guarantee the payment of the lender’s monthly principal and interest during the
term of the guarantee and guarantees to the venture to fund operating shortfalls. In conjunction with the sale of
certain operating communities to third parties we have guaranteed a set level of net operating income or guaranteed
a certain return to the buyer. As guarantees entered into in conjunction with the sale of real estate prevent us fram
either being able to account for the transaction as a sale or to recognize profit from that sale transaction, the
provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 45, Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees,
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others (“FIN 45", do not apply to these guarantees.

In conjunction with the formation of new ventures that do not involve the sale of real estate, the acquisition &f
equity interests in existing ventures, and the acquisition of management contracts, we have provided operating
deficit guarantees to venture lenders and/or the venture itself as described above, guarantees of debt repayment o
venture lenders in the event that the venture does not perform under the debt agreements and guarantees of a set
level of net operating income to venture partmers. The terms of the operating deficit guarantees and debt repayment
guarantees match the term of the underlying venture debt and generally range from three to seven years. The tetms
of the guarantees of a set level of net operating income range from 18 months to seven years. Fundings under the
operating deficit guarantees and debt repayment guarantees are generally recoverable either out of future cash flows
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of the venture or upon proceeds from the sale of communities. Fundings under the guarantees of a set level of net
operating income are generally not recoverable.

The maximum potential amount of future fundings for outstanding guarantees subject to the provisions of FIN 45,
the carrying amount of the liability for expected future fundings at December 31, 2007, and fundings during 2007
are as follows (in thousands):

FIN 45 FAS S Total
Maximum Liability Liability Liability
Potential for Future for Future for Future
Amount of  Fundings at Fundings at Fundings at Fundings
Future December 31, December 31, December 31, during
Guarantee Type Fundings 2007 2007 2007 2007
Debt repayment .....c.ccoceevervvervrveeeenn. 516,832 $ 785 $ — $ 78 § —
Operating deficit.........cccoecvrrivcrsnne. Uncapped 1,371 42,023 43,394 5,829
Income SUpport.....ecveerriarerremreccccnnnen. UNCApped 960 16,525 17,485 —
(07111 U 4,150 4,150
TOtal..oiveeice e § 3] !g 3 62,698 § 65814 L;&

Generally, the financing obtained by our ventures is non-recourse to the venture members, with the exception of
the debt repayment guarantees discussed above. However, we have entered into guarantees with the lenders with
respect to acts which we believe are in our control, such as fraud, that create exceptions to the non-recourse nature
of debt. If such acts were to occur, the full amount of the venture debt could become recourse to us. The combined
amount of venture debt vnderlying these guarantees is approximately $3.0 billion at December 31, 2007. We have
not funded under these guarantees, and do not expect to fund under such guarantees in the future.

To the extent that a third party fails to satisfy this obligation with respect to two continuing care retirement
communities managed by the Company, we would be required to repay this obligation, the majority of which is
expected to be refinanced with proceeds from the issuance of entrance fees as new residents enter the communities.
At December 31, 2007, the remaining liability under this obligation is $56.6 million.

The Fountains

In the third quarter of 2005, we acquired a 20% interest in a venture and entered into management agreements for
the 16 communities owned by the venture. In conjunction with this transaction, we guaranteed to fund shortfalls
between actual net operating income and a specified level of net operating income up to $7.0 million per year
through July 2010. We paid $12.0 million to the venture to enter into the management agreements, which was
recorded as an intangible asset and is being amortized over the life of the management agreements. The
$12.0 million was placed into a reserve account, and the first $12.0 million of shortfalls were to be funded from this
reserve account. In late 2006 and 2007, we determined that shortfalls will exceed the amount held in the reserve
account. As a result, we recorded a pre-tax charge of $22.4 million in the fourth quarter of 2006. We are continuing
to receive management fees with respect to these communities.

Germany Venture

At December 31, 2007 and June 30, 2008, we provided pre-opening and management services to eight and nine
communities, respectively, in Germany, In connection with the development of these communities, we provided
operating deficit guarantees to cover cash shortfalls until the communities reach stabilization. These communities
have not performed as well as originally expected. In 2006, we recorded a pre-tax charge of $50.0 million as we did
not expect full repayment of the loans from the funding. In 2007, we recorded an additional $16.0 million pre-tax
charge based on changes in expected future cash flows. Our estimates underlying the pre-tax charge include certain
assumptions as to lease-up of the communities. To the extent that such lease-up is slower than our projections, we
could incur significant additional pre-tax charges in subsequent periods as we would be required to fund additional
amounts under the operating deficit guarantees. Through June 30, 2008, we have funded $37.0 million under these
guarantees and other loaas. We expect to fund an additional $62.0 million through 2012, the date at which we
estimate no further funding will be required.
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Legal Proceedings
Trinity OIG Investigation and Qui Tam Action

As previously disclosed, on September 14, 2006, we acquired all of the outstanding stock of Trinity. As a result
of this transaction, Trinity became an indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. On Januarv 3, 2007,
Trinity received a subpoena from the Phoenix field office of the Office of the Inspector General of the Department
of Health and Human Services (“OIG™) requesting certain information regarding Trinity’s operations in three -
locations for the period January 1, 2000 through June 30, 2006, a period that was prior to the Company’s acquisition
of Trinity. The Company was advised that the subpoena was issued in connection with an investigation being
conducted by the Commercial Litigation Branch of the U.S. Department of Justice and the civil division of the,
U.S. Attorney’s office in Arizona. The subpoena indicates that the OIG is investigating possible improper Medjcare
billing under the Federal False Claims Act (“FCA”™). In addition to recovery of any Medicare reimbursements -
previously paid for false claims, an entity found to have submitted false claims under the FCA may be subject o
treble damages plus a fine of between $5,500 and $11,000 for each false claim submitted. Trinity has complled with
the subpoena and continues to supplement its responses as requested. -

On September 11, 2007, Trinity and the Company were served with a complaint filed on September 5, 2007 in
the United States District Court for the District of Arizona. That filing amended a complaint filed under seal od
November 21, 2005 by four former employees of Trinity under the qui tam provisions of the FCA. The qui tam
provisions authorize persons (“relators™) claiming to have evidence that false claims may have been submitted o the
United States to file suit on behalf of the United States against the party alleged to have submitted such false cfaims.
Qui tam suits remain under seal for a period of at least 60 days to enable the government to investigate the
allegations and to decide whether to intervene and litigate the lawsuit, or, alternatively, to decline to intervene,in
which case the gui fam plaintiff, or “relator,” may proceed to litigate the case on behalf of the United States. Qisi tam
relators are entitled to 15% to 30% of the recovery obtained for the United States by trial or settlement of the claims
they file on its behalf. On June 6, 2007, the Department of Justice and the U.S. Attorney for Arizona filed a Natice
with the Court advising of its decision not to intervene in the case, indicating that its investigation was still ongoing.
This action followed previous applications by the U.S. Government for extensions of time to decide whether ¢
intervene. As a result, on July 10, 2007, the Court ordered the complaint unsealed and the litigation to proceed. The
matter is therefore currently being litigated by the four individual relators. However, under the FCA, the
U.S. Government could still intervene in the future. The amended complaint alleges that during periods prior te the
acquisition by the Company, Trinity engaged in certain actions intended to obtain Medicare reimbursement for
services rendered to beneficiarics whose medical conditions were not of a type rendering them eligible for hospice
reimbursement and violated the FCA by submitting claims to Medicare as if the services were covered services. The
relators alleged in their amended complaint that the total loss sustained by the United States is probably in the -
$75 million to $100 million range. On July 3, 2008, the amended complaint was revised in the form of a second
amended compiaint which replaced the loss sustained range of $75 to $100 million with an alleged loss by the
United States of at least 3100 million. The original complaint named KRG Capital, LLC {an affiliate of former
stockholders of Trinity) and Trinity Hospice LLC (a subsidiary of Trinity) as defendants. The amended complgint
names Sunrise Senior Living, Inc., KRG Capital, LLC and Trinity as defendants. The lawsuit is styled United State
ex rel. Joyce Roberts. et al., v, KRG Capital, LLC, et al., CV05 3758 PHX-MEA (D. Ariz.).

On February 13, 2008, Trinity received a subpoena from the Los Angeles regional office of the OIG requesting
information regarding Trinity’s operations in 19 locations for the period between December 1, 1998 through
February 12, 2008. This subpoena relates to the ongoing investigation being conducted by the Commercial
Litigation Branch of the U.S. Department of Justice and the civil division of the U.S. Attorney’s Office in Arizpna,
as discussed above. Trinity is in the process of complying with the subpoena.

In 2006, the Company recorded a loss of $5.0 million for possible fines, penalties and damages related to this
matter. In 2007, the Company recorded an additional loss of $1.0 million.

IRS Audit

The Internal Revenue Service is auditing our federal income tax return for the years ended December 31, 2006
and 2005 and our federal employment tax returns for 2004, 2005 and 2006. In July 2008, the IRS corapleted the
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field work with respect to their audit of our federal income tax return for the year ended December 31, 2005. We
will make a payment of approximately $0.2 million for additional taxes plus interest.

SEC Investigation

We previously announced on December 11, 2006 that we had received a request from the SEC for information
about insider stock sales, timing of stock option grants and matters relating to our historical accounting practices that
had been raised in media reports in the latter part of November 2006 following receipt of a letter by us from the
Service Employees International Union. On May 25, 2007, we were advised by the staff of the SEC that it has
commenced a formal investigation. We have fully cooperated, and intend to continue to fully cooperate, with the
SEC.

Putative Class Action Litigation

Two putative securities class actions, styled United Food & Commercial Workers Union Local 880-Retail Food
Employers Joint Pension Fund, et al. v. Sunrise Senior Living, Inc., et al,, Case No. 1:07CV00102, and First New
York Securities, L.L.C. v. Sunrise Senjor Living, Inc., et al., Case No. 1:07CV000294, were filed in the U.S. District
Court for the District of Columbia on January 16, 2007 and February 8, 2007, respectively. Both complaints alleged
securities law violations by Sunrise and certain of its current or former officers and directors based on allegedly
improper accounting practices and stock option backdating, violations of generally accepted accounting principles,
false and misleading corporate disclosures, and insider trading of Sunrise stock. Both sought to certify a class for the
period August 4, 2005 through June 15, 2006, and both requested damages and equitable relief, including an
accounting and disgorgement. Pursuant to procedures provided by statute, two other parties, the Miami General
Employees’ & Sanitation Employees’ Retirement Trust and the Oklahoma Firefighters Pension and Retirement
System, appeared and jointly moved for consolidation of the two securities cases and appointment as the lead
plaintiffs, which the Coust ultimately approved. The cases were consolidated on July 31, 2007. Thereafter, a
stipulation was submitted pursuant to which the new putative class plaintiffs filed their consolidated amended
complaint (under the caption In re Sunrise Senior Living, Inc. Securities Litigation, Case No. 07-CV-00102-RBW)
‘on June 6, 2008, The complaint alleges violations of Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder, and names as defendants the Company, Paul J. Klaassen, Teresa M.
Klaassen, Thomas B. Newell, Tiffany L. Tomasso, Larry E. Hulse, Carl G. Adams, Barron Anschutz, and Kenneth J.
Abod. The defendants’ responses will be filed on August 11, 2008. We intend to move to dismiss the complaint at
that time and anticipate that the individual defendants will do so as well.

Putative Shareholder Derivative Litigation

On January 19, 2007, the first of three putative shareholder derivative complaints was filed in the U.S. District
Court for the District of Columbia against certain of our current and former directors and officers, and naming us as
a nominal defendant. The three cases are captioned: Brockton Contributory Retirement System v, Paul J. Klaassen,
etal, Case No. 1:07CV00143 (USDC); Catherine Molner v. Paul J. Klaassen, et al., Case No. 1:07CV00227 (USDC)
(filed 1/31/2007); Robert Anderson v. Paul I. Klaassen, et al., Case No. 1:07CV00286 (USDC) (filed 2/5/2007).
Counsel for the plaintiffs subsequently agreed among themselves to the appointment of lead plaintiffs and lead
counsel, On June 29, 2007, the lead plaintiffs filed 2 Consolidated Shareholder Derivative Complaint, again naming
us as a nominal defendaat, and naming as individual defendants Paul J. Klaassen, Teresa M. Klaassen, Ronald V.
Aprahamian, Craig R. Callen, Thomas J. Donohue, J. Douglas Holladay, William G. Little, David G. Bradley, Peter
A. Klisares, Scott F. Meadow, Robert R. Slager, Thomas B. Newell, Tiffany L. Tomasso, John F. Gaul, Bradley G.
Rush, Carl Adams, David W. Faeder, Larry E. Hulse, Timothy S. Smick, Brian C. Swinton and Christian B. A,
Slavin. The complaint alleges violations of federal securities laws and breaches of fiduciary duty by the individual
defendants, arising out of the same matters as are raised in the purported class action litigation described above. The
plaintiffs seek damages and equitable relief on behalf of Sunrise. We and the individual defendants filed separate
motions to dismiss the consolidated complaint. On the date that their oppositions to those motions were due, the
plaintiffs instead attempted to file, over the defendants’ objections, an amended consolidated complaint that does not
substantially alter the nzture of their claims. The amended consolidated complaint was eventually accepted by the
Court and deemed to have been filed on March 28, 2008. We and the individual defendants filed preliminary
motions in response to the amended consolidated complaint on June 16, 2008. The plaintiffs also have filed a motion
to lift the stay on discovery in this derivative suit. The motion has been briefed and is pending. -~ - — =~ -
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On March 6, 2007, a putative shareholder derivative complaint was filed in the Court of Chancery in the State of
Delaware against Paul J. Klaassen, Teresa M. Klaassen, Ronald V. Aprahamian, Craig R. Callen, Thomas J.
Donohue, J. Douglas Holladay, David G. Bradley, Robert R, Slager, Thomas B. Newell, Tiffany L. Tomasso, Carl
Adams, David W. Faeder, Larry E. Hulse, Timothy S. Smick, Brian C. Swinton and Christian B. A. Slavin, and
naming us as a nominal defendant. The case is captioned Peter V. Young, et al. v. Paul J. Klaassen, et al., Casa
No. 2770-N (CCNCC). The complaint alleges breaches of fiduciary duty by the individual defendants arising 6ut of
the grant of certain stock options that are the subject of the purported class action and shareholder derivative
litigation described above. The plaintiffs seek damages and equitable relief on behalf of Sunrise. We and the
individual defendants separately filed motions to dismiss this complaint on June 6, 2007 and June 13, 2007. The
plaintiffs amended their original complaint on Septerber 17, 2007. On November 2, 2007, we and the individaal
defendants moved to dismiss the amended complaint. In connection with the motions to dismiss, and at plaintiffs’
request, the Chancery Court issued an order on April 25, 2008 directing us to produce a limited set of documerjts
relating to the Special Independent Committee’s findings with respect to historic stock options grants. We produced
those documents to the plaintiffs on May 16, 2008. The defendants’ motions to dismiss have been briefed and are
pending. :

In addition, two putative shareholder derivative suits were filed in August and September 2006, which were.
subsequently dismissed. The cases were filed in the Circuit Court for Fairfax County, Virginia, captioned Nicbplas
Von Guggenberg v. Paul J. Klaassen, et al., Case No. CL 200610174 (FCCC) (filed 8/11/2006); and Catherine:
Molner v. Paul J. Klaassen, et al., Case No. CL 200611244 (FCCC) (filed 9/6/2006). The complaints were very
similar (and filed by the same attorneys), naming certain of our current and former directors and officers as
individual defendants, and naming us as a nominal defendant. The complaints both alleged breaches of fiduciagy
duty by the individual defendants, arising out of the grant of certain stock options that are the subject of the
purported class action and shareholder derivative litigation described above. The Von Guggenberg suit was
dismissed pursuant to preliminary motions filed by Sunrise (the plaintiff subsequently filed a petition for appeal with
the Supreme Court of Virginia, which was denied, thus concluding the case). The Molner suit was dismissed when
the plaintiff filed an uncontested notice of non-suit (permitted by right under Virginia law), after the Company had
filed preliminary motions making the same arguments that resulted in the dismissal of the Von Guggenberg sui. As
described above, the plaintiff in Molner later refiled suit in the U.S. District Court for the District of Columbia.

Resolved Litigation

Pursuant to an agreement reached between the parties in May 2008, the Company settled with no zdmission of
fault by either party the previously disclosed litigation filed by Bradley B. Rush, the Company’s former chief *
financial officer, in connection with the termination of his employment. As previously disclosed, on April 23, 3007,
Mr. Rush was suspended with pay. The action was taken by the board of directors following a briefing of the
independent directors by WilmerHale, independent counsel to the Special Independent Committee. The Board
concluded, among other things, that certain actions taken by Mr. Rush were not consistent with the document
retention directives issued by the Company. These actions consisted of Mr. Rush’s deletion of all active electropic
files in his user account on one of his Company-issued laptops. Mr. Rush’s employment thereafter was terminated
for cause on May 2, 2007. Mr. Rush’s lawsuit asserted that his termination was part of an alleged campaign of
retaliation against him for purportedly uncovermg and seeking to address accounting irregularities, and it contendcd
that his termination was not for “cause” under the Company’s Long Term Incentive Cash Bonus Plan and the tgrms
of prior awards made to him of certain stock options and shares of restricted stock, to which he claimed entitlerhent
notwithstanding his termination. Mr. Rush asserted five breach of contract claims involving a bonus, restricted stock
and stock options. Mr. Rush also asserted a claim for defamation arising out of comments attributed to us
concerning the circumstances of his earlier suspension of employment.

Other Pending Lawsuits and Claims

In addition to the lawsuits and litigation matters described above, we are involved in various lawsuits and clgims
arising in the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, although the outcomes of these other sgits
and claims are uncertain, in the aggregate they are not expected to have a material adverse effect on our business,
ﬁnanc:lal condition, and rcsults of operations.
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19. Related-Party Transactions
Sunrise Senior Living Real Estate Investment Trust

In December 2004, we closed the initial public offering of Sunrise REIT, an independent entity we established in
Canada, Sunrise REIT was formed to acquire, own and invest in income producing senior living communities i
Canada and the United States,

Concurrent with the closing of its initial public offering, Sunrise REIT issued C$25.0 million (U.S. $20.8 million
at December 31, 2004) principal amount of subordinated convertible debentures to us, convertible at the rate of
C$11.00 per unit. We held a minority interest in one of Sunrise REIT s subsidiaries and held the convertible
debentures until November 2003, but did not own any commeon shares of Sunrise REIT. We entered into a 30-year
strategic alliance agreement that gave us the right of first opportunity to manage all Sunrise REIT communities and
Sunrise REIT had a right of first offer to consider all development and acquisition opportunities sourced by us in
Canada. Pursuant to this right of first offer, we and Sunrise REIT entered into fixed price acquisition agreements
with respect to seven development communities at December 31, 2005, In addition, we had the right to appoint two
of the eight trustees that oversaw the governance, investment guidelines, and operating policies of Sunrise REIT.

The proceeds from the offering and placemnent of the debentures were used by Sunrise REIT to acquire interests
in 23 senior living commmnities from us and our ventures, eight of which are in Canada and 15 of which are in the
United States. Three of these communities were acquired directly from us for an aggregate purchase price of
approximately $40.0 million and 20 were acquired from ventures in which we participated for an aggregate purchase
price of approximately $373.0 million. With respect to the three Sunrise consolidated communities, we realized
“Gain on sale and development of real estate and equity interests” of $2.2 million in 2004, and deferred gain of
$4.1 million, which was recognized in the fourth guarter of 2006. We contributed our interest in the 15
U.S. communities to an affiliate of Sunrise REIT in exchange for a 15% ownership interest in that entity. Sunrise
REIT also acquired an 8()% interest in a one of our communities that was in lease-up in Canada for a purchase price
of approximately $12.0 million, with us retaining a 20% interest. We also recognized $2.1 million of “Professiconal
fees from development, marketing and other” revenue in 2004 for securing debt on behalf of Sunrise REIT. We had-
seven wholly owned communities under construction at December 31, 2005, of which two were sold to Sunrise
REIT in 2006, and five wholly owned communities under construction at December 31, 2006, which were to be sold
to Sunrise REIT in 2007,

In April 2007, Ventas, Inc., a large heaithcare REIT, acquired Sunrise REIT, the owner of 77 Sunrise
communities. We have an ownership interest in 56 of these communities. The management contracts for these
communities did not change.

We recognized the following in our consolidated statements of operations related to Sunrise REIT only for the
period for which they were a related party (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005

MANAEEMENE FBES .....ooviviceveeeeeceteee e setess st esensssse bt ensaes s s sensnsnesnsasenanerenennsennes B 3,918 § 16,448 § 11,443
Reimbursed contract services .. SRRSO RUURURRRRRY & JV. Y o 130,455 70,525
Gain on sale and development ofrea] estate e 8,854 43,223 575
Interest income received from Suarise REIT convertlble debentures — — 1,028
Interest incurred on borrowings from Sunrise REIT .......oc.cooviieiminneisenr s eneseereseenes 414 3,312 2,611
Sunrise’s share of earnings and return on investment in unconsolidated communities.... 180 4326 718

Sunrise Senior Living Foundation

Sunrise Senior Living Foundation (“SSLF™) is an independent, not-for-profit organization whose purpose is to
operate schools and day care facilities, provide low and moderate income assisted living housing and own and
operate a corporate conference center. Paul and Teresa Klaassen, our Chief Executive Officer and director and Chief
Cultural Officer and director, respectively, are the primary contributors to, and serve on the board of directors and
~ serve as officers of, SSLF. One or both of them also serve as directors and as officers of various SSLF subsidiaries.
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Certain other of our employees also serve as directors and/or officers of SSLF and its subsidiaries. Since

November 2006, the Klaassens’ daughter has been the Director of SSLF. She was previously employed by SSLF
from June 2005 to July 2006. Since October 2007, the Klaassens’ son-in-law has also been employed by SSLF. For
many years, we provided administrative services to SSLF, including payroll administration and accounts payahle
processing. We also provided an accountant who was engaged full-time in providing accounting services to SSLF,
including the schools. SSLF paid Sunrise $49,000 in 2006 and $84,000 in 2005 for the provision of these serviges.
We estimate that the aggregate cost of providing these services to SSLF totaled approximately $52,000 and $81,000
for 2006 and 2005, respectively. In August 2006, SSLF hired an outside accounting firm to provide tae accounting
and administrative services previously provided by us. As a result, we no longer provide any significant
administrative services to SSLF. Beginning January 2007, one of our employees became the full-time director of the
schools operated by a subsidiary of SSLF, while continuing to provide certain services to us. Through October 2007,
we continued to pay the salary and benefits of this former employee. In March 2008, SSLF reimbursed us
approximately $68,000, representing the portion of the individual’s salary and benefits attributable to serving as the
director of the schools.

Prior to April 2005, we managed the corporate conference center owned by SSLF (the “Conference Facility™) and
leased the employees who worked at the Conference Facility under an informal arrangement. Effective April 2805,
we entered into a contract with the SSLF subsidiary that currently owns the property to manage the Conference
Facility. Under the contract, we receive a discount when renting the Conference Facility for manageraent, staffior
corporate events, at an amount to be agreed upon, and priority scheduling for use of the Conference Facility, arid are
to be paid monthly a property management fee of 1% of gross revenues for the immediately preceding month, which
we estimate to be our cost of managing this property. The costs of any of our employees working on the propesty are
also to be paid, in addition to the 1% property management fee. In addition, we agreed, if Conference: Facility
expenses exceed gross receipts, determined monthly, to make non-interest bearing loans in an amount needed tp pay
Conference Facility expenses, up to a total amount of $75,000 per 12-month period. Any such loan is required to be
repaid to the extent gross receipts exceed Conference Facility expenses in any subsequent months. There were no
loans made by us under this contract provision in 2006 or 2007, Either party may terminate the management
agreement upon 60 days’ notice. Salary and benefits for our employees who manage the Conference Facility, which
are reimbursed by SSLF, totaled approximately $0.3 million in both 2007 and 2006 and $0.2 million in 2005: In
2007 and 2006, we earned $6,000 in management fees. We rent the conference center for management, staff and
corporate events and paid approximately $0.1 million in 2007, $0.2 million in 2006 and $0.3 million in 2005 to
SSLF. The Trinity Forum, a faith-based leadership forum of which Mr. Klaassen is the past chairmar and is
currently a trustee, operates a leadership academy on a portion of the site on which the Conference Facility is
located. The Trinity Forum does not pay rent for this space, but leadership academy fellows who reside on the
property provide volunteer services at the Conference Facility.

SSLF’s stand-alone day care center, which provides day care services for our employees and non-Sunrise
employees, is located in the same building complex as our corporate headquarters. The day care center subleases
space from us under a sublease that commenced in April 2004 and expires September 30, 2013. The sublease
payments, which equal the payments we are required to make under our lease with our landiord for this space, are
required to be paid monthly and are subject to increase as provided in the sublease. SSLF paid Sunrise
approximately $90,000, $88,000 and $86,000 in sublease payments in 2007, 2006 and 20035, respectively, under the
April 2004 sublease. In January 2007, we leased additional space from our landlord and in February 2007 we and
the day care center modified the terms of the day care center’s sublease to include this additional space. Rent for the
additional space, payable beginning July 19, 2007, is $8,272 per month (subject to increase as provided in the
sublease), which equals the payments we are required to make under our lease with our landlord for this additienal
space. Rent for the additional space for the period July 19, 2007 to December 2007 totaling approximately $45000
was paid in December 2007, .

A subsidiary of SSLF formed a limited lability company (“LLC"} in 2001 to develop and construct an assisted
living community and an adult day care center for low to moderate-income seniors on property owned by Fairfax
County, Virginia, In 2004, the LLC agreed to construct the project for a fixed fee price of $11.2 million to be paid
by Fairfax County, Virginia upon completion of the project ($11.6 million, as adjusted plus approximately
$0.3 million under a Pre-Opening Services and Management Agreement). In 2004, the LLC, we and Fairfax County
entered into an agreement pursuant to which we agreed to develop and manage the project for a fee of up to
$0.2 million. In addition, we and Fairfax County entered into a Pre-Opening Services and Management Agreement
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for the management of the project upon opening. In February 2005, the SSLF subsidiary assigned its membership
interests in the LLC to us and transferred additional development costs of approximately $0.9 million to us, These
development costs, along with development costs of $0.9 mitlion funded by us in 2004, are to be repaid to us as part
of the fixed fee price to te received from Fairfax County upon completion of the community. Total construction
costs. for the project were $11.3 million. We have received $10.1 million through December 31, 2007 and are
pursuing from Fairfax County the remaining $1.8 miilion outstanding, as well as the $0.3 million due under the Pre-
Opening Services and Management Agreement.

At December 31, 2004, we had outstanding receivabies from SSLF and its affiliates of $3.4 million for operating
expenses and development expenses related to the Fairfax County project. SSLF was not charged interest on these
outstanding receivables. At December 31, 2004, we had outstanding payables to SSLF of $1.2 million relating to
advances by a subsidiary of SSLF to a venture of ours prior to 2002, which subsidiary previously had provided
assisted living services ar. certain of our venture facilities located in Illinois. We were not charged interest on these
outstanding payables. These net receivables (receivables less payables) due to us at December 31, 2004, as adjusted
to give effect to our acquisition of the Fairfax County project subsequent to year-end, totaling approximately
$0.5 million, were paid in full by SSLF in April 2005. In addition, during the latter part of 2005 and in 2006, we
made non-interest bearing advances of working capital to SSLF totaling approximately $0.6 million and $0.2 million,
respectively. These amounts were repaid by SSLF in October/November 2005 and August 2006, respectively. In
addition, in August 2006, SSLF paid us approximately $52,000, representing net working capital advances made to
SSLF in prior years. In 2005, we made a separate $10,000 advance which was repaid in July 2005.

Fairfax Community Ground Lease

We lease the real property on which our Fairfax, Virginia community is located from Paul and Teresa Klaassen
pursuant to a 99-year greund lease entered into in June 1986, as amended in August 2003. Rent expense under this
lease is approximately $0.2 million annually.

Corporate Use of Residence

In June 1994, the Klazssens transferred to us property which included a residence and a Sunrise community in
connection with a financing transaction. In connection with the transfer of the property, we agreed to lease back the
residence to the Klaassens under a 99-year ground lease. The rent was $1,00 per month. Under the lease, the
Klaassens were responsible for repairs, real estate taxes, utilities and property insurance for the residence. For
approximately the past 12 years, the Klaassens have permitted the residence to be used by us for business purposes,
including holding meetings and housing out of town employees. In connection with its use of the residence, we have
paid the real estate taxes, utilities and insurance for the property and other expenses associated with the business use
of the property, including property maintenance and management services. We paid expenses totaling approximatety
$0.1 million annually. For several years ending August/September 2006, the Klaassens’ son lived at the guest house
on the property. In December 2007, the Klaassens terminated their 99-year ground lease for no consideration.

Purchase of Condominium Unit

In January 2006, Mr, Klaassen entered into a purchase agreement with a joint venture in which we own a 30%
equity interest and with which we have entered into a management services agreement. Pursuant to the purchase
agreement, Mr, Klaassen has agreed to purchase for his parents a residential condominium unit at the Fox Hill
condominium project that the joint venture is currently developing. The purchase price of the condominium is
approximately $1.4 million. In June 2007, the purchase agreement was modified to reflect certain custom amenities
upgrades to the unit for an aggregate price of approximately $0.1 million.

Service Evaluators Incorporated

Service Evaluators Incorporated (“SEI™) is a for-profit company which provides independent sales and marketing
analysis, commonly called “mystery shopping” services, for the restaurant, real estate and senior living industries in
the United States, Canada and United Kingdom. Janine [. K. Connell and her husband, Duncan S. D. Connell, are
the owners and President and Executive Vice President of SEI, respectively. Ms. Connell and Mr Conncll are the

—sister and brother-in-law of Mr. Klaassen and Ms. Connell is the sister-in-law of Ms. Klaassen:
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For approximately 13 years, we have contracted with SEI to provide mystery shopping services for us. These
services have included on-site visits at Sunrise communities, on-site visits to direct area competitors of Sunrise
communities, telephonic inquiries, narrative reports of the on-site visits, direct comparison analysis and telephene
calls. In 2005, we paid-SEI approximately $0.7 million for approximately 380 communities. We paid approximiately
$9.7 million to SEI in 2006 for approximately 415 communities and approximately $0.5 million in 2007 for
approximately 435 communities. The SEI contract is terminable upon 12 months’ notice, In August 2007, we gave
SEI written notice of the termination of SEI's contract, effective August 2008. Through August 2008, we expest to
pay SEI approximately $0.4 million under SEI’s contract.

Greystone Earnout Payments

In May 2005, we acquired Greystone. Greystone’s founder, Michael B. Lanahan, was appointed chairman of our
Greystone subsidiary in connection with the acquisition and he currently serves as one of our executive officers.
Pursuant to the terms of the Purchase Agreement, we paid $45.0 million in cash, plus approximately $1.0 millipn in
transaction costs, to acquire all of the outstanding securities of Greystone. We also agreed to pay up to an addiftonal
$7.5 million in purchase price if Greystone met certain performance milestones in 2005, 2006 and 2007. The first
earnout payment was $5.0 million based on 2005 and 2006 results and was paid in April 2007. Mr. Lanahan’s share
of such eamnout payment as a former owner of Greystone was approximately $1.5 million. The rematning :
$2.5 million eamout is based on Greystone’s 2007 results, and was paid in April 2008. Mr. Lanahan’s share of that
payment was approximately $0.3 million.

Unconsolidated Ventures

Prior to 2005, we entered into five unconsolidated ventures with a third party that provided equity to develop
cormmunities in the United States, United Kingdom and Canada. One of our then incumbent directors, Craig Callen,
was a managing director of Credit Suisse First Boston LLC (“CSFB”) through April 2004, CSFB, through funds
sponsored by an affiliate or subsidiary, had from time to time invested in the ventures. We recognized $1.5 million
in management and professional services revenue in 2005 from these ventures. Neither we nor CSFB have an
ownership interest in any of these five ventures at December 31, 2006 or since. :

Mir. Callen held, through participation in a diversified portfolio of CSFB related investments, a 1.1375%
membership interest in one of the joint ventures. In connection with the formation of Sunrise REIT in
December 2004, all of the interests in this venture were acquired by us and immediately contributed o Sunrise REIT.
Mr. Callen’s interest was repurchased as part of this transaction for approximately $0.1 million. Mr. Callen resigned
as a director in May 2008.

Aetna Healthcare

Mr, Callen served as senior vice president, strategic planning and business development at Aetna, Inc. from May -
2004 through November 9, 2007 and as one of our directors until his resignation on May 22, 2008. Aetna Healthcare,
a subsidiary of Aetna, Inc., is Sunrise’s health plan administrator, dental plan administrator, health benefit stop+loss
insurance carrier and long-term care insurance provider. Sunrise had selected Aetna as its health plan administzator
prior to Mr, Callen joining Aetna. The payments made by Sunrise to Aetna Healthcare totaled $8.0 million,
$9.0 million and $9.3 million for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Purchase of Aircraft Interest by Mr. Klaassen

In July 2008, Mr. Klaassen purchased from us one of the four fractional interests in private aircrafis owned by us.
The purchase price for such interest was approximately $0.3 million, which represents the current market value of
the interest as furnished to us by independent appraisers. The purchase of the fractional interest was approved by the
Audit Committee of our Beard of Directors.
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20. Employee Benefit Flans
401k Plan

We have a 401(k) Plan (“the Plan”) covering all eligible employees. Under the Plan, eligible employees may
make pre-tax contributioas up to 100% of the IRS limits. The Plan provides an employer match dependent upon
compensation levels and years of service. The Plan does not provide for discretionary matching contributions.
Matching contributions were $1.6 million, $2.5 million and $1.4 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Sunrise Executive Deferred Compensation Plans

We have an executive deferred compensation plan (“the Executive Plan”) for employees who meet certain
eligibility criteria. Under the Plan, eligible employees may make pre-tax contributions in amounts up to 25% of base
compensation and 100% of bonuses. We may make discretionary matching contributions to the Executive Plan.
Employees vest in the matching employer contributions, and interest earned on such contributions, at a date
determined by the Benefit Plan Committee. Matching contributions were $0.4 million, $0.3 million and $0.4 million
in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Greystone adopted an executive deferred compensation plan on January 1, 2007 for employees of Greystone who
meet certain eligibility criteria. Employees may make pre-tax contributions up to 25% of base salary. Greystone may
make discretionary matching contributions. Employees vest in the employer matching contributions and interest on
the match date determined by the administrator. Greystone’s matching contribution was $0.2 million in 2007.

Chief Executive Officer Deferred Compensation Plan

Pursuant to Mr. Klaassen’s employment agreement, we are required to make contributions of $150,000 per year
for 12 years, beginning on September 12, 2000 into a non-qualified deferred compensation account. At the end of
the 12-year period, any net gains accrued or realized from the investment of the amounts contributed by us are
payable to Mr, Klaassen and we will receive any remaining amounts. At December 31, 2007, we have contributed
an aggregate of $0.9 million into this plan, leaving an aggregate amount of $0.9 million to be contributed. We made
contributions for 2006 and 2007 in the second quarter of 2008 to bring the plan up to date.

21. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following disclosures of estimated fair value were determined by management using available market
information and valuation methodologies. Considerable judgment is necessary to interpret market data and develop
estimated fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts we
could realize on disposition of the financial instruments. The use of different market assumptions or estimation
methodologies could have an effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

Cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses, equity investments and other
current assets and liabilities are carried at amounts which reascnably approximate their fair values.

Fixed rate notes receivable with an aggregate carrying value of $0.6 million and $21.8 million have an estimated
aggregate fair value of $0.5 million and $21.7 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Fixed rate debt with an aggregate carrying value of $9.1 million and $55.9 million has an estimated aggregate fair
value of $9.2 million and $53.7 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Interest rates currently
available to us for issuance of debt with similar terms and remaining maturities are used to estimate the fair value of
fixed rate debt. The estimated fair value of variable rate debt approximates its carrying value of $244.8 million and
$134.8 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. :

Disclosure about fair value of financial instruments is based on pertinent information available to management at
December 31, 2007 and 2006. Although management is not aware of any factors that would significantly affect the
reasonable fair value ardounts, these amounts have not been comprehensively revalued for purposes of these
financial statements and current estimates of fair value may differ from the amounts presented herein.
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22. Information about Sunrise’s Segments

We have four operating segments for which operating results are regularly reviewed by key decision makers,
domestic operations, international operations (including Canada), Greystone and Trinity. We acquired Trinity in
September 2006, as discussed in Note 6. The domestic, Greystone and international segments develop, acquire,
dispose and manage senior living communities. Hospice care provides palliative care and support services to

terminally ill patients and their families.

Segment results are as follows (in thousands):

For the Year Ended and as of December 31, 20@

Domestic Greystone International _ Trinity . Total

Operating revenues.......evvvveirvveriemievrnmnemnens 3 1,491,373 8 16471 8 77,555 $ 67,151 % 1 ,652,550
Interest income ., 8,144 208 1,162 380 9,894
Interest expcnse 5,521 — 1,123 3 6,647
Sunrise’s share of eammgs and rerum on

investment in unconsolidated communities......... 31,812 1,600 75,535 _ 108,947
Depreciation and amortization... 47,843 4.068 886 2,483 55,280
(Loss) income before taxes.. v (13,433) {19,693) 23,984 (70,392) (79,534)
Investments in u.nconsohdated commumtles ..... .. 80,423 — 16,750 — 97.173
GOOdWIlL ... 121,828 39,025 — 8,883 169,736
SegmMEnt AS5E15....o.cceeeireere et 1,476,420 61,312 247,499 13,366 1,798,597
Expenditures for long-lived assets..........cccecenennns 185,924 4,680 49,047 658 240,309
Deferred gains on the sale of real estate and

deferred revenues. ... ve e 19,793 54,574 — — 74,367

For the Year Ended and as of December 31, 2006 (Restated)

Domestic Greystone International Trinity ;Total

Operating revenuUeS .......oveceveesersrnrresns evrersierr i $§ 1,575,108 § 16,920 § 38,344 $ 20,209 § 4,651,081
. Interest income .. 8,799 194 483 101 9,577

Interest cxpcnse 5,732 . — 462 10 6,204
Sunrise’s share of earmngs (losses) and remm

on investment in unconsolidated communities... 54,950 — {11,248) o— . 43,702
Depreciation and amortization.........c.c.ccoeveeneeenae 44115 3,462 240 831 < 48,648
Income (Ioss) before taxes.. I 113,619 (14,490) (66,768) 135 32,496
Investments in unconsolidatcd communmcs ........ 93,327 — 10,945 — 104,272
GoodWill ..o e 121,827 36,525 — 59,663 218,015
SEZMENL ASSLLS,.1veuereeueeerreeeeeeeeaceaseaaearaeereseeneagean 1,571,769 55,206 138,091 83,235 1,848.301
Expenditures for long-lived assets...........oooeeevereen, 137,396 714 49,120 1,425 . 188,655
Deferred gains on the sale of real estate and

deferred revenue..........cocverireercvn e renr s

OPEratiRg TEVENUES ....cvivneeeni oo e s remeens
INtErest IMOOMME ...cveieeieeee et et
Interest BXPENSE ..o it
Sunrise’s share of earnings (losses) and return on

investment in unconsolidated communities................
Depreciation and amortization......c..coeeecvenecsicarescen.
Income (loss} before taxes......c.coencimnncnninmenenn,
Investments in unconsolidated communities................
GOoodWill.....c..oeee s
SEGIMENL BIBELS .ocuvvenremicercere e ce e rmree s n e o
Expenditures for long-lived assets........ceevvniniennne,
Deferred gains on the sale of real estate and

deferred rEvEnUE ...t e,

23,811 28,147 — — 51,958

For the Year Ended and as of December 31, 2005 %1 estated)
Domestic Greystone  International Tot

$ 1,472,836 $ 10,413 $ 277713 8§ 1,51{,022

4,855 69 1307 - §231
9,368 — 2,514 11,882
31,919 - (18,447) 13,472
40,791 1,992 198 42,981
149,543 (8,180) (6,143) 135,220
52,962 150 10,228 63,340
124,256 29,072 — 153,328
1,437,365 67,076 83,344 1,587,785
112,153 1,514 19,190 132,857
15,192 13,034 — 28,226
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As Greystone’s development contracts are multiple element arrangements and there is not sufficient objective and
reliable evidence of the fair value of undelivered elements at each billing milestone, we defer revenue recognition
until the completion of the development contract. However, development costs are expensed as incurred, which
results in a net loss for the segment. In 2007, 2006 and 2003, we billed and collected $28.2 million, $21.6 million
and $14.4 million, respe:tively, of development fees of which $26.4 million, $15.1 million and $13.0 million,
respectively, was deferred and will be recognized when the contract is completed.

During 2007, our first UK venture in which we have a 20% equity interest sold seven communities to a venture in
which we have a 10% interest. Primarily as a result of the gains on these asset sales recorded in the ventures, we
recorded equity in earnings in 2007 of approximately $75.5 million. When our UK and Germany ventures were
formed, we established a bonus pool in respect to each venture for the benefit of employees and others responsible
for the success of these ventures. At that time, we agreed with our partner that after certain return thresholds were
met, we would each reduce our percentage interests in venture distributions with such excess to be used to fund
these bonus pools. During 2007, we recorded bonus expense of $27.8 million in respect of the bonus pool relating to
the UK venture. These-tonus amounts are funded from capital events and the cash is retained by us in restricted cash
accounts. As of Decemter 31, 2007, approximately $18.0 million of this amount was included in restricted cash.
Under this bonus arrangement, no bonuses are payable until we receive distributions at [east equal to certain capital
contributions and loans made by us to the UK and Germany ventures. We currently expect this bonus distribution
limitation will be satisfizd in late 2008, at which time bonus payments would become payable.

In 2007 and 2006, the: resulis in the international segment was also impacted by a $16.0 million and $50.0 million,
respectively, charge tha: we recorded in relation to forecasted fundings under our German guarantees, which we
believe will not be repaid to us.

We recorded $2.3 million, net, in exchange losses in 2007 ($7.3 million in gains related to the Canadian dollar
and $9.6 million in losses related to the Euro and British pound) related to the weakened U.S, dollar,

During 2007, we generated 12.3%, 12.4% and 18.2% of revenue from Ventas, a private capital partner and HCP,
“respectively, for senior living communities which we manage. During 2006, we generated approximately16.3% of-
total operating revenues from HCP for senior living communities which we manage. No other owners represented

more than 10% of total operating revenues in 2006 or 2005.

During 2007, we recorded an impairment charge of $7.6 million (domestic segment) related to two communities
acquired in 1999 and 2006. Alsc in 2007, we recorded an impairment charge of $56.7 million related to Trinity’s
goodwill and intangible assets. During 2006 we recorded an impairment charge of $15.7 million related to seven
small senior living communities, which were opened between 1996 and 1999.

23. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses ccnsist of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

3007 2006
Accounts payable and accrued eXpenses .. ......ovecererercrmainrercrees B 71,240 $ 65,460
Accrued salaries and bonuses ... 64,441 47346
Accrued employee health and other benefits...............coonniinin 67,096 64,487
Accrued legal, audit and professional fees .......ocovecevcivvennces 37,555 9,056
Other accrued BXPEMSES ...cccorvrereinierieimierine e smess e reesssenis 35,030 29,738

§ 275362  § 210087
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24. Subsequent Events
Bank Credit Facility

. There were $100.0 miilion of cash advances and $71.7 million of letters of credit outstanding under our Bank
Credit Facility at December 31, 2007. On January 31, February 19, March 13, and July 23, 2008, we entered irto
. further amendments to the Bank Credit Facility. These amendments, among other things:

» modified to August 20, 2008 the delivery date for the unaudited financial statements for the quarter ending
March 31, 2008;

» modified to September 10, 2008 the delivery date for the unaudited financial statements for the quarter
ending June 30, 2008;

» temporarily (in February 2008) and then permanently (in July 2008) reduced the maximum principal amount
available under the Bank Credit Facility to $160.0 million; and

= waived compliance with financial covenants in the Bank Credit Facility for the year ended December 31,
2007 and for the fiscal quarters ended March 31, 2008 and June 30, 2008, and waived compliance with the
leverage ratio and fixed charge coverage ratio covenants for the fiscal quarter ending September 30, 20(8.

In addition, pursuant to the July 2008 amendment, until such time as we have delivered evidence satisfactory to
the administrative agent that we have timely filed our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2008and
that we are in compliance with all financial covenants in the Bank Credit Facility, including the leverage ratio gnd
fixed charge coverage ratio, for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2008, and provided we are not then otherwise
in default under the Bank Credit Facility:

*  we must maintain liquidity of not less than $50.0 million, composed of availability under the Bank Credit

-~ Facility plus upto not more than $50.0 million in unrestricted cash and cash equivalents (tested as of thgend - -

of each calendar month), and any unrestricted cash and cash equivalents in excess of $50.0 miilion mustbe
used to pay down the outstanding borrowings under the Bank Credit Facility;

= . we are generally prohibited from declaring or making directly or indirectly any payment in the form of a
stock repurchase or payment of a cash dividend or from incurring any obligation to do so; and

» the borrowing rate in US dollars, which was increased effective as of February 1, 2008, wil! remain LIBOR
plus 2.75% or the Base Rate (the higher of the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.50% and Prime) plus 1.25%
{through the end of the then-current interest period).

We do not expect to be in compliance with the leverage ratio and fixed charge coverage ratio for the quarter
ending September 30, 2008 and no assurance can be given that we will be in compliance with these financial
covenants for the quarter ending December 31, 2008. From and after the July 2008 amendment, we will continue to
owe and pay fees on the unused amount available under the Bank Credit Facility as if the maximum outstanding
amount was $160.0 million. Prior to the July 2008 amendment, fees on the unused amount were based. on a
$250.0 million outstanding maximum amount. We paid the lenders an aggregate fee of approximately $1.9 million
for entering into these 2008 amendments,

As of June 30, 2008, we had outstanding borrowings of $75.0 million, outstanding leiters of credit of
$26.3 million and borrowing availability of approximately $58.7 million under the Bank Credit Facility. Taking into
account the new liquidity covenants included in the July 2008 amendment to the Bank Credit Facility described
above, we believe this availability, together with unresiricted cash balances of approximately $75.0 million at
June 30, 2008, will be sufficient to support our operations over the next twelve months,
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New Mortgage Debt

On May 7, 2008, 16 wholly-owned subsidiaries (the “Borrowers”) of Sunrise incurred mortgage indebtedness in
the aggregate principal amount of approximately $106.7 million from Capmark Bank (“Lender”) as lender and
servicer pursuant to 16 separate cross-collateralized, cross-defaulted mortgage loans (collectively, the “mortgage
loans™). Shortly after the closing, the Lender assigned the mortgage loans to Fannie Mae. The mortgage loans bear
interest at a variable rate equal to the “Discount” (which is the difference between the loan amount and the price at
which Fannie Mag is abl: to sell its three-month rolling discount mortgage backed securities) plus 2.27% per annum,
require monthly principal payments based on a 30-year amortization schedule (using an interest rate of 5.92%) and
mature on June 1, 2013,

In connection with the mortgage loans, we entered into interest rate protection agreements that provide for
payments to us in the event the LIBOR rate exceeds 5.6145%, pursuant to an interest rate cap purchased on May 7,
2008 by each Borrower from SMBC Derivative Products Limited. The LIBOR rate approximates, but is not exactly
equal to, the “Discount” rate that is used in determining the interest rate on the mortgage loans; consequently, in the
event the “Discount” rate exceeds the LIBOR rate, payments under the interest rate cap may not afford the
Borrowers complete interest rate protection, The Borrowers purchased the rate cap for an initial period of three years
for a cost of $0.3 million (including fees) and have placed in escrow the amount of $0.7 million to purchase
additional interest rate czps to cover years four and five of the mortgage loans which amount will be returned to us
in the event the mortgage loans are prepaid prior to the end of the third loan year.

Each mortgage loan is secured by a senior housing facility owned by the applicable Borrower (which facility also
secures the other 15 mor:gage loans as well), as well as the interest rate cap described above. In addition, our
management agreement with respect to each of the facilities is subordinate to the mortgage loan encumbering such
facility. In connection with the mortgage loans, we received net proceeds of approximately $103.1 million (after
payment of lender fees, third party costs, escrows and other amounts), of which $53.0 million was used to pay down
amounts outstanding under our Bank Credit Facility,

The mortgage loans may not be prepaid before May 8, 2009. Thereafter, each mortgage loan is prepayable at the
end of each 3-month terra of the then-current Fannie Mae discount mortgage backed security, upon payment by us
of a pre-payment fee in the amount of 1% of the then-outstanding principal amount of the mortgage loan being
prepaid (except during the last three months of the loan term when no prepayment premium is payable). In
connection with a partial prepayment, the applicable senior housing facility securing the mortgage loan being
prepaid may be released only upon the satisfaction of certain conditions, including

(i) the remaining facilities have a 1.4 debt service coverage ratio (during the first 3 years of the loan term) or
a 1.45 debt service zoverage ratio (during the final 2 years of the loan term), in either case based on 12-months
trailing net operating income and a fixed rate of interest of 5.92% per annum,

(ii) not more than 30% of the then-outstanding principal balance (after prepayment) is secured by senior
housing facilities located in a single state, and

(iii) not more than 65% of the then-outstanding principal balance (after prepayment) is secured by senior
housing facilities located in the states of Indiana, Michigan and Ohio.

In addition, one or mere facilities may be sold and the individual mortgage loan assumed by the buyer so long as
the foregoing (i), (ii) and (iii) are satisfied and the assumed mortgage loan has a 1.40 debt service coverage ratio (if
the assumed mortgage loan is fixed rate) or a minimum debt service coverage determined by Lender (if the assumed
mortgage loan is variable rate) and the buyer is acceptable to the Lender.

Each Borrower has the right to convert the interest rate on its mortgage loan to a fixed rate of interest equal to a
then-effective Fannie Mue interest rate plus 1.2% per annum, subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions,
including that the applicable facility has sufficient net operating income, as determined in accordance with Fannie
Mae’s then applicable uriderwriting standards. In the event of a conversion, the converted note is prepayable only
upon payment of the greater of 1% of the outstanding principal balance and the payment of a yield maintenance
premiurm ot, during the 4th through 6th month prior to the maturity date, upon payment of a prepayment premium of
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1% of the outstanding principal batance. A conversion may result in an extension of the maturity date of the
mortgage loan being converted depending, among other things, on the reference rate used to determine the fixed rate.

The mortgage loans will become immediately due and payable, and the Lender will be entitled to interest on the
unpaid principal sum at an increased rate, if any required payment is not paid on or prior to the date vshen due ér on
the happening of any other event of default including a misrepresentation by the applicable Borrower or the faifure
of the applicable Borrower to comply with the covenants contained in the mortgage loan documents. The mortgage
loans contain various usual and customary covenants, inciuding restrictions on transfers of the facilities and
restrictions on transfers of direct or indirect interests in the Borrowers, and obligations regarding the payment df real
property taxes, the maintenance of insurance, compliance with laws, maintenance of licenses in effect, use of the
facilities only as permitted by the mortgage loan documents, entering into leases and occupancy agrezments in
accordance with the mortgage loan documents and preparation and delivery to Lender of the reports required by the
mortgage loan documents. The mortgage loans are non-recourse to the Borrowers and us, but are subject to usual
and customary exceptions to non-recourse liability for damage suffered by Lender for certain acts, including
misapplication of rents, security deposits, insurance proceeds and condemnation awards, faiture to ccmply with

- obligations relating to delivery of books, records and financial and other reports of Borrower, and fraud or matérial

misrepresentation. The mortgage loans are full recourse to the Borrower and us in the event of a Borrower’s
acquisition of any property or operation of any business not permitted by the terms of the applicable mortgage ¢r in
the event of a violation of the transfer restrictions contained in the mortgages. During the term of the mortgagd loans,
we are required to maintain at all times (i) a net worth of not less than $100.0 million and (ii) cash and cash
equivalents of not less than $25.0 million.

Senior Living Condominium Developments

As indicated above, in the first quarter of 2008, we suspended the development of al! but one of our condominium
projects and as a result, we expect to record pre-tax charges totaling approximately $22.0 million in the first quarter
of 2008.

‘Legal and Accounting Fees Related t0 Accounting Review, Special Independent Committee Inquiry and
Related Matters :

As indicated above, during the six months ended June 30, 2008, we expect to incur legal and accounting fees of
approximately $22.6 miilion related to the accounting review, the Special Independent Committee inquiry, the SEC
Investigation and responding to various shareholder actions.

Real Estate Gains

During the first quarter of 2008, we completed the recapitalization of a venture with two underlying properties.
As a result of this recapitalization, guarantees that were requiring us to use the profit-sharing method of accounting
for our previous sale of real estate in 2004 were released and we expect to record a pre-tax gain on sale of
approximately $6.7 million and received cash of approximately $5.4 million.
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25. Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of quarterly results of operations for the fiscal quarter (in thousands, except per share
amounts):

01 Q2 03 04(2) Total

2007
OPETAting FEVENUE, ......ov.eereeereereeerieeesieaneresernnenneeenennees 3 395,887 $ 408,018 § 429,512 § 419,133 § 1,652,550
Net INCOME (0SS} ...covararrarrrrercrrrenrsmsrmsesensesrsrerasereseeseenss 7,480 7,992 38,230  (123,977) (70,275)
Basic net income (loss) prer common share ......co.veevcvene. $ 0.15 § 0.16 § 077 % (2.48) § (1.41)
Diluted net income {loss) per common share ................... 0.15 0.15 0.74 (2.48) (141)
2006 (as restated)
Operating revenue.. cererrerseresenerasreneesereeseeseerennnenens B 377,341 $ 464717 § 379,377 § 429,646 § 1,651,081
Net income (loss) . et 901 47,011 15,120 (47,808) 15,284
Basic net income (loss) per Y 002 % 095 % 030 % (0.96) $ 0.31
Diluted net income (loss) per common share 0.02 0.91 0.29 (0.96) 0.30
2006 {as prevmusly repurted)
Opcratmg revenue.. rerereeeee e B 376,671 § 464,047 § 378,706 § 428,975 § 1,648,399
Net income (loss)................. 2,320 48,685 16,304 (46,952) 20,357
Basic net income (Ioss) per coOmmon Share ............... $ 0.05 § 098 % 033 % 094 % 0.42
Diluted net income (loss) per common SHATE oo 0.05 0.95 0.32 (0.94) 0.40
(1) The sum of per share amounts for the quarters may not equal the per share amount for the year due to

a variance in shares used in the calculations or rounding.
()] During the fourth quarter of 2007, we recorded an impairment charge of $56.7 million relating to

Trinity’s goodwill and intangible assets and a $21.6 million charge to write-off our investment in
Aston Gardens.

As described in Note 3, we have restated the 2006 results due to an error in recording revenue for non-refundable

entrance fees and the related rent expense for two communities. The impact to net income for the first, second, third
and fourth quarters of 2006 is $1.4 mitlion, $1.6 million, $1.2 million and $0.9 million, respectively.
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Board of Directors

Lynn Kromingataher
Non-Executive Chair of the Board

Paul J. Klaassen™ .
Founder and Chief Executive Ofhcer

Teresa M. Klaassen
Founder and Chief Cultural Officer

Glyn E Acppel®?
Chicf Investment Officer
‘Andre Balazs Properties

Ronald V. Aprahamian®®
Business Consultant and Private Investor

Thomas J. Doachuc®4®
Prosident and Chicf Excoucive Officer
U.S. Chamber of Commerce

David I. Fuente™
Former Chairman and Chicf Exccutive Officer
Ofhice Depot, Inc.

Stephen D. Harlan®#®
Partner

Harlan Enterprises, LLC
J. Douglas Holladay®ex

Founder
PathNorth, Inc.

William G. Litde®4)
President and Chief Executive Officer
Quam-Nichols Company

Mark S. Ordan*
Chief Investment and Administrative Officer

Standing Board Commitiees

(1) Audiz Commirtee

{2) Compensarion Commizice

(3} Neminating Committce

) G and Compliance Cy
{5) Executive Committee

Executive Officers

Paul J. Klaassen*
Founder and Chief Excautive Ofhicer

Mark §. Ordan*
Chief Investment and Administratve Officer

Tiffany L. Tomasso
Chief Operating Officer

Richard . Nadaeu

Chief Financial QOfficer

John E Gaul

General Counse! and Secretary

Michael B. Lanahan

Chairman, Greystone

*Effective a1 of the 2008 annual meeting of svockholden, My,
Krominga will become Lead Director, Mr. Klaasen will

become Nen-Executive Chair of the Board and Mr. Ordan
will become Chief Executive Officer.

Corporate Information

Corporate He reers
Sunrise Senior Living, Inc.
7902 Westpark Drive
McLean, Virginia 22102
703.273.7500

Transfer Agent and Registrar

American Stock Transfer and Trust Company
59 Maiden Lane

New York, New York 10038

Anunual Meeting Dats

Sunrise will hold its 2008 annual meeting of
stockholders on Thursday, November 13, 2008,
at 9:00 a.m., local time, ac: )

The Hilton McLean

7920 Jones Branch Drive

McLean, Virginia 22102

703.847.5000

2007 Form 10-K~

Copies of the 2007 Annual Report on Form
10-K, as amendcd, as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission, are available ar no
charge by calling 703.273.7500 or writing to:
Sunrisc Senior Living, Inc.

Investor Reladons

7902 Westpark Drive

McLean, Virginia 22102

Stock Information

Sunrise’s common stock is listed and traded
on the New York Stocl: Exchange under the
symbol SRZ.

Holders
Thete were 237 stockholders of recprd at
'Scptcmbcr 19, 2008.

Dividends

No cash dividends have been paid inthe past
and we have no intenticn to pay caslf dividends
in the foreseeable future.

Web Site
To learn more about Sunrise Senior Living, Inc.,
visit our web site: www.sunriseseniorliving.com

Certifications

The NYSE listing standards require cach listed
company's chicf exccutive officer to eprtify to
the NYSE cach year within 30 days ¢f cach
annual meeting of stockholders chat he or she
is not aware of any violation by the ¢pmpany of
the NYSE's corporate governance lising stan-
dards, qualifying the certification to the extent
nccessary: In November 2007, the Company
submitted to the NYSE a certificate of its chief
exccutive officer withour qualification, The
centifications by the Company's chief executive
officer and chief financial officer required by
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 are included as
exhibits to the 2007 Form 10-KC

Quarterly Market Price Range of Common Stock

Quarter Ended High

September 30, 2008 $22.30 $1291
June 30, 2008 $27.21 $2039
March 31, 2008 $30.65 324,64
Quarter Ended High Low
December 31, 2007 $39.70 32648
September 30, 2007 $41.05 33300
June 30, 2007 $42.97 $36.43
March 31, 2007 $41.50 $30.10
Quarter Ended High Low
December 31, 2006 $33.68 52905
September 30, 2006 $32.12 $24 40
June 30, 2006 $39.62 $26.29
March 31, 2006 $39.68 $31.64
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